RESOLUTION NO. 2018 -417

A RESOLUTION BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF ST. JOHNS COUNTY, FLORIDA, AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR, OR DESIGNEE, TO AWARD BID NO. 19-06 AND TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT FOR SR 16 WASTEWATER TREATMENT FACILITY (WWTF) FILTER IMPROVEMENTS

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the County desires to enter into a contract with <u>SGS Contracting Services</u>, <u>Inc.</u> to complete the SR 16 Wastewater Treatment Facility (WWTF) Filter Improvements; and

WHEREAS, The project requires the contractor to furnish all labor, materials, equipment, and incidentals required to construct a new filter system with a cloth media disk filter at the SR 16 Wastewater Treatment Facility (WWTF) in Saint Augustine, FL. The project will be constructed on an active WWTP site and existing operation shall be maintained throughout construction. The scope of work includes, but is not limited to, all required instruments, piping, electrical work, concrete, site work, and appurtenances as shown on the drawings and specified within.

WHEREAS, through the County's formal Bid process, <u>SGS Contracting Services</u>, <u>Inc.</u> was the lowest, responsive, responsible bidder to enter into a contract with the County to perform the work referenced above; and;

WHEREAS, the County has reviewed the terms, provisions, conditions and requirements of the proposed contract (attached hereto, an incorporated herein) and finds that entering into contracts to complete the work services serves a public purpose.

WHEREAS, the contract will be in substantial conformance with the attached draft contract.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF ST. JOHNS COUNTY, FLORIDA, as follows:

- Section 1. The above Recitals are incorporated by reference into the body of this Resolution and such Recitals are adopted as finds of fact.
- Section 2. The County Administrator, or designee, is hereby authorized to award Bid 19-06 to <u>SGS Contracting</u> Services. Inc. and to execute a contract for the services set forth therein.
- Section 3. Upon Board approval, the County Administrator, or designee, is authorized to execute an agreement in substantially the same form and format as the attached draft on behalf of the County to provide the scope of services as specifically provided in Bid 19-06.

Section 4. To the extent that there are typographical and/or administrative errors that do not change the tone, tenor, or concept of this Resolution, then this Resolution may be revised without subsequent approval by the Board of County Commissioners.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of County Commissioners of St. Johns County, Florida, this \(\text{\text{\text{L}}}\) day of \(\text{Qccember}\), 2018.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF ST. JOHNS COUNTY, FLORIDA

Paul M. Waldron, Chair

RENDITION DATE 12/6/18

ATTEST/Hunter S. Conrad, Clerk By: Jam Halterman

Deputy Clerk

AGREEMENT

BETWEEN OWNER AND CONTRACTOR FOR CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT (STIPULATED PRICE)

THIS AGREEMENT is by and between **St. Johns County, Florida** ("Owner") a political subdivision of the State of Florida, whose principal offices are located at 500 San Sebastian View, St. Augustine, FL 32084, and **SGS Contracting Services, Inc.** ("Contractor"), with offices located at 23625 W. US Hwy 27, High Springs, FL 32643, Phone: (352) 745-6950, and Email: seth@sgscsi.com, for completion of **Bid No. 19-06; SR16 Wastewater Treatment Facility** (WWTF) Filter Improvements. Owner and Contractor hereby agree as follows:

Article 1. WORK

- 1.01 Contractor shall complete all Work as specified or indicated in the Contract Documents. The Work is generally described as follows:
 - A. The construction of the SR 16 Wastewater Treatment Facility, (WWTF) Filter Improvements project requires contractor to furnish all labor, materials, equipment, and incidentals required to construct a new filter system with a cloth media disk filter at the SR 16 Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP) in Saint Augustine, FL. The project will be constructed on an active WWTP site and existing operation shall be maintained throughout construction. The scope of work includes, but is not limited to, all required instruments, piping, electrical work, concrete, site work, and appurtenances as shown on the Drawings and specified within.

Article 2. PROJECT

- 2.01 The Project, of which the Work under the Contract Documents is a part, is generally described as follows:
 - A. Bid No. 19-06; SR 16 Wastewater Treatment Facility (WWFT) Filter Improvements, St. Johns County, Florida

Article 3. ENGINEER

- 3.01 The Project has been designed by The Constantine Group, 100 Center Creek Road, Suite 108, St. Augustine, FL 32084.
- 3.02 The Owner has retained The Constantine Group, 100 Center Creek Road, Suite 108, St. Augustine, FL 32084 ("Engineer") to act as Owner's Representative, assume all duties and responsibilities, and have the rights and authority assigned to Engineer in the Contract Documents in connection with the completion of the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.

Article 4. CONTRACT TIMES

- 4.01 Time of the Essence
 - A. All time limits for Milestones, if any, Substantial Completion, and completion and

readiness for final payment as stated in the Contract Documents are of the essence of the Contract.

4.02 Contract Times: Days.

A. The Work will be substantially completed within <u>Two Hundred Ten</u> (210) consecutive days after the date when the Contract Times commence and will run as provided in Paragraph 4.01 of the General Conditions, and completed and ready for final payment in accordance with Paragraph 15.06 of the General Conditions within <u>Thirty</u> (30) days after Substantial Completion.

4.03 Liquidated Damages

- A. Contractor and Owner recognize that time is of the essence as stated in Paragraph 4.01 above and that Owner will suffer financial and other losses if the Work is not completed and Milestones not achieved within the times specified in Paragraph 4.02 above, plus any extensions thereof allowed in accordance with the Contract. The parties also recognize the delays, expense, and difficulties involved in proving in a legal or arbitration proceeding the actual loss suffered by Owner if the Work is not completed on time. Accordingly, instead of requiring any such proof, Owner and Contractor agree that as liquidated damages for delay (but not as a penalty):
 - 1. Substantial Completion: Contractor shall pay Owner \$1,584.00 for each day that expires after the time (as duly adjusted pursuant to the Contract) specified in Paragraph 4.02.A above for Substantial Completion until the Work is substantially complete.
 - 2. Completion of Remaining Work: After Substantial Completion, if Contractor shall neglect, refuse, or fail to complete the remaining Work within the Contract Time (as duly adjusted pursuant to the Contract) for completion and readiness for final payment, Contractor shall pay Owner \$1,584.00 for each day that expires after such time until the Work is completed and ready for final payment.
 - 3. Liquidated damages for failing to timely attain Substantial Completion and final completion are not additive and will not be imposed concurrently.

4.04 Special Damages

- A. In addition to the amount provided for liquidated damages, Contractor shall reimburse Owner (1) for any fines or penalties imposed on Owner as a direct result of the Contractor's failure to attain Substantial Completion according to the Contract Times, and (2) for the actual costs reasonably incurred by Owner for engineering, construction observation, inspection, and administrative services needed after the time specified in Paragraph 4.02 for Substantial Completion (as duly adjusted pursuant to the Contract), until the Work is substantially complete
- B. After Contractor achieves Substantial Completion, if Contractor shall neglect, refuse, or fail to complete the remaining Work within the Contract Times, Contractor shall reimburse Owner for the actual costs reasonably incurred by Owner for engineering, construction observation, inspection, and administrative services needed after the time specified in Paragraph 4.02 for Work to be completed and ready for final payment (as duly adjusted pursuant to the Contract), until the Work is completed and ready for final payment.

Article 5. CONTRACT PRICE

- 5.01 Owner shall pay Contractor for completion of the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents the amounts that follow, subject to adjustment under the Contract:
 - A. For all Work other than Unit Price Work, a contract price of: Seven Hundred Seventy Six Thousand Five Hundred and 00/00 dollars (\$776,500.00).

All specific cash allowances are included in the above price in accordance with Paragraph 13.02 of the General Conditions.

- 5:02 Not Applicable.
- 5.03 Total contract price of: Seven Hundred Seventy Six Thousand Five Hundred and 00/00 dollars (\$776,500.00).
- 5.04 For all Work, at the prices stated in Contractor's Bid, attached hereto as an exhibit.

Article 6. PAYMENT PROCEDURES

- 6.01 Submittal and Processing of Payments
 - A. Contractor shall submit Applications for Payment in accordance with Article 15 of the General Conditions. Applications for Payment will be processed by Engineer as provided in the General Conditions.
- 6.02 Progress Payments; Retainage
 - A. Owner shall make progress payments on account of the Contract Price on the basis of Contractor's Applications for Payment on or about the day of each month during performance of the Work as provided in Paragraph 15.01 of the General Conditions, provided that such Applications for Payment have been submitted in a timely manner and otherwise meet the requirements of the Contract. All such payments will be measured by the Schedule of Values established as provided in the General Conditions (and in the case of Unit Price Work based on the number of units completed) or, in the event there is no Schedule of Values, as provided elsewhere in the Contract.
 - B. Upon Substantial Completion, Owner shall pay an amount sufficient to increase total payments to Contractor to One Hundred (100%) percent of the Work completed, less such amounts set off by Owner pursuant to Paragraph 15.01.E of the General Conditions, and less Two Hundred (200%) percent of Engineer's estimate of the value of Work to be completed or corrected as shown on the punch list of items to be completed or corrected prior to final payment.
- 6.03 Final Payment
 - A. Upon final completion and acceptance of the Work in accordance with Paragraph 15.06 of the General Conditions, Owner shall pay the remainder of the Contract Price as

recommended by Engineer as provided in said Paragraph 15.06.

Article 7. INTEREST

7.01 All amounts not paid when due shall bear interest at the rate of Zero (0.00) percent per annum

Article 8. CONTRACTOR'S REPRESENTATIONS

- 8.01 In order to induce Owner to enter into this Contract, Contractor makes the following representations
 - A. Contractor has examined and carefully studied the Contract Documents, and any data and reference items identified in the Contract Documents.
 - B. Contractor has visited the Site, conducted a thorough, alert visual examination of the Site and adjacent areas, and become familiar with and is satisfied as to the general, local, and Site conditions that may affect cost, progress, and performance of the Work.
 - C. Contractor is familiar with and is satisfied as to all Laws and Regulations that may affect cost, progress, and performance of the Work.
 - D. Contractor has carefully studied all: (1) reports of explorations and tests of subsurface conditions at or adjacent to the Site and all drawings of physical conditions relating to existing surface or subsurface structures at the Site that have been identified in the Supplementary Conditions, especially with respect to Technical Data in such reports and drawings, and (2) reports and drawings relating to Hazardous Environmental Conditions, if any, at or adjacent to the Site that have been identified in the Supplementary Conditions, especially with respect to Technical Data in such reports and drawings.
 - E. Contractor has considered the information known to Contractor itself; information commonly known to contractors doing business in the locality of the Site; information and observations obtained from visits to the Site; the Contract Documents; and the Site-related reports and drawings identified in the Contract Documents, with respect to the effect of such information, observations, and documents on (1) the cost, progress, and performance of the Work; (2) the means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of construction to be employed by Contractor; and (3) Contractor's safety precautions and programs.
 - F. Based on the information and observations referred to in the preceding paragraph, Contractor agrees that no further examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, studies, or data are necessary for the performance of the Work at the Contract Price, within the Contract Times, and in accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Contract.
 - G. Contractor is aware of the general nature of work to be performed by Owner and others at the Site that relates to the Work as indicated in the Contract Documents.
 - H. Contractor has given Engineer written notice of all conflicts, errors, ambiguities, or

- discrepancies that Contractor has discovered in the Contract Documents, and the written resolution thereof by Engineer is acceptable to Contractor.
- I. The Contract Documents are generally sufficient to indicate and convey understanding of all terms and conditions for performance and furnishing of the Work.
- J. Contractor's entry into this Contract constitutes an incontrovertible representation by Contractor that without exception all prices in the Agreement are premised upon performing and furnishing the Work required by the Contract Documents.

Article 9. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

9.01 Contents:

- A. The Contract Documents consist of the following:
 - 1. This Agreement (pages 1 to 8, inclusive).
 - 2. Public construction bond (pages 1 to 2, inclusive).
 - 3. General Conditions (pages 1 to 65, inclusive).
 - 4. Supplementary Conditions (pages 1 to 12, inclusive).
 - 5. Specifications as listed in the table of contents of the Project Manual.
 - 6. Drawings (not attached but incorporated by reference) consisting of 24 sheets with each sheet bearing the following general title: <u>SR 16 Wastewater Treatment</u> Facility (WWTF) Filter Improvements, St. Johns County, Florida
 - 7. Addenda (numbers 1 to 3, inclusive)
 - 8. Exhibits to this Agreement (enumerated as follows):
 - a. Contractor's Bid (pages 1 to 33, inclusive).
 - 9. The following which may be delivered or issued on or after the Effective Date of the Contract and are not attached hereto:
 - a. Notice to Proceed.
 - b. Work Change Directives.
 - c. Change Orders.
 - d. Field Orders.
- B. The documents listed in Paragraph 9.01.A are attached to this Agreement (except as expressly noted otherwise above).
- C. There are no Contract Documents other than those listed above in this Article 9.
- D. The Contract Documents may only be amended, modified, or supplemented as provided in the General Conditions.

Article 10. MISCELLANEOUS

10.01 Terms

A. Terms used in this Agreement will have the meanings stated in the General Conditions and the Supplementary Conditions.

10.02 Assignment of Contract

A. Unless expressly agreed to elsewhere in the Contract, no assignment by a party hereto of any rights under or interests in the Contract will be binding on another party hereto without the written consent of the party sought to be bound; and, specifically but without limitation, money that may become due and money that is due may not be assigned without such consent (except to the extent that the effect of this restriction may be limited by law), and unless specifically stated to the contrary in any written consent to an assignment, no assignment will release or discharge the assignor from any duty or responsibility under the Contract Documents.

10.03 Successors and Assigns

A. Owner and Contractor each binds itself, its successors, assigns, and legal representatives to the other party hereto, its successors, assigns, and legal representatives in respect to all covenants, agreements, and obligations contained in the Contract Documents.

10.04 Severability

A. Any provision or part of the Contract Documents held to be void or unenforceable under any Law or Regulation shall be deemed stricken, and all remaining provisions shall continue to be valid and binding upon Owner and Contractor, who agree that the Contract Documents shall be reformed to replace such stricken provision or part thereof with a valid and enforceable provision that comes as close as possible to expressing the intention of the stricken provision.

10.05 Contractor's Certifications

- A. Contractor certifies that it has not engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, or coercive practices in competing for or in executing the Contract. For the purposes of this Paragraph 10.05:
 - 1. "corrupt practice" means the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting of any thing of value likely to influence the action of a public official in the bidding process or in the Contract execution;
 - "fraudulent practice" means an intentional misrepresentation of facts made (a)
 to influence the bidding process or the execution of the Contract to the
 detriment of Owner, (b) to establish Bid or Contract prices at artificial noncompetitive levels, or (c) to deprive Owner of the benefits of free and open
 competition;
 - 3. "collusive practice" means a scheme or arrangement between two or more Bidders, with or without the knowledge of Owner, a purpose of which is to establish Bid prices at artificial, non-competitive levels; and
 - 4. "coercive practice" means harming or threatening to harm, directly or indirectly, persons or their property to influence their participation in the bidding process or affect the execution of the Contract.

10.06 Other Provisions

A. Owner stipulates that if the General Conditions that are made a part of this Contract are based on EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions for the Construction Contract, published by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee®, and if Owner is the party that has furnished said General Conditions, then Owner has plainly shown all modifications to the standard wording of such published document to the Contractor, through a process such as highlighting or "track changes" (redline/strikeout), or in the Supplementary Conditions.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Owner and Contractor have signed this Agreement. . This Agreement will be effective _____ (which is the Effective Date of the Contract). **CONTRACTOR:** OWNER: St. Johns County, FL (Typed Name) By: By: Signature of Authorized Representative Signature of Authorized Representative Jaime T. Locklear, MPA, CPPB, FCCM Print Name Print Name Purchasing Manager Title Title Date of Execution: Date of Execution: ATTEST: Attest: St. Johns County, FL Clerk of Courts Title: By: Title: Legally Sufficient: Mailing Address for giving notices: Deputy County Attorney Date of Execution:

C-520, Agreement Stipulated Price

St. Johns County

June, 2017

Page 7 of 8

Mailing Address for giving notices:	License No.:	
500 San Sebastian View St. Augustine, FL 32084	,	

This document has important legal consequences; consultation with an attorney is encouraged with respect to its use or modification. This document should be adapted to the particular circumstances of the contemplated Project and the controlling Laws and Regulations.

STANDARD GENERAL CONDITIONS OF THE CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT

Prepared by



Issued and Published Jointly by







Endorsed by





These General Conditions have been prepared for use with the Agreement Between Owner and Contractor for Construction Contract (EJCDC® C-520, Stipulated Sum, or C-525, Cost-Plus, 2013 Editions). Their provisions are interrelated and a change in one may necessitate a change in the other.

To prepare supplementary conditions that are coordinated with the General Conditions, use EJCDC's Guide to the Preparation of Supplementary Conditions (EJCDC® C-800, 2013 Edition). The full EJCDC Construction series of documents is discussed in the Commentary on the 2013 EJCDC Construction Documents (EJCDC® C-001, 2013 Edition).

Copyright © 2013:

National Society of Professional Engineers 1420 King Street, Alexandria, VA 22314-2794 (703) 684-2882

www.nspe.org

American Council of Engineering Companies 1015 15th Street N.W., Washington, DC 20005 (202) 347-7474

www.acec.org

American Society of Civil Engineers

1801 Alexander Bell Drive, Reston, VA 20191-4400

(800) 548-2723

www.asce.org

The copyright for this document is owned jointly by the three sponsoring organizations listed above. The National Society of Professional Engineers is the Copyright Administrator for the EJCDC documents; please direct all inquiries regarding EJCDC copyrights to NSPE.

NOTE: EJCDC publications may be purchased at <u>www.ejcdc.org</u>, or from any of the sponsoring organizations above.

STANDARD GENERAL CONDITIONS OF THE CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	•	Page
Article 1 – E	Definitions and Terminology	1
1.01	Defined Terms	
1.02	Terminology	5
Article 2 – P	Preliminary Matters	6
2.01	Delivery of Bonds and Evidence of Insurance	6
2.02	Copies of Documents	
2.03	Before Starting Construction	6
2.04	Preconstruction Conference; Designation of Authorized Representatives	7
2.05	Initial Acceptance of Schedules	7
2.06	Electronic Transmittals	7
Article 3 – D	Oocuments: Intent, Requirements, Reuse	8
3.01	Intent	8
3.02	Reference Standards	8
3.03	Reporting and Resolving Discrepancies	8
3.04	Requirements of the Contract Documents	9
3.05	Reuse of Documents	10
Article 4 – C	Commencement and Progress of the Work	10
4.01	Commencement of Contract Times; Notice to Proceed	10
 34.02	Starting the Work	10
4.03	Reference Points	10
4.04	Progress Schedule	
4.05	Delays in Contractor's Progress	11
Article 5 – A	Availability of Lands; Subsurface and Physical Conditions; Hazardous Envi	
Conditions.)	
5.01	Availability of Lands	12
5.02	Use of Site and Other Areas	
5.03	Subsurface and Physical Conditions	!
5.04	Differing Subsurface or Physical Conditions	
5.05	Underground Facilities	15

	5.06	Hazardous Environmental Conditions at Site	17
Artic	:lė 6 – B	Sonds and Insurance	19
	6.01	Performance, Payment, and Other Bonds	
	6.02	Insurance—General Provisions	19
	6.03	Contractor's Insurance	20
	6.04	Owner's Liability Insurance	23
	6.05	Property Insurance	23
	6.06	Waiver of Rights	25
	6.07	Receipt and Application of Property Insurance Proceeds	25
Artic	le 7 – C	ontractor's Responsibilities	. 26
	7.01	Supervision and Superintendence	26
	7.02	Labor; Working Hours	26
	7.03	Services, Materials, and Equipment	26
	7.04	"Or Equals"	27
	7.05	Substitutes	28
•	7.06	Concerning Subcontractors, Suppliers, and Others	
	7.07	Patent Fees and Royalties	31
	7.08	Permits	31
	7.09	Taxes	32
	7.10	Laws and Regulations	32
	7.11	Record Documents	32
	7.12	Safety and Protection	32
	7.13	Safety Representative	33
	7.14	Hazard Communication Programs	33
	7.15	Emergencies	34
	7.16	Shop Drawings, Samples, and Other Submittals	34
	7.17	Contractor's General Warranty and Guarantee	36
	7.18	Indemnification	37
	7.19	Delegation of Professional Design Services	37
Artic	le 8 – O	ther Work at the Site	. 38
	8.01	Other Work	38
	8.02	Coordination	39
	8.03	Legal Relationships	39

Artic	cle 9 – C	Owner's Responsibilities	40
	9.01	Communications to Contractor	40
•	9.02	Replacement of Engineer	40
	9.03	Furnish Data	40
;	9.04	Pay When Due	40
	9.05	Lands and Easements; Reports, Tests, and Drawings	40
	9.06	Insurance	40
	9.07	Change Orders	40
	9.08	Inspections, Tests, and Approvals	41
	9.09	Limitations on Owner's Responsibilities	41
	9.10	Undisclosed Hazardous Environmental Condition	41
	9.11	Evidence of Financial Arrangements	41
	9.12	Safety Programs	41
Artic	de 10 –	Engineer's Status During Construction	41
-	10.01	Owner's Representative	41
	10.02	Visits to Site	41
	10.03	Project Representative	42
	10.04	Rejecting Defective Work	42
	10.05	Shop Drawings, Change Orders and Payments	42
	10.06	Determinations for Unit Price Work	42
	10.07	Decisions on Requirements of Contract Documents and Acceptability of Work	42
	10.08	Limitations on Engineer's Authority and Responsibilities	42
	10.09	Compliance with Safety Program	43
Artic	le 11 –	Amending the Contract Documents; Changes in the Work	43
	11.01	Amending and Supplementing Contract Documents	
	11.02	Owner-Authorized Changes in the Work	44
	11.03	Unauthorized Changes in the Work	44
	11.04	Change of Contract Price	44
	11.05	Change of Contract Times	45
	11.06	Change Proposals	
	11.07	Execution of Change Orders	46
	11.08	Notification to Surety	47
Artio	de 12 –	Claims	47

		Claims	
Artic	cle 13 –	Cost of the Work; Allowances; Unit Price Work	48
	13.01	Cost of the Work	48
	13.02	Allowances	
	13.03	Unit Price Work	51
Artic	le 14 –	Tests and Inspections; Correction, Removal or Acceptance of Defective Work	52
	14.01	Access to Work	52
	14.02	Tests, Inspections, and Approvals	52
	14.03	Defective Work	
	14.04	•	
	14.05	Uncovering Work	53
	14.06	Owner May Stop the Work	54
	14.07	Owner May Correct Defective Work	54
Artic	le 15 –	Payments to Contractor; Set-Offs; Completion; Correction Period	55
	15.01	Progress Payments	55
	15.02	Contractor's Warranty of Title	58
	15.03	Substantial Completion	58
	15.04	Partial Use or Occupancy	59
	15.05	Final Inspection	59
	15.06	Final Payment	59
	15.07	Waiver of Claims	
	15.08	Correction Period	61
Artic	le 16 –	Suspension of Work and Termination	
	16.01	Owner May Suspend Work	62
	16.02	Owner May Terminate for Cause	62
	16.03	Owner May Terminate For Convenience	63
	16.04	Contractor May Stop Work or Terminate	63
Artic	le 17 –	Final Resolution of Disputes	64
	17.01	Methods and Procedures	64
Artic	le 18 –	Miscellaneous	64
	18.01	Giving Notice	64
	18.02	Computation of Times	64
	18.03	Cumulative Remedies	64

18.04	Limitation of Damages	65
18.05	No Waiver	65
18.06	Survival of Obligations	65
18.07	Controlling Law	65
18.08	Headings	65

ARTICLE 1 – DEFINITIONS AND TERMINOLOGY

1.01 Defined Terms

- A. Wherever used in the Bidding Requirements or Contract Documents, a term printed with initial capital letters, including the term's singular and plural forms, will have the meaning indicated in the definitions below. In addition to terms specifically defined, terms with initial capital letters in the Contract Documents include references to identified articles and paragraphs, and the titles of other documents or forms.
 - 1. Addenda—Written or graphic instruments issued prior to the opening of Bids which clarify, correct, or change the Bidding Requirements or the proposed Contract Documents.
 - Agreement—The written instrument, executed by Owner and Contractor, that sets forth the Contract Price and Contract Times, identifies the parties and the Engineer, and designates the specific items that are Contract Documents.
 - 3. Application for Payment—The form acceptable to Engineer which is to be used by Contractor during the course of the Work in requesting progress or final payments and which is to be accompanied by such supporting documentation as is required by the Contract Documents.
 - 4. *Bid*—The offer of a Bidder submitted on the prescribed form setting forth the prices for the Work to be performed.
 - 5. Bidder—An individual or entity that submits a Bid to Owner.
 - 6. Bidding Documents—The Bidding Requirements, the proposed Contract Documents, and all Addenda.
 - 7. Bidding Requirements—The advertisement or invitation to bid, Instructions to Bidders, Bid Bond or other Bid security, if any, the Bid Form, and the Bid with any attachments.
 - 8. Change Order—A document which is signed by Contractor and Owner and authorizes an addition, deletion, or revision in the Work or an adjustment in the Contract Price or the Contract Times, or other revision to the Contract, issued on or after the Effective Date of the Contract.
 - 9. Change Proposal—A written request by Contractor, duly submitted in compliance with the procedural requirements set forth herein, seeking an adjustment in Contract Price or Contract Times, or both; contesting an initial decision by Engineer concerning the requirements of the Contract Documents or the acceptability of Work under the Contract Documents; challenging a set-off against payments due; or seeking other relief with respect to the terms of the Contract.
 - 10. Claim—(a) A demand or assertion by Owner directly to Contractor, duly submitted in compliance with the procedural requirements set forth herein: seeking an adjustment of Contract Price or Contract Times, or both; contesting an initial decision by Engineer concerning the requirements of the Contract Documents or the acceptability of Work under the Contract Documents; contesting Engineer's decision regarding a Change Proposal; seeking resolution of a contractual issue that Engineer has declined to address; or seeking other relief with respect to the terms of the Contract; or (b) a demand or assertion by Contractor directly to Owner, duly submitted in compliance with the procedural requirements set forth herein, contesting Engineer's decision regarding a Change Proposal; or seeking resolution of a contractual issue that Engineer

- has declined to address. A demand for money or services by a third party is not a Claim.
- 11. Constituent of Concern—Asbestos, petroleum, radioactive materials, polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs), hazardous waste, and any substance, product, waste, or other material of any nature whatsoever that is or becomes listed, regulated, or addressed pursuant to (a) the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act, 42 U.S.C. §§9601 et seq. ("CERCLA"); (b) the Hazardous Materials Transportation Act, 49 U.S.C. §§5101 et seq.; (c) the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, 42 U.S.C. §§6901 et seq. ("RCRA"); (d) the Toxic Substances Control Act, 15 U.S.C. §§2601 et seq.; (e) the Clean Water Act, 33 U.S.C. §§1251 et seq.; (f) the Clean Air Act, 42 U.S.C. §§7401 et seq.; or (g) any other federal, state, or local statute, law, rule, regulation, ordinance, resolution, code, order, or decree regulating, relating to, or imposing liability or standards of conduct concerning, any hazardous, toxic, or dangerous waste, substance, or material.
- 12. *Contract*—The entire and integrated written contract between the Owner and Contractor concerning the Work.
- 13. Contract Documents—Those items so designated in the Agreement, and which together comprise the Contract.
- 14. Contract Price—The money that Owner has agreed to pay Contractor for completion of the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.
- Contract Times—The number of days or the dates by which Contractor shall: (a) achieve Milestones, if any; (b) achieve Substantial Completion; and (c) complete the Work.
- 16. *Contractor*—The individual or entity with which Owner has contracted for performance of the Work.
- 17. Cost of the Work—See Paragraph 13.01 for definition.
- 18. *Drawings*—The part of the Contract that graphically shows the scope, extent, and character of the Work to be performed by Contractor.
- 19. Effective Date of the Contract—The date, indicated in the Agreement, on which the Contract becomes effective.
- 20. Engineer—The individual or entity named as such in the Agreement.
- 21. Field Order—A written order issued by Engineer which requires minor changes in the Work but does not change the Contract Price or the Contract Times.
- 22. Hazardous Environmental Condition—The presence at the Site of Constituents of Concern in such quantities or circumstances that may present a danger to persons or property exposed thereto. The presence at the Site of materials that are necessary for the execution of the Work, or that are to be incorporated in the Work, and that are controlled and contained pursuant to industry practices, Laws and Regulations, and the requirements of the Contract, does not establish a Hazardous Environmental Condition.
- Laws and Regulations; Laws or Regulations—Any and all applicable laws, statutes, rules, regulations, ordinances, codes, and orders of any and all governmental bodies, agencies, authorities, and courts having jurisdiction.

- 24. *Liens*—Charges, security interests, or encumbrances upon Contract-related funds, real property, or personal property.
- 25. Milestone—A principal event in the performance of the Work that the Contract requires Contractor to achieve by an intermediate completion date or by a time prior to Substantial Completion of all the Work.
- 26. Notice of Award—The written notice by Owner to a Bidder of Owner's acceptance of the Bid.
- 27. Notice to Proceed—A written notice by Owner to Contractor fixing the date on which the Contract Times will commence to run and on which Contractor shall start to perform the Work.
- 28. Owner—The individual or entity with which Contractor has contracted regarding the Work, and which has agreed to pay Contractor for the performance of the Work, pursuant to the terms of the Contract.
- 29. Progress Schedule—A schedule, prepared and maintained by Contractor, describing the sequence and duration of the activities comprising the Contractor's plan to accomplish the Work within the Contract Times.
- 30. *Project*—The total undertaking to be accomplished for Owner by engineers, contractors, and others, including planning, study, design, construction, testing, commissioning, and start-up, and of which the Work to be performed under the Contract Documents is a part.
- 31. Project Manual—The written documents prepared for, or made available for, procuring and constructing the Work, including but not limited to the Bidding Documents or other construction procurement documents, geotechnical and existing conditions information, the Agreement, bond forms, General Conditions, Supplementary Conditions, and Specifications. The contents of the Project Manual may be bound in one or more volumes.
- 32. Resident Project Representative—The authorized representative of Engineer assigned to assist Engineer at the Site. As used herein, the term Resident Project Representative or "RPR" includes any assistants or field staff of Resident Project Representative.
- 33. Samples—Physical examples of materials, equipment, or workmanship that are representative of some portion of the Work and that establish the standards by which such portion of the Work will be judged.
- 34. Schedule of Submittals—A schedule, prepared and maintained by Contractor, of required submittals and the time requirements for Engineer's review of the submittals and the performance of related construction activities.
- 35. Schedule of Values—A schedule, prepared and maintained by Contractor, allocating portions of the Contract Price to various portions of the Work and used as the basis for reviewing Contractor's Applications for Payment.
- 36. Shop Drawings—All drawings, diagrams, illustrations, schedules, and other data or information that are specifically prepared or assembled by or for Contractor and submitted by Contractor to illustrate some portion of the Work. Shop Drawings, whether approved or not, are not Drawings and are not Contract Documents.

- 37. Site—Lands or areas indicated in the Contract Documents as being furnished by Owner upon which the Work is to be performed, including rights-of-way and easements, and such other lands furnished by Owner which are designated for the use of Contractor.
- 38. Specifications—The part of the Contract that consists of written requirements for materials, equipment, systems, standards, and workmanship as applied to the Work, and certain administrative requirements and procedural matters applicable to the Work.
- 39. Subcontractor—An individual or entity having a direct contract with Contractor or with any other Subcontractor for the performance of a part of the Work.
- 40. Substantial Completion—The time at which the Work (or a specified part thereof) has progressed to the point where, in the opinion of Engineer, the Work (or a specified part thereof) is sufficiently complete, in accordance with the Contract Documents, so that the Work (or a specified part thereof) can be utilized for the purposes for which it is intended. The terms "substantially complete" and "substantially completed" as applied to all or part of the Work refer to Substantial Completion thereof.
- 41. Successful Bidder—The Bidder whose Bid the Owner accepts, and to which the Owner makes an award of contract, subject to stated conditions.
- 42. Supplementary Conditions—The part of the Contract that amends or supplements these General Conditions.
- 43. Supplier—A manufacturer, fabricator, supplier, distributor, materialman, or vendor having a direct contract with Contractor or with any Subcontractor to furnish materials or equipment to be incorporated in the Work by Contractor or a Subcontractor.
- 44. Technical Data—Those items expressly identified as Technical Data in the Supplementary Conditions, with respect to either (a) subsurface conditions at the Site, or physical conditions relating to existing surface or subsurface structures at the Site (except Underground Facilities) or (b) Hazardous Environmental Conditions at the Site. If no such express identifications of Technical Data have been made with respect to conditions at the Site, then the data contained in boring logs, recorded measurements of subsurface water levels, laboratory test results, and other factual, objective information regarding conditions at the Site that are set forth in any geotechnical or environmental report prepared for the Project and made available to Contractor are hereby defined as Technical Data with respect to conditions at the Site under Paragraphs 5.03, 5.04, and 5.06.
- 45. Underground Facilities—All underground pipelines, conduits, ducts, cables, wires, manholes, vaults, tanks, tunnels, or other such facilities or attachments, and any encasements containing such facilities, including but not limited to those that convey electricity, gases, steam, liquid petroleum products, telephone or other communications, fiber optic transmissions, cable television, water, wastewater, storm water, other liquids or chemicals, or traffic or other control systems.
- 46. *Unit Price Work*—Work to be paid for on the basis of unit prices.
- 47. Work—The entire construction or the various separately identifiable parts thereof required to be provided under the Contract Documents. Work includes and is the result of performing or providing all labor, services, and documentation necessary to produce such construction; furnishing, installing, and incorporating all materials and equipment into such construction; and may include related services such as testing, start-up, and commissioning, all as required by the Contract Documents.

48. Work Change Directive—A written directive to Contractor issued on or after the Effective Date of the Contract, signed by Owner and recommended by Engineer, ordering an addition, deletion, or revision in the Work.

1.02 Terminology

- A. The words and terms discussed in the following paragraphs are not defined but, when used in the Bidding Requirements or Contract Documents, have the indicated meaning.
- B. Intent of Certain Terms or Adjectives:
 - 1. The Contract Documents include the terms "as allowed," "as approved," "as ordered," "as directed" or terms of like effect or import to authorize an exercise of professional judgment by Engineer. In addition, the adjectives "reasonable," "suitable," "acceptable," "proper," "satisfactory," or adjectives of like effect or import are used to describe an action or determination of Engineer as to the Work. It is intended that such exercise of professional judgment, action, or determination will be solely to evaluate, in general, the Work for compliance with the information in the Contract Documents and with the design concept of the Project as a functioning whole as shown or indicated in the Contract Documents (unless there is a specific statement indicating otherwise). The use of any such term or adjective is not intended to and shall not be effective to assign to Engineer any duty or authority to supervise or direct the performance of the Work, or any duty or authority to undertake responsibility contrary to the provisions of Article 10 or any other provision of the Contract Documents.

C. Day:

1. The word "day" means a calendar day of 24 hours measured from midnight to the next midnight.

D. Defective:

- 1. The word "defective," when modifying the word "Work," refers to Work that is unsatisfactory, faulty, or deficient in that it:
 - a. does not conform to the Contract Documents; or
 - b. does not meet the requirements of any applicable inspection, reference standard, test, or approval referred to in the Contract Documents; or
 - c. has been damaged prior to Engineer's recommendation of final payment (unless responsibility for the protection thereof has been assumed by Owner at Substantial Completion in accordance with Paragraph 15.03 or 15.04).

E. Furnish, Install, Perform, Provide:

- The word "furnish," when used in connection with services, materials, or equipment, shall mean to supply and deliver said services, materials, or equipment to the Site (or some other specified location) ready for use or installation and in usable or operable condition.
- 2. The word "install," when used in connection with services, materials, or equipment, shall mean to put into use or place in final position said services, materials, or equipment complete and ready for intended use.

- 3. The words "perform" or "provide," when used in connection with services, materials, or equipment, shall mean to furnish and install said services, materials, or equipment complete and ready for intended use.
- 4. If the Contract Documents establish an obligation of Contractor with respect to specific services, materials, or equipment, but do not expressly use any of the four words "furnish," "install," "perform," or "provide," then Contractor shall furnish and install said services, materials, or equipment complete and ready for intended use.
- F. Unless stated otherwise in the Contract Documents, words or phrases that have a well-known technical or construction industry or trade meaning are used in the Contract Documents in accordance with such recognized meaning.

ARTICLE 2 – PRELIMINARY MATTERS

2.01 Delivery of Bonds and Evidence of Insurance

- A. Bonds: When Contractor delivers the executed counterparts of the Agreement to Owner, Contractor shall also deliver to Owner such bonds as Contractor may be required to furnish.
- B. Evidence of Contractor's Insurance: When Contractor delivers the executed counterparts of the Agreement to Owner, Contractor shall also deliver to Owner, with copies to each named insured and additional insured (as identified in the Supplementary Conditions or elsewhere in the Contract), the certificates and other evidence of insurance required to be provided by Contractor in accordance with Article 6.
- C. Evidence of Owner's Insurance: After receipt of the executed counterparts of the Agreement and all required bonds and insurance documentation, Owner shall promptly deliver to Contractor, with copies to each named insured and additional insured (as identified in the Supplementary Conditions or otherwise), the certificates and other evidence of insurance required to be provided by Owner under Article 6.

2.02 Copies of Documents

- A. Owner shall furnish to Contractor four printed copies of the Contract (including one fully executed counterpart of the Agreement), and one copy in electronic portable document format (PDF). Additional printed copies will be furnished upon request at the cost of reproduction.
- B. Owner shall maintain and safeguard at least one original printed record version of the Contract, including Drawings and Specifications signed and sealed by Engineer and other design professionals. Owner shall make such original printed record version of the Contract available to Contractor for review. Owner may delegate the responsibilities under this provision to Engineer.

2.03 Before Starting Construction

- A. Preliminary Schedules: Within 10 days after the Effective Date of the Contract (or as otherwise specifically required by the Contract Documents), Contractor shall submit to Engineer for timely review:
 - a preliminary Progress Schedule indicating the times (numbers of days or dates) for starting and completing the various stages of the Work, including any Milestones specified in the Contract;
 - 2. a preliminary Schedule of Submittals; and

3. a preliminary Schedule of Values for all of the Work which includes quantities and prices of items which when added together equal the Contract Price and subdivides the Work into component parts in sufficient detail to serve as the basis for progress payments during performance of the Work. Such prices will include an appropriate amount of overhead and profit applicable to each item of Work.

2.04 Preconstruction Conference; Designation of Authorized Representatives

- A. Before any Work at the Site is started, a conference attended by Owner, Contractor, Engineer, and others as appropriate will be held to establish a working understanding among the parties as to the Work and to discuss the schedules referred to in Paragraph 2.03.A, procedures for handling Shop Drawings, Samples, and other submittals, processing Applications for Payment, electronic or digital transmittals, and maintaining required records.
- B. At this conference Owner and Contractor each shall designate, in writing, a specific individual to act as its authorized representative with respect to the services and responsibilities under the Contract. Such individuals shall have the authority to transmit and receive information, render decisions relative to the Contract, and otherwise act on behalf of each respective party.

2.05 Initial Acceptance of Schedules

- A. At least 10 days before submission of the first Application for Payment a conference, attended by Contractor, Engineer, and others as appropriate, will be held to review for acceptability to Engineer as provided below the schedules submitted in accordance with Paragraph 2.03.A. Contractor shall have an additional 10 days to make corrections and adjustments and to complete and resubmit the schedules. No progress payment shall be made to Contractor until acceptable schedules are submitted to Engineer.
 - The Progress Schedule will be acceptable to Engineer if it provides an orderly
 progression of the Work to completion within the Contract Times. Such acceptance
 will not impose on Engineer responsibility for the Progress Schedule, for sequencing,
 scheduling, or progress of the Work, nor interfere with or relieve Contractor from
 Contractor's full responsibility therefor.
 - 2. Contractor's Schedule of Submittals will be acceptable to Engineer if it provides a workable arrangement for reviewing and processing the required submittals.
 - Contractor's Schedule of Values will be acceptable to Engineer as to form and substance if it provides a reasonable allocation of the Contract Price to the component parts of the Work.

2.06 Electronic Transmittals

- A. Except as otherwise stated elsewhere in the Contract, the Owner, Engineer, and Contractor may transmit, and shall accept, Project-related correspondence, text, data, documents, drawings, information, and graphics, including but not limited to Shop Drawings and other submittals, in electronic media or digital format, either directly, or through access to a secure Project website.
- B. If the Contract does not establish protocols for electronic or digital transmittals, then Owner, Engineer, and Contractor shall jointly develop such protocols.
- C. When transmitting items in electronic media or digital format, the transmitting party makes no representations as to long term compatibility, usability, or readability of the items resulting from the recipient's use of software application packages, operating systems, or

computer hardware differing from those used in the drafting or transmittal of the items, or from those established in applicable transmittal protocols.

ARTICLE 3 – DOCUMENTS: INTENT, REQUIREMENTS, REUSE

3.01 Intent

- A. The Contract Documents are complementary; what is required by one is as binding as if required by all.
- B. It is the intent of the Contract Documents to describe a functionally complete project (or part thereof) to be constructed in accordance with the Contract Documents.
- C. Unless otherwise stated in the Contract Documents, if there is a discrepancy between the electronic or digital versions of the Contract Documents (including any printed copies derived from such electronic or digital versions) and the printed record version, the printed record version shall govern.
- D. The Contract supersedes prior negotiations, representations, and agreements, whether written or oral.
- E. Engineer will issue clarifications and interpretations of the Contract Documents as provided herein.

3.02 Reference Standards

- A. Standards Specifications, Codes, Laws and Regulations
 - Reference in the Contract Documents to standard specifications, manuals, reference standards, or codes of any technical society, organization, or association, or to Laws or Regulations, whether such reference be specific or by implication, shall mean the standard specification, manual, reference standard, code, or Laws or Regulations in effect at the time of opening of Bids (or on the Effective Date of the Contract if there were no Bids), except as may be otherwise specifically stated in the Contract Documents.
 - 2. No provision of any such standard specification, manual, reference standard, or code, or any instruction of a Supplier, shall be effective to change the duties or responsibilities of Owner, Contractor, or Engineer, or any of their subcontractors, consultants, agents, or employees, from those set forth in the part of the Contract Documents prepared by or for Engineer. No such provision or instruction shall be effective to assign to Owner, Engineer, or any of their officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, or subcontractors, any duty or authority to supervise or direct the performance of the Work or any duty or authority to undertake responsibility inconsistent with the provisions of the part of the Contract Documents prepared by or for Engineer.

3.03 Reporting and Resolving Discrepancies

A. Reporting Discrepancies:

Contractor's Verification of Figures and Field Measurements: Before undertaking each
part of the Work, Contractor shall carefully study the Contract Documents, and check
and verify pertinent figures and dimensions therein, particularly with respect to
applicable field measurements. Contractor shall promptly report in writing to Engineer
any conflict, error, ambiguity, or discrepancy that Contractor discovers, or has actual
knowledge of, and shall not proceed with any Work affected thereby until the conflict,

- error, ambiguity, or discrepancy is resolved, by a clarification or interpretation by Engineer, or by an amendment or supplement to the Contract Documents issued pursuant to Paragraph 11.01.
- 2. Contractor's Review of Contract Documents: If, before or during the performance of the Work, Contractor discovers any conflict, error, ambiguity, or discrepancy within the Contract Documents, or between the Contract Documents and (a) any applicable Law or Regulation, (b) actual field conditions, (c) any standard specification, manual, reference standard, or code, or (d) any instruction of any Supplier, then Contractor shall promptly report it to Engineer in writing. Contractor shall not proceed with the Work affected thereby (except in an emergency as required by Paragraph 7.15) until the conflict, error, ambiguity, or discrepancy is resolved, by a clarification or interpretation by Engineer, or by an amendment or supplement to the Contract Documents issued pursuant to Paragraph 11.01.
- Contractor shall not be liable to Owner or Engineer for failure to report any conflict, error, ambiguity, or discrepancy in the Contract Documents unless Contractor had actual knowledge thereof.

B. Resolving Discrepancies:

- Except as may be otherwise specifically stated in the Contract Documents, the
 provisions of the part of the Contract Documents prepared by or for Engineer shall
 take precedence in resolving any conflict, error, ambiguity, or discrepancy between
 such provisions of the Contract Documents and:
 - the provisions of any standard specification, manual, reference standard, or code, or the instruction of any Supplier (whether or not specifically incorporated by reference as a Contract Document); or
 - b. the provisions of any Laws or Regulations applicable to the performance of the Work (unless such an interpretation of the provisions of the Contract Documents would result in violation of such Law or Regulation).

3.04 Requirements of the Contract Documents

- A. During the performance of the Work and until final payment, Contractor and Owner shall submit to the Engineer all matters in question concerning the requirements of the Contract Documents (sometimes referred to as requests for information or interpretation—RFIs), or relating to the acceptability of the Work under the Contract Documents, as soon as possible after such matters arise. Engineer will be the initial interpreter of the requirements of the Contract Documents, and judge of the acceptability of the Work thereunder.
- B. Engineer will, with reasonable promptness, render a written clarification, interpretation, or decision on the issue submitted, or initiate an amendment or supplement to the Contract Documents. Engineer's written clarification, interpretation, or decision will be final and binding on Contractor, unless it appeals by submitting a Change Proposal, and on Owner, unless it appeals by filing a Claim.
- C. If a submitted matter in question concerns terms and conditions of the Contract Documents that do not involve (1) the performance or acceptability of the Work under the Contract Documents, (2) the design (as set forth in the Drawings, Specifications, or otherwise), or (3) other engineering or technical matters, then Engineer will promptly give written notice to Owner and Contractor that Engineer is unable to provide a decision or interpretation. If Owner and Contractor are unable to agree on resolution of such a matter in question, either party may pursue resolution as provided in Article 12.

3.05 Reuse of Documents

- A. Contractor and its Subcontractors and Suppliers shall not:
 - have or acquire any title to or ownership rights in any of the Drawings, Specifications, or other documents (or copies of any thereof) prepared by or bearing the seal of Engineer or its consultants, including electronic media editions, or reuse any such Drawings, Specifications, other documents, or copies thereof on extensions of the Project or any other project without written consent of Owner and Engineer and specific written verification or adaptation by Engineer; or
 - 2. have or acquire any title or ownership rights in any other Contract Documents, reuse any such Contract Documents for any purpose without Owner's express written consent, or violate any copyrights pertaining to such Contract Documents.
- B. The prohibitions of this Paragraph 3.05 will survive final payment, or termination of the Contract. Nothing herein shall preclude Contractor from retaining copies of the Contract Documents for record purposes.

ARTICLE 4 – COMMENCEMENT AND PROGRESS OF THE WORK

4.01 Commencement of Contract Times; Notice to Proceed

A. The Contract Times will commence to run on the thirtieth day after the Effective Date of the Contract or, if a Notice to Proceed is given, on the day indicated in the Notice to Proceed. A Notice to Proceed may be given at any time within 30 days after the Effective Date of the Contract. In no event will the Contract Times commence to run later than the sixtieth day after the day of Bid opening or the thirtieth day after the Effective Date of the Contract, whichever date is earlier.

4.02 Starting the Work

A. Contractor shall start to perform the Work on the date when the Contract Times commence to run. No Work shall be done at the Site prior to such date.

4.03 Reference Points

A. Owner shall provide engineering surveys to establish reference points for construction which in Engineer's judgment are necessary to enable Contractor to proceed with the Work. Contractor shall be responsible for laying out the Work, shall protect and preserve the established reference points and property monuments, and shall make no changes or relocations without the prior written approval of Owner. Contractor shall report to Engineer whenever any reference point or property monument is lost or destroyed or requires relocation because of necessary changes in grades or locations, and shall be responsible for the accurate replacement or relocation of such reference points or property monuments by professionally qualified personnel.

4.04 Progress Schedule

- A. Contractor shall adhere to the Progress Schedule established in accordance with Paragraph 2.05 as it may be adjusted from time to time as provided below.
 - Contractor shall submit to Engineer for acceptance (to the extent indicated in Paragraph 2.05) proposed adjustments in the Progress Schedule that will not result in changing the Contract Times.

- 2. Proposed adjustments in the Progress Schedule that will change the Contract Times shall be submitted in accordance with the requirements of Article 11.
- B. Contractor shall carry on the Work and adhere to the Progress Schedule during all disputes or disagreements with Owner. No Work shall be delayed or postponed pending resolution of any disputes or disagreements, or during any appeal process, except as permitted by Paragraph 16.04, or as Owner and Contractor may otherwise agree in writing.

4.05 Delays in Contractor's Progress

- A. If Owner, Engineer, or anyone for whom Owner is responsible, delays, disrupts, or interferes with the performance or progress of the Work, then Contractor shall be entitled to an equitable adjustment in the Contract Times and Contract Price. Contractor's entitlement to an adjustment of the Contract Times is conditioned on such adjustment being essential to Contractor's ability to complete the Work within the Contract Times.
- B. Contractor shall not be entitled to an adjustment in Contract Price or Contract Times for delay, disruption, or interference caused by or within the control of Contractor. Delay, disruption, and interference attributable to and within the control of a Subcontractor or Supplier shall be deemed to be within the control of Contractor.
- C. If Contractor's performance or progress is delayed, disrupted, or interfered with by unanticipated causes not the fault of and beyond the control of Owner, Contractor, and those for which they are responsible, then Contractor shall be entitled to an equitable adjustment in Contract Times. Contractor's entitlement to an adjustment of the Contract Times is conditioned on such adjustment being essential to Contractor's ability to complete the Work within the Contract Times. Such an adjustment shall be Contractor's sole and exclusive remedy for the delays, disruption, and interference described in this paragraph. Causes of delay, disruption, or interference that may give rise to an adjustment in Contract Times under this paragraph include but are not limited to the following:
 - 1. severe and unavoidable natural catastrophes such as fires, floods, epidemics, and earthquakes;
 - 2. abnormal weather conditions;
 - acts or failures to act of utility owners (other than those performing other work at or adjacent to the Site by arrangement with the Owner, as contemplated in Article 8);
 and
 - 4. acts of war or terrorism.
- Delays, disruption, and interference to the performance or progress of the Work resulting from the existence of a differing subsurface or physical condition, an Underground Facility that was not shown or indicated by the Contract Documents, or not shown or indicated with reasonable accuracy, and those resulting from Hazardous Environmental Conditions, are governed by Article 5.
- E. Paragraph 8.03 governs delays, disruption, and interference to the performance or progress of the Work resulting from the performance of certain other work at or adjacent to the Site.
- F. Contractor shall not be entitled to an adjustment in Contract Price or Contract Times for any delay, disruption, or interference if such delay is concurrent with a delay, disruption, or interference caused by or within the control of Contractor.

G. Contractor must submit any Change Proposal seeking an adjustment in Contract Price or Contract Times under this paragraph within 30 days of the commencement of the delaying, disrupting, or interfering event.

ARTICLE 5 – AVAILABILITY OF LANDS; SUBSURFACE AND PHYSICAL CONDITIONS; HAZARDOUS ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS

5.01 Availability of Lands

- A. Owner shall furnish the Site. Owner shall notify Contractor of any encumbrances or restrictions not of general application but specifically related to use of the Site with which Contractor must comply in performing the Work.
- B. Upon reasonable written request, Owner shall furnish Contractor with a current statement of record legal title and legal description of the lands upon which permanent improvements are to be made and Owner's interest therein as necessary for giving notice of or filing a mechanic's or construction lien against such lands in accordance with applicable Laws and Regulations.
- C. Contractor shall provide for all additional lands and access thereto that may be required for temporary construction facilities or storage of materials and equipment.

5.02 Use of Site and Other Areas

A. Limitation on Use of Site and Other Areas:

- 1. Contractor shall confine construction equipment, temporary construction facilities, the storage of materials and equipment, and the operations of workers to the Site, adjacent areas that Contractor has arranged to use through construction easements or otherwise, and other adjacent areas permitted by Laws and Regulations, and shall not unreasonably encumber the Site and such other adjacent areas with construction equipment or other materials or equipment. Contractor shall assume full responsibility for (a) damage to the Site; (b) damage to any such other adjacent areas used for Contractor's operations; (c) damage to any other adjacent land or areas; and (d) for injuries and losses sustained by the owners or occupants of any such land or areas; provided that such damage or injuries result from the performance of the Work or from other actions or conduct of the Contractor or those for which Contractor is responsible.
- 2. If a damage or injury claim is made by the owner or occupant of any such land or area because of the performance of the Work, or because of other actions or conduct of the Contractor or those for which Contractor is responsible, Contractor shall (a) take immediate corrective or remedial action as required by Paragraph 7.12, or otherwise; (b) promptly attempt to settle the claim as to all parties through negotiations with such owner or occupant, or otherwise resolve the claim by arbitration or other dispute resolution proceeding, or at law; and (c) to the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations, indemnify and hold harmless Owner and Engineer, and the officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants and subcontractors of each and any of them from and against any such claim, and against all costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating to any claim or action, legal or equitable, brought by any such owner or occupant against Owner, Engineer, or any other party indemnified hereunder to the extent caused directly or indirectly, in whole or in part

by, or based upon, Contractor's performance of the Work, or because of other actions or conduct of the Contractor or those for which Contractor is responsible.

- B. Removal of Debris During Performance of the Work: During the progress of the Work the Contractor shall keep the Site and other adjacent areas free from accumulations of waste materials, rubbish, and other debris. Removal and disposal of such waste materials, rubbish, and other debris shall conform to applicable Laws and Regulations.
- C. Cleaning: Prior to Substantial Completion of the Work Contractor shall clean the Site and the Work and make it ready for utilization by Owner. At the completion of the Work Contractor shall remove from the Site and adjacent areas all tools, appliances, construction equipment and machinery, and surplus materials and shall restore to original condition all property not designated for alteration by the Contract Documents.
- D. Loading of Structures: Contractor shall not load nor permit any part of any structure to be loaded in any manner that will endanger the structure, nor shall Contractor subject any part of the Work or adjacent structures or land to stresses or pressures that will endanger them.

5.03 Subsurface and Physical Conditions

- A. Reports and Drawings: The Supplementary Conditions identify:
 - those reports known to Owner of explorations and tests of subsurface conditions at or adjacent to the Site;
 - 2. those drawings known to Owner of physical conditions relating to existing surface or subsurface structures at the Site (except Underground Facilities); and
 - 3. Technical Data contained in such reports and drawings.
- B. Reliance by Contractor on Technical Data Authorized: Contractor may rely upon the accuracy of the Technical Data expressly identified in the Supplementary Conditions with respect to such reports and drawings, but such reports and drawings are not Contract Documents. If no such express identification has been made, then Contractor may rely upon the accuracy of the Technical Data (as defined in Article 1) contained in any geotechnical or environmental report prepared for the Project and made available to Contractor. Except for such reliance on Technical Data, Contractor may not rely upon or make any claim against Owner or Engineer, or any of their officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, or subcontractors, with respect to:
 - the completeness of such reports and drawings for Contractor's purposes, including, but not limited to, any aspects of the means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of construction to be employed by Contractor, and safety precautions and programs incident thereto; or
 - 2. other data, interpretations, opinions, and information contained in such reports or shown or indicated in such drawings; or
 - 3. any Contractor interpretation of or conclusion drawn from any Technical Data or any such other data, interpretations, opinions, or information.

5.04 Differing Subsurface or Physical Conditions

- A. Notice by Contractor: If Contractor believes that any subsurface or physical condition that is uncovered or revealed at the Site either:
 - 1. is of such a nature as to establish that any Technical Data on which Contractor is entitled to rely as provided in Paragraph 5.03 is materially inaccurate; or
 - 2. is of such a nature as to require a change in the Drawings or Specifications; or
 - 3. differs materially from that shown or indicated in the Contract Documents; or
 - is of an unusual nature, and differs materially from conditions ordinarily encountered and generally recognized as inherent in work of the character provided for in the Contract Documents;

then Contractor shall, promptly after becoming aware thereof and before further disturbing the subsurface or physical conditions or performing any Work in connection therewith (except in an emergency as required by Paragraph 7.15), notify Owner and Engineer in writing about such condition. Contractor shall not further disturb such condition or perform any Work in connection therewith (except with respect to an emergency) until receipt of a written statement permitting Contractor to do so.

- B. Engineer's Review: After receipt of written notice as required by the preceding paragraph, Engineer will promptly review the subsurface or physical condition in question; determine the necessity of Owner's obtaining additional exploration or tests with respect to the condition; conclude whether the condition falls within any one or more of the differing site condition categories in Paragraph 5.04.A above; obtain any pertinent cost or schedule information from Contractor; prepare recommendations to Owner regarding the Contractor's resumption of Work in connection with the subsurface or physical condition in question and the need for any change in the Drawings or Specifications; and advise Owner in writing of Engineer's findings, conclusions, and recommendations.
- C. Owner's Statement to Contractor Regarding Site Condition: After receipt of Engineer's written findings, conclusions, and recommendations, Owner shall issue a written statement to Contractor (with a copy to Engineer) regarding the subsurface or physical condition in question, addressing the resumption of Work in connection with such condition, indicating whether any change in the Drawings or Specifications will be made, and adopting or rejecting Engineer's written findings, conclusions, and recommendations, in whole or in part.
- D. Possible Price and Times Adjustments:
 - Contractor shall be entitled to an equitable adjustment in Contract Price or Contract
 Times, or both, to the extent that the existence of a differing subsurface or physical
 condition, or any related delay, disruption, or interference, causes an increase or
 decrease in Contractor's cost of, or time required for, performance of the Work;
 subject, however, to the following:
 - such condition must fall within any one or more of the categories described in Paragraph 5.04.A;
 - b. with respect to Work that is paid for on a unit price basis, any adjustment in Contract Price will be subject to the provisions of Paragraph 13.03; and,

- c. Contractor's entitlement to an adjustment of the Contract Times is conditioned on such adjustment being essential to Contractor's ability to complete the Work within the Contract Times.
- Contractor shall not be entitled to any adjustment in the Contract Price or Contract Times with respect to a subsurface or physical condition if:
 - Contractor knew of the existence of such condition at the time Contractor made a commitment to Owner with respect to Contract Price and Contract Times by the submission of a Bid or becoming bound under a negotiated contract, or otherwise; or
 - the existence of such condition reasonably could have been discovered or revealed as a result of any examination, investigation, exploration, test, or study of the Site and contiguous areas expressly required by the Bidding Requirements or Contract Documents to be conducted by or for Contractor prior to Contractor's making such commitment; or
 - c. Contractor failed to give the written notice as required by Paragraph 5.04.A.
- 3. If Owner and Contractor agree regarding Contractor's entitlement to and the amount or extent of any adjustment in the Contract Price or Contract Times, or both, then any such adjustment shall be set forth in a Change Order.
- 4. Contractor may submit a Change Proposal regarding its entitlement to or the amount or extent of any adjustment in the Contract Price or Contract Times, or both, no later than 30 days after Owner's issuance of the Owner's written statement to Contractor regarding the subsurface or physical condition in question.

5.05 Underground Facilities

- A. Contractor's Responsibilities: The information and data shown or indicated in the Contract Documents with respect to existing Underground Facilities at or adjacent to the Site is based on information and data furnished to Owner or Engineer by the owners of such Underground Facilities, including Owner, or by others. Unless it is otherwise expressly provided in the Supplementary Conditions:
 - 1. Owner and Engineer do not warrant or guarantee the accuracy or completeness of any such information or data provided by others; and
 - 2. the cost of all of the following will be included in the Contract Price, and Contractor shall have full responsibility for:
 - a. reviewing and checking all information and data regarding existing Underground Facilities at the Site;
 - b. locating all Underground Facilities shown or indicated in the Contract Documents as being at the Site;
 - c. coordination of the Work with the owners (including Owner) of such Underground Facilities, during construction; and
 - d. the safety and protection of all existing Underground Facilities at the Site, and repairing any damage thereto resulting from the Work.
- B. Notice by Contractor: If Contractor believes that an Underground Facility that is uncovered or revealed at the Site was not shown or indicated in the Contract Documents, or was not shown or indicated with reasonable accuracy, then Contractor shall, promptly after

becoming aware thereof and before further disturbing conditions affected thereby or performing any Work in connection therewith (except in an emergency as required by Paragraph 7.15), identify the owner of such Underground Facility and give written notice to that owner and to Owner and Engineer.

- C. Engineer's Review: Engineer will promptly review the Underground Facility and conclude whether such Underground Facility was not shown or indicated in the Contract Documents, or was not shown or indicated with reasonable accuracy; obtain any pertinent cost or schedule information from Contractor; prepare recommendations to Owner regarding the Contractor's resumption of Work in connection with the Underground Facility in question; determine the extent, if any, to which a change is required in the Drawings or Specifications to reflect and document the consequences of the existence or location of the Underground Facility; and advise Owner in writing of Engineer's findings, conclusions, and recommendations. During such time, Contractor shall be responsible for the safety and protection of such Underground Facility.
- D. Owner's Statement to Contractor Regarding Underground Facility: After receipt of Engineer's written findings, conclusions, and recommendations, Owner shall issue a written statement to Contractor (with a copy to Engineer) regarding the Underground Facility in question, addressing the resumption of Work in connection with such Underground Facility, indicating whether any change in the Drawings or Specifications will be made, and adopting or rejecting Engineer's written findings, conclusions, and recommendations in whole or in part.
- E. Possible Price and Times Adjustments:

()

- Contractor shall be entitled to an equitable adjustment in the Contract Price or Contract Times, or both, to the extent that any existing Underground Facility at the Site that was not shown or indicated in the Contract Documents, or was not shown or indicated with reasonable accuracy, or any related delay, disruption, or interference, causes an increase or decrease in Contractor's cost of, or time required for, performance of the Work; subject, however, to the following:
 - Contractor did not know of and could not reasonably have been expected to be aware of or to have anticipated the existence or actual location of the Underground Facility in question;
 - b. With respect to Work that is paid for on a unit price basis, any adjustment in Contract Price will be subject to the provisions of Paragraph 13.03;
 - Contractor's entitlement to an adjustment of the Contract Times is conditioned on such adjustment being essential to Contractor's ability to complete the Work within the Contract Times; and
 - d. Contractor gave the notice required in Paragraph 5.05.B.
- If Owner and Contractor agree regarding Contractor's entitlement to and the amount or extent of any adjustment in the Contract Price or Contract Times, or both, then any such adjustment shall be set forth in a Change Order.
- 3. Contractor may submit a Change Proposal regarding its entitlement to or the amount or extent of any adjustment in the Contract Price or Contract Times, or both, no later than 30 days after Owner's issuance of the Owner's written statement to Contractor regarding the Underground Facility in question.

- A. Reports and Drawings: The Supplementary Conditions identify:
 - 1. those reports and drawings known to Owner relating to Hazardous Environmental Conditions that have been identified at or adjacent to the Site; and
 - 2. Technical Data contained in such reports and drawings.
- B. Reliance by Contractor on Technical Data Authorized: Contractor may rely upon the accuracy of the Technical Data expressly identified in the Supplementary Conditions with respect to such reports and drawings, but such reports and drawings are not Contract Documents. If no such express identification has been made, then Contractor may rely on the accuracy of the Technical Data (as defined in Article 1) contained in any geotechnical or environmental report prepared for the Project and made available to Contractor. Except for such reliance on Technical Data, Contractor may not rely upon or make any claim against Owner or Engineer, or any of their officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, or subcontractors with respect to:
 - the completeness of such reports and drawings for Contractor's purposes, including, but not limited to, any aspects of the means, methods, techniques, sequences and procedures of construction to be employed by Contractor and safety precautions and programs incident thereto; or
 - 2. other data, interpretations, opinions and information contained in such reports or shown or indicated in such drawings; or
 - 3. any Contractor interpretation of or conclusion drawn from any Technical Data or any such other data, interpretations, opinions or information.
- C. Contractor shall not be responsible for removing or remediating any Hazardous Environmental Condition encountered, uncovered, or revealed at the Site unless such removal or remediation is expressly identified in the Contract Documents to be within the scope of the Work.
- D. Contractor shall be responsible for controlling, containing, and duly removing all Constituents of Concern brought to the Site by Contractor, Subcontractors, Suppliers, or anyone else for whom Contractor is responsible, and for any associated costs; and for the costs of removing and remediating any Hazardous Environmental Condition created by the presence of any such Constituents of Concern.
- E. If Contractor encounters, uncovers, or reveals a Hazardous Environmental Condition whose removal or remediation is not expressly identified in the Contract Documents as being within the scope of the Work, or if Contractor or anyone for whom Contractor is responsible creates a Hazardous Environmental Condition, then Contractor shall immediately: (1) secure or otherwise isolate such condition; (2) stop all Work in connection with such condition and in any area affected thereby (except in an emergency as required by Paragraph 7.15); and (3) notify Owner and Engineer (and promptly thereafter confirm such notice in writing). Owner shall promptly consult with Engineer concerning the necessity for Owner to retain a qualified expert to evaluate such condition or take corrective action, if any Promptly after consulting with Engineer, Owner shall take such actions as are necessary to permit Owner to timely obtain required permits and provide Contractor the written notice required by Paragraph 5.06.F. If Contractor or anyone for whom Contractor is responsible created the Hazardous Environmental Condition in question, then Owner may remove and remediate the Hazardous Environmental Condition, and impose a set-off against payments to account for the associated costs.

- F. Contractor shall not resume Work in connection with such Hazardous Environmental Condition or in any affected area until after Owner has obtained any required permits related thereto, and delivered written notice to Contractor either (1) specifying that such condition and any affected area is or has been rendered safe for the resumption of Work, or (2) specifying any special conditions under which such Work may be resumed safely.
- G. If Owner and Contractor cannot agree as to entitlement to or on the amount or extent, if any, of any adjustment in Contract Price or Contract Times, or both, as a result of such Work stoppage or such special conditions under which Work is agreed to be resumed by Contractor, then within 30 days of Owner's written notice regarding the resumption of Work, Contractor may submit a Change Proposal, or Owner may impose a set-off.
- H. If after receipt of such written notice Contractor does not agree to resume such Work based on a reasonable belief it is unsafe, or does not agree to resume such Work under such special conditions, then Owner may order the portion of the Work that is in the area affected by such condition to be deleted from the Work, following the contractual change procedures in Article 11. Owner may have such deleted portion of the Work performed by Owner's own forces or others in accordance with Article 8.
- I. To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations, Owner shall indemnify and hold harmless Contractor, Subcontractors, and Engineer, and the officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, and subcontractors of each and any of them from and against all claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating to a Hazardous Environmental Condition, provided that such Hazardous Environmental Condition (1) was not shown or indicated in the Drawings, Specifications, or other Contract Documents, identified as Technical Data entitled to limited reliance pursuant to Paragraph 5.06.B, or identified in the Contract Documents to be included within the scope of the Work, and (2) was not created by Contractor or by anyone for whom Contractor is responsible. Nothing in this Paragraph 5.06.I shall obligate Owner to indemnify any individual or entity from and against the consequences of that individual's or entity's own negligence.
- J. To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations, Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless Owner and Engineer, and the officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, and subcontractors of each and any of them from and against all claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating to the failure to control, contain, or remove a Constituent of Concern brought to the Site by Contractor or by anyone for whom Contractor is responsible, or to a Hazardous Environmental Condition created by Contractor or by anyone for whom Contractor is responsible. Nothing in this Paragraph 5.06.J shall obligate Contractor to indemnify any individual or entity from and against the consequences of that individual's or entity's own negligence.
- K. The provisions of Paragraphs 5.03, 5.04, and 5.05 do not apply to the presence of Constituents of Concern or to a Hazardous Environmental Condition uncovered or revealed at the Site.

ARTICLE 6 - BONDS AND INSURANCE

6.01 Performance, Payment, and Other Bonds

- A. Contractor shall furnish a performance bond and a payment bond, each in an amount at least equal to the Contract Price, as security for the faithful performance and payment of all of Contractor's obligations under the Contract. These bonds shall remain in effect until one year after the date when final payment becomes due or until completion of the correction period specified in Paragraph 15.08, whichever is later, except as provided otherwise by Laws or Regulations, the Supplementary Conditions, or other specific provisions of the Contract. Contractor shall also furnish such other bonds as are required by the Supplementary Conditions or other specific provisions of the Contract.
- B. All bonds shall be in the form prescribed by the Contract except as provided otherwise by Laws or Regulations, and shall be executed by such sureties as are named in "Companies Holding Certificates of Authority as Acceptable Sureties on Federal Bonds and as Acceptable Reinsuring Companies" as published in Circular 570 (as amended and supplemented) by the Financial Management Service, Surety Bond Branch, U.S. Department of the Treasury. A bond signed by an agent or attorney-in-fact must be accompanied by a certified copy of that individual's authority to bind the surety. The evidence of authority shall show that it is effective on the date the agent or attorney-in-fact signed the accompanying bond.
- C. Contractor shall obtain the required bonds from surety companies that are duly licensed or authorized in the jurisdiction in which the Project is located to issue bonds in the required amounts.
- D. If the surety on a bond furnished by Contractor is declared bankrupt or becomes insolvent, or its right to do business is terminated in any state or jurisdiction where any part of the Project is located, or the surety ceases to meet the requirements above, then Contractor shall promptly notify Owner and Engineer and shall, within 20 days after the event giving rise to such notification, provide another bond and surety, both of which shall comply with the bond and surety requirements above.
- E. If Contractor has failed to obtain a required bond, Owner may exclude the Contractor from the Site and exercise Owner's termination rights under Article 16.
- F. Upon request, Owner shall provide a copy of the payment bond to any Subcontractor, Supplier, or other person or entity claiming to have furnished labor or materials used in the performance of the Work.

6.02 Insurance—General Provisions

- A. Owner and Contractor shall obtain and maintain insurance as required in this Article and in the Supplementary Conditions.
- B. All insurance required by the Contract to be purchased and maintained by Owner or Contractor shall be obtained from insurance companies that are duly licensed or authorized, in the state or jurisdiction in which the Project is located, to issue insurance policies for the required limits and coverages. Unless a different standard is indicated in the Supplementary Conditions, all companies that provide insurance policies required under this Contract shall have an A.M. Best rating of A-VII or better.
- C. Contractor shall deliver to Owner, with copies to each named insured and additional insured (as identified in this Article, in the Supplementary Conditions, or elsewhere in the Contract), certificates of insurance establishing that Contractor has obtained and is

maintaining the policies, coverages, and endorsements required by the Contract. Upon request by Owner or any other insured, Contractor shall also furnish other evidence of such required insurance, including but not limited to copies of policies and endorsements, and documentation of applicable self-insured retentions and deductibles. Contractor may block out (redact) any confidential premium or pricing information contained in any policy or endorsement furnished under this provision.

- D. Owner shall deliver to Contractor, with copies to each named insured and additional insured (as identified in this Article, the Supplementary Conditions, or elsewhere in the Contract), certificates of insurance establishing that Owner has obtained and is maintaining the policies, coverages, and endorsements required of Owner by the Contract (if any). Upon request by Contractor or any other insured, Owner shall also provide other evidence of such required insurance (if any), including but not limited to copies of policies and endorsements, and documentation of applicable self-insured retentions and deductibles. Owner may block out (redact) any confidential premium or pricing information contained in any policy or endorsement furnished under this provision.
- E. Failure of Owner or Contractor to demand such certificates or other evidence of the other party's full compliance with these insurance requirements, or failure of Owner or Contractor to identify a deficiency in compliance from the evidence provided, shall not be construed as a waiver of the other party's obligation to obtain and maintain such insurance.
- F. If either party does not purchase or maintain all of the insurance required of such party by the Contract, such party shall notify the other party in writing of such failure to purchase prior to the start of the Work, or of such failure to maintain prior to any change in the required coverage.
- G. If Contractor has failed to obtain and maintain required insurance, Owner may exclude the Contractor from the Site, impose an appropriate set-off against payment, and exercise Owner's termination rights under Article 16.
- H. Without prejudice to any other right or remedy, if a party has failed to obtain required insurance, the other party may elect to obtain equivalent insurance to protect such other party's interests at the expense of the party who was required to provide such coverage, and the Contract Price shall be adjusted accordingly.
- I. Owner does not represent that insurance coverage and limits established in this Contract necessarily will be adequate to protect Contractor or Contractor's interests.
- J. The insurance and insurance limits required herein shall not be deemed as a limitation on Contractor's liability under the indemnities granted to Owner and other individuals and entities in the Contract.

6.03 Contractor's Insurance

- A. Workers' Compensation: Contractor shall purchase and maintain workers' compensation and employer's liability insurance for:
 - claims under workers' compensation, disability benefits, and other similar employee benefit acts.
 - 2. United States Longshoreman and Harbor Workers' Compensation Act and Jones Act coverage (if applicable).
 - claims for damages because of bodily injury, occupational sickness or disease, or death
 of Contractor's employees (by stop-gap endorsement in monopolist worker's
 compensation states).

- 4. Foreign voluntary worker compensation (if applicable).
- B. Commercial General Liability—Claims Covered: Contractor shall purchase and maintain commercial general liability insurance, covering all operations by or on behalf of Contractor, on an occurrence basis, against:
 - 1. claims for damages because of bodily injury, sickness or disease, or death of any person other than Contractor's employees.
 - 2. claims for damages insured by reasonably available personal injury liability coverage.
 - 3. claims for damages, other than to the Work itself, because of injury to or destruction of tangible property wherever located, including loss of use resulting therefrom.
- C. Commercial General Liability—Form and Content: Contractor's commercial liability policy shall be written on a 1996 (or later) ISO commercial general liability form (occurrence form) and include the following coverages and endorsements:
 - 1. Products and completed operations coverage:
 - a. Such insurance shall be maintained for three years after final payment.
 - b. Contractor shall furnish Owner and each other additional insured (as identified in the Supplementary Conditions or elsewhere in the Contract) evidence of continuation of such insurance at final payment and three years thereafter.
 - 2. Blanket contractual liability coverage, to the extent permitted by law, including but not limited to coverage of Contractor's contractual indemnity obligations in Paragraph 7.18.
 - Broad form property damage coverage.
 - 4. Severability of interest.
 - 5. Underground, explosion, and collapse coverage.
 - 6. Personal injury coverage.
 - Additional insured endorsements that include both ongoing operations and products and completed operations coverage through ISO Endorsements CG 20 10 10 01 and CG 20 37 10 01 (together); or CG 20 10 07 04 and CG 20 37 07 04 (together); or their equivalent.
 - 8. For design professional additional insureds, ISO Endorsement CG 20 32 07 04, "Additional Insured—Engineers, Architects or Surveyors Not Engaged by the Named Insured" or its equivalent.
- D. Automobile liability: Contractor shall purchase and maintain automobile liability insurance against claims for damages because of bodily injury or death of any person or property damage arising out of the ownership, maintenance, or use of any motor vehicle. The automobile liability policy shall be written on an occurrence basis.
- E. Umbrella or excess liability: Contractor shall purchase and maintain umbrella or excess liability insurance written over the underlying employer's liability, commercial general liability, and automobile liability insurance described in the paragraphs above. Subject to industry-standard exclusions, the coverage afforded shall follow form as to each and every one of the underlying policies.
- F. Contractor's pollution liability insurance: Contractor shall purchase and maintain a policy covering third-party injury and property damage claims, including clean-up costs, as a result

- of pollution conditions arising from Contractor's operations and completed operations. This insurance shall be maintained for no less than three years after final completion.
- G. Additional insureds: The Contractor's commercial general liability, automobile liability, umbrella or excess, and pollution liability policies shall include and list as additional insureds Owner and Engineer, and any individuals or entities identified in the Supplementary Conditions; include coverage for the respective officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, and subcontractors of each and any of all such additional insureds; and the insurance afforded to these additional insureds shall provide primary coverage for all claims covered thereby (including as applicable those arising from both ongoing and completed operations) on a non-contributory basis. Contractor shall obtain all necessary endorsements to support these requirements.
- H. Contractor's professional liability insurance: If Contractor will provide or furnish professional services under this Contract, through a delegation of professional design services or otherwise, then Contractor shall be responsible for purchasing and maintaining applicable professional liability insurance. This insurance shall provide protection against claims arising out of performance of professional design or related services, and caused by a negligent error, omission, or act for which the insured party is legally liable. It shall be maintained throughout the duration of the Contract and for a minimum of two years after Substantial Completion. If such professional design services are performed by a Subcontractor, and not by Contractor itself, then the requirements of this paragraph may be satisfied through the purchasing and maintenance of such insurance by such Subcontractor.
- I. General provisions: The policies of insurance required by this Paragraph 6.03 shall:
 - 1. include at least the specific coverages provided in this Article.
 - 2. be written for not less than the limits of liability provided in this Article and in the Supplementary Conditions, or required by Laws or Regulations, whichever is greater.
 - contain a provision or endorsement that the coverage afforded will not be canceled, materially changed, or renewal refused until at least 10 days prior written notice has been given to Contractor. Within three days of receipt of any such written notice, Contractor shall provide a copy of the notice to Owner, Engineer, and each other insured under the policy.
 - 4. remain in effect at least until final payment (and longer if expressly required in this Article) and at all times thereafter when Contractor may be correcting, removing, or replacing defective Work as a warranty or correction obligation, or otherwise, or returning to the Site to conduct other tasks arising from the Contract Documents.
 - 5. be appropriate for the Work being performed and provide protection from claims that may arise out of or result from Contractor's performance of the Work and Contractor's other obligations under the Contract Documents, whether it is to be performed by Contractor, any Subcontractor or Supplier, or by anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them to perform any of the Work, or by anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable.
- The coverage requirements for specific policies of insurance must be met by such policies, and not by reference to excess or umbrella insurance provided in other policies.

6.04 Owner's Liability Insurance

- A. In addition to the insurance required to be provided by Contractor under Paragraph 6.03, Owner, at Owner's option, may purchase and maintain at Owner's expense Owner's own liability insurance as will protect Owner against claims which may arise from operations under the Contract Documents.
- B. Owner's liability policies, if any, operate separately and independently from policies required to be provided by Contractor, and Contractor cannot rely upon Owner's liability policies for any of Contractor's obligations to the Owner, Engineer, or third parties.

6.05 Property Insurance

- A. Builder's Risk: Unless otherwise provided in the Supplementary Conditions, Contractor shall purchase and maintain builder's risk insurance upon the Work on a completed value basis, in the amount of the full insurable replacement cost thereof (subject to such deductible amounts as may be provided in the Supplementary Conditions or required by Laws and Regulations). This insurance shall:
 - include the Owner and Contractor as named insureds, and all Subcontractors, and any individuals or entities required by the Supplementary Conditions to be insured under such builder's risk policy, as insureds or named insureds. For purposes of the remainder of this Paragraph 6.05, Paragraphs 6.06 and 6.07, and any corresponding Supplementary Conditions, the parties required to be insured shall collectively be referred to as "insureds."
 - 2. be written on a builder's risk "all risk" policy form that shall at least include insurance for physical loss or damage to the Work, temporary buildings, falsework, and materials and equipment in transit, and shall insure against at least the following perils or causes of loss: fire; lightning; windstorm; riot; civil commotion; terrorism; vehicle impact; aircraft; smoke; theft; vandalism and malicious mischief; mechanical breakdown, boiler explosion, and artificially generated electric current; earthquake; volcanic activity, and other earth movement; flood; collapse; explosion; debris removal; demolition occasioned by enforcement of Laws and Regulations; water damage (other than that caused by flood); and such other perils or causes of loss as may be specifically required by the Supplementary Conditions. If insurance against mechanical breakdown, boiler explosion, and artificially generated electric current; earthquake; volcanic activity, and other earth movement; or flood, are not commercially available under builder's risk policies, by endorsement or otherwise, such insurance may be provided through other insurance policies acceptable to Owner and Contractor.
 - 3. cover, as insured property, at least the following: (a) the Work and all materials, supplies, machinery, apparatus, equipment, fixtures, and other property of a similar nature that are to be incorporated into or used in the preparation, fabrication, construction, erection, or completion of the Work, including Owner-furnished or assigned property; (b) spare parts inventory required within the scope of the Contract; and (c) temporary works which are not intended to form part of the permanent constructed Work but which are intended to provide working access to the Site, or to the Work under construction, or which are intended to provide temporary support for the Work under construction, including scaffolding, form work, fences, shoring, falsework, and temporary structures.
 - 4. cover expenses incurred in the repair or replacement of any insured property (including but not limited to fees and charges of engineers and architects).

- 5. extend to cover damage or loss to insured property while in temporary storage at the Site or in a storage location outside the Site (but not including property stored at the premises of a manufacturer or Supplier).
- 6. extend to cover damage or loss to insured property while in transit.
- 7. allow for partial occupation or use of the Work by Owner, such that those portions of the Work that are not yet occupied or used by Owner shall remain covered by the builder's risk insurance.
- 8. allow for the waiver of the insurer's subrogation rights, as set forth below.
- provide primary coverage for all losses and damages caused by the perils or causes of loss covered.
- 10. not include a co-insurance clause.
- 11. include an exception for ensuing losses from physical damage or loss with respect to any defective workmanship, design, or materials exclusions.
- 12. include performance/hot testing and start-up.
- 13. be maintained in effect, subject to the provisions herein regarding Substantial Completion and partial occupancy or use of the Work by Owner, until the Work is complete.
- B. Notice of Cancellation or Change: All the policies of insurance (and the certificates or other evidence thereof) required to be purchased and maintained in accordance with this Paragraph 6.05 will contain a provision or endorsement that the coverage afforded will not be canceled or materially changed or renewal refused until at least 10 days prior written notice has been given to the purchasing policyholder. Within three days of receipt of any such written notice, the purchasing policyholder shall provide a copy of the notice to each other insured.
- C. Deductibles: The purchaser of any required builder's risk or property insurance shall pay for costs not covered because of the application of a policy deductible.
- D. Partial Occupancy or Use by Owner: If Owner will occupy or use a portion or portions of the Work prior to Substantial Completion of all the Work as provided in Paragraph 15.04, then Owner (directly, if it is the purchaser of the builder's risk policy, or through Contractor) will provide notice of such occupancy or use to the builder's risk insurer. The builder's risk insurence shall not be canceled or permitted to lapse on account of any such partial use or occupancy; rather, those portions of the Work that are occupied or used by Owner may come off the builder's risk policy, while those portions of the Work not yet occupied or used by Owner shall remain covered by the builder's risk insurance.
- E. Additional Insurance: If Contractor elects to obtain other special insurance to be included in or supplement the builder's risk or property insurance policies provided under this Paragraph 6.05, it may do so at Contractor's expense.
- F. Insurance of Other Property: If the express insurance provisions of the Contract do not require or address the insurance of a property item or interest, such as tools, construction equipment, or other personal property owned by Contractor, a Subcontractor, or an employee of Contractor or a Subcontractor, then the entity or individual owning such property item will be responsible for deciding whether to insure it, and if so in what amount.

6.06 Waiver of Rights

- All policies purchased in accordance with Paragraph 6.05, expressly including the builder's risk policy, shall contain provisions to the effect that in the event of payment of any loss or damage the insurers will have no rights of recovery against any insureds thereunder, or against Engineer or its consultants, or their officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, or subcontractors. Owner and Contractor waive all rights against each other and the respective officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, and subcontractors of each and any of them, for all losses and damages caused by, arising out of, or resulting from any of the perils or causes of loss covered by such policies and any other property insurance applicable to the Work; and, in addition, waive all such rights against Engineer, its consultants, all Subcontractors, all individuals or entities identified in the Supplementary Conditions as insureds, and the officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, and subcontractors of each and any of them, under such policies for losses and damages so caused. None of the above waivers shall extend to the rights that any party making such waiver may have to the proceeds of insurance held by Owner or Contractor as trustee or fiduciary, or otherwise payable under any policy so issued.
- B. Owner waives all rights against Contractor, Subcontractors, and Engineer, and the officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants and subcontractors of each and any of them, for:
 - loss due to business interruption, loss of use, or other consequential loss extending beyond direct physical loss or damage to Owner's property or the Work caused by, arising out of, or resulting from fire or other perils whether or not insured by Owner; and
 - loss or damage to the completed Project or part thereof caused by, arising out of, or resulting from fire or other insured peril or cause of loss covered by any property insurance maintained on the completed Project or part thereof by Owner during partial occupancy or use pursuant to Paragraph 15.04, after Substantial Completion pursuant to Paragraph 15.03, or after final payment pursuant to Paragraph 15.06.
- C. Any insurance policy maintained by Owner covering any loss, damage or consequential loss referred to in Paragraph 6.06.B shall contain provisions to the effect that in the event of payment of any such loss, damage, or consequential loss, the insurers will have no rights of recovery against Contractor, Subcontractors, or Engineer, or the officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, or subcontractors of each and any of them.
- D. Contractor shall be responsible for assuring that the agreement under which a Subcontractor performs a portion of the Work contains provisions whereby the Subcontractor waives all rights against Owner, Contractor, all individuals or entities identified in the Supplementary Conditions as insureds, the Engineer and its consultants, and the officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, and subcontractors of each and any of them, for all losses and damages caused by, arising out of, relating to, or resulting from any of the perils or causes of loss covered by builder's risk insurance and any other property insurance applicable to the Work.
- 6.07 Receipt and Application of Property Insurance Proceeds
 - A. Any insured loss under the builder's risk and other policies of insurance required by Paragraph 6.05 will be adjusted and settled with the named insured that purchased the

- policy. Such named insured shall act as fiduciary for the other insureds, and give notice to such other insureds that adjustment and settlement of a claim is in progress. Any other insured may state its position regarding a claim for insured loss in writing within 15 days after notice of such claim.
- B. Proceeds for such insured losses may be made payable by the insurer either jointly to multiple insureds, or to the named insured that purchased the policy in its own right and as fiduciary for other insureds, subject to the requirements of any applicable mortgage clause. A named insured receiving insurance proceeds under the builder's risk and other policies of insurance required by Paragraph 6.05 shall distribute such proceeds in accordance with such agreement as the parties in interest may reach, or as otherwise required under the dispute resolution provisions of this Contract or applicable Laws and Regulations.
- C. If no other special agreement is reached, the damaged Work shall be repaired or replaced, the money so received applied on account thereof, and the Work and the cost thereof covered by Change Order, if needed.

ARTICLE 7 – CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES

7.01 Supervision and Superintendence

- A. Contractor shall supervise, inspect, and direct the Work competently and efficiently, devoting such attention thereto and applying such skills and expertise as may be necessary to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents. Contractor shall be solely responsible for the means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of construction.
- B. At all times during the progress of the Work, Contractor shall assign a competent resident superintendent who shall not be replaced without written notice to Owner and Engineer except under extraordinary circumstances.

7.02 Labor; Working Hours

- A. Contractor shall provide competent, suitably qualified personnel to survey and lay out the Work and perform construction as required by the Contract Documents. Contractor shall at all times maintain good discipline and order at the Site.
- B. Except as otherwise required for the safety or protection of persons or the Work or property at the Site or adjacent thereto, and except as otherwise stated in the Contract Documents, all Work at the Site shall be performed during regular working hours, Monday through Friday. Contractor will not perform Work on a Saturday, Sunday, or any legal holiday. Contractor may perform Work outside regular working hours or on Saturdays, Sundays, or legal holidays only with Owner's written consent, which will not be unreasonably withheld.

7.03 Services, Materials, and Equipment

- A. Unless otherwise specified in the Contract Documents, Contractor shall provide and assume full responsibility for all services, materials, equipment, labor, transportation, construction equipment and machinery, tools, appliances, fuel, power, light, heat, telephone, water, sanitary facilities, temporary facilities, and all other facilities and incidentals necessary for the performance, testing, start up, and completion of the Work, whether or not such items are specifically called for in the Contract Documents.
- B. All materials and equipment incorporated into the Work shall be of good quality and new, except as otherwise provided in the Contract Documents. All special warranties and

- guarantees required by the Specifications shall expressly run to the benefit of Owner. If required by Engineer, Contractor shall furnish satisfactory evidence (including reports of required tests) as to the source, kind, and quality of materials and equipment.
- C. All materials and equipment shall be stored, applied, installed, connected, erected, protected, used, cleaned, and conditioned in accordance with instructions of the applicable Supplier, except as otherwise may be provided in the Contract Documents.

7.04 "Or Equals"

- A. Whenever an item of material or equipment is specified or described in the Contract Documents by using the name of a proprietary item or the name of a particular Supplier, the Contract Price has been based upon Contractor furnishing such item as specified. The specification or description of such an item is intended to establish the type, function, appearance, and quality required. Unless the specification or description contains or is followed by words reading that no like, equivalent, or "or equal" item is permitted, Contractor may request that Engineer authorize the use of other items of material or equipment, or items from other proposed suppliers under the circumstances described below.
 - 1. If Engineer in its sole discretion determines that an item of material or equipment proposed by Contractor is functionally equal to that named and sufficiently similar so that no change in related Work will be required, Engineer shall deem it an "or equal" item. For the purposes of this paragraph, a proposed item of material or equipment will be considered functionally equal to an item so named if:
 - a. in the exercise of reasonable judgment Engineer determines that:
 - 1) it is at least equal in materials of construction, quality, durability, appearance, strength, and design characteristics;
 - 2) it will reliably perform at least equally well the function and achieve the results imposed by the design concept of the completed Project as a functioning whole;
 - it has a proven record of performance and availability of responsive service;
 and
 - 4) it is not objectionable to Owner.
 - b. Contractor certifies that, if approved and incorporated into the Work:
 - there will be no increase in cost to the Owner or increase in Contract Times;
 and
 - it will conform substantially to the detailed requirements of the item named in the Contract Documents.
- B. *Contractor's Expense*: Contractor shall provide all data in support of any proposed "or equal" item at Contractor's expense.
- C. Engineer's Evaluation and Determination: Engineer will be allowed a reasonable time to evaluate each "or-equal" request. Engineer may require Contractor to furnish additional data about the proposed "or-equal" item. Engineer will be the sole judge of acceptability. No "or-equal" item will be ordered, furnished, installed, or utilized until Engineer's review is complete and Engineer determines that the proposed item is an "or-equal", which will be evidenced by an approved Shop Drawing or other written communication. Engineer will advise Contractor in writing of any negative determination.

- D. Effect of Engineer's Determination: Neither approval nor denial of an "or-equal" request shall result in any change in Contract Price. The Engineer's denial of an "or-equal" request shall be final and binding, and may not be reversed through an appeal under any provision of the Contract Documents.
- E. Treatment as a Substitution Request: If Engineer determines that an item of material or equipment proposed by Contractor does not qualify as an "or-equal" item, Contractor may request that Engineer considered the proposed item as a substitute pursuant to Paragraph 7.05.

7.05 Substitutes

- A. Unless the specification or description of an item of material or equipment required to be furnished under the Contract Documents contains or is followed by words reading that no substitution is permitted, Contractor may request that Engineer authorize the use of other items of material or equipment under the circumstances described below. To the extent possible such requests shall be made before commencement of related construction at the Site.
 - Contractor shall submit sufficient information as provided below to allow Engineer to determine if the item of material or equipment proposed is functionally equivalent to that named and an acceptable substitute therefor. Engineer will not accept requests for review of proposed substitute items of material or equipment from anyone other than Contractor.
 - 2. The requirements for review by Engineer will be as set forth in Paragraph 7.05.B, as supplemented by the Specifications, and as Engineer may decide is appropriate under the circumstances.
 - Contractor shall make written application to Engineer for review of a proposed substitute item of material or equipment that Contractor seeks to furnish or use. The application:
 - a. shall certify that the proposed substitute item will:
 - 1) perform adequately the functions and achieve the results called for by the general design,
 - be similar in substance to that specified, and
 - 3) be suited to the same use as that specified.

b. will state:

- the extent, if any, to which the use of the proposed substitute item will necessitate a change in Contract Times,
- 2) whether use of the proposed substitute item in the Work will require a change in any of the Contract Documents (or in the provisions of any other direct contract with Owner for other work on the Project) to adapt the design to the proposed substitute item, and
- 3) whether incorporation or use of the proposed substitute item in connection with the Work is subject to payment of any license fee or royalty.

c. will identify:

1) all variations of the proposed substitute item from that specified, and

- 2) available engineering, sales, maintenance, repair, and replacement services.
- d. shall contain an itemized estimate of all costs or credits that will result directly or indirectly from use of such substitute item, including but not limited to changes in Contract Price, shared savings, costs of redesign, and claims of other contractors affected by any resulting change.
- B. Engineer's Evaluation and Determination: Engineer will be allowed a reasonable time to evaluate each substitute request, and to obtain comments and direction from Owner. Engineer may require Contractor to furnish additional data about the proposed substitute item. Engineer will be the sole judge of acceptability. No substitute will be ordered, furnished, installed, or utilized until Engineer's review is complete and Engineer determines that the proposed item is an acceptable substitute. Engineer's determination will be evidenced by a Field Order or a proposed Change Order accounting for the substitution itself and all related impacts, including changes in Contract Price or Contract Times. Engineer will advise Contractor in writing of any negative determination.
- C. Special Guarantee: Owner may require Contractor to furnish at Contractor's expense a special performance guarantee or other surety with respect to any substitute.
- D. Reimbursement of Engineer's Cost: Engineer will record Engineer's costs in evaluating a substitute proposed or submitted by Contractor. Whether or not Engineer approves a substitute so proposed or submitted by Contractor, Contractor shall reimburse Owner for the reasonable charges of Engineer for evaluating each such proposed substitute. Contractor shall also reimburse Owner for the reasonable charges of Engineer for making changes in the Contract Documents (or in the provisions of any other direct contract with Owner) resulting from the acceptance of each proposed substitute.
- E. Contractor's Expense: Contractor shall provide all data in support of any proposed substitute at Contractor's expense.
- F. Effect of Engineer's Determination: If Engineer approves the substitution request, Contractor shall execute the proposed Change Order and proceed with the substitution. The Engineer's denial of a substitution request shall be final and binding, and may not be reversed through an appeal under any provision of the Contract Documents. Contractor may challenge the scope of reimbursement costs imposed under Paragraph 7.05.D, by timely submittal of a Change Proposal.

7.06 Concerning Subcontractors, Suppliers, and Others

- A. Contractor may retain Subcontractors and Suppliers for the performance of parts of the Work. Such Subcontractors and Suppliers must be acceptable to Owner.
- B. Contractor shall retain specific Subcontractors, Suppliers, or other individuals or entities for the performance of designated parts of the Work if required by the Contract to do so.
- C. Subsequent to the submittal of Contractor's Bid or final negotiation of the terms of the Contract, Owner may not require Contractor to retain any Subcontractor, Supplier, or other individual or entity to furnish or perform any of the Work against which Contractor has reasonable objection.
- D. Prior to entry into any binding subcontract or purchase order, Contractor shall submit to Owner the identity of the proposed Subcontractor or Supplier (unless Owner has already deemed such proposed Subcontractor or Supplier acceptable, during the bidding process or otherwise). Such proposed Subcontractor or Supplier shall be deemed acceptable to Owner unless Owner raises a substantive, reasonable objection within five days.

- E. Owner may require the replacement of any Subcontractor, Supplier, or other individual or entity retained by Contractor to perform any part of the Work. Owner also may require Contractor to retain specific replacements; provided, however, that Owner may not require a replacement to which Contractor has a reasonable objection. If Contractor has submitted the identity of certain Subcontractors, Suppliers, or other individuals or entities for acceptance by Owner, and Owner has accepted it (either in writing or by failing to make written objection thereto), then Owner may subsequently revoke the acceptance of any such Subcontractor, Supplier, or other individual or entity so identified solely on the basis of substantive, reasonable objection after due investigation. Contractor shall submit an acceptable replacement for the rejected Subcontractor, Supplier, or other individual or entity.
- F. If Owner requires the replacement of any Subcontractor, Supplier, or other individual or entity retained by Contractor to perform any part of the Work, then Contractor shall be entitled to an adjustment in Contract Price or Contract Times, or both, with respect to the replacement; and Contractor shall initiate a Change Proposal for such adjustment within 30 days of Owner's requirement of replacement.
- G. No acceptance by Owner of any such Subcontractor, Supplier, or other individual or entity, whether initially or as a replacement, shall constitute a waiver of the right of Owner to the completion of the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.
- H. On a monthly basis Contractor shall submit to Engineer a complete list of all Subcontractors and Suppliers having a direct contract with Contractor, and of all other Subcontractors and Suppliers known to Contractor at the time of submittal.
- Contractor shall be fully responsible to Owner and Engineer for all acts and omissions of the Subcontractors, Suppliers, and other individuals or entities performing or furnishing any of the Work just as Contractor is responsible for Contractor's own acts and omissions.
- Contractor shall be solely responsible for scheduling and coordinating the work of Subcontractors, Suppliers, and all other individuals or entities performing or furnishing any of the Work.
- K. Contractor shall restrict all Subcontractors, Suppliers, and such other individuals or entities performing or furnishing any of the Work from communicating with Engineer or Owner, except through Contractor or in case of an emergency, or as otherwise expressly allowed herein.
- L. The divisions and sections of the Specifications and the identifications of any Drawings shall not control Contractor in dividing the Work among Subcontractors or Suppliers or delineating the Work to be performed by any specific trade.
- M. All Work performed for Contractor by a Subcontractor or Supplier shall be pursuant to an appropriate contractual agreement that specifically binds the Subcontractor or Supplier to the applicable terms and conditions of the Contract Documents for the benefit of Owner and Engineer.
- N. Owner may furnish to any Subcontractor or Supplier, to the extent practicable, information about amounts paid to Contractor on account of Work performed for Contractor by the particular Subcontractor or Supplier.

- O. Nothing in the Contract Documents:
 - shall create for the benefit of any such Subcontractor, Supplier, or other individual or entity any contractual relationship between Owner or Engineer and any such Subcontractor, Supplier, or other individual or entity; nor
 - 2. shall create any obligation on the part of Owner or Engineer to pay or to see to the payment of any money due any such Subcontractor, Supplier, or other individual or entity except as may otherwise be required by Laws and Regulations.

7.07 Patent Fees and Royalties

- A. Contractor shall pay all license fees and royalties and assume all costs incident to the use in the performance of the Work or the incorporation in the Work of any invention, design, process, product, or device which is the subject of patent rights or copyrights held by others. If a particular invention, design, process, product, or device is specified in the Contract Documents for use in the performance of the Work and if, to the actual knowledge of Owner or Engineer, its use is subject to patent rights or copyrights calling for the payment of any license fee or royalty to others, the existence of such rights shall be disclosed by Owner in the Contract Documents.
- B. To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations, Owner shall indemnify and hold harmless Contractor, and its officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, and subcontractors from and against all claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals, and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating to any infringement of patent rights or copyrights incident to the use in the performance of the Work or resulting from the incorporation in the Work of any invention, design, process, product, or device specified in the Contract Documents, but not identified as being subject to payment of any license fee or royalty to others required by patent rights or copyrights.
- C. To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations, Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless Owner and Engineer, and the officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants and subcontractors of each and any of them from and against all claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating to any infringement of patent rights or copyrights incident to the use in the performance of the Work or resulting from the incorporation in the Work of any invention, design, process, product, or device not specified in the Contract Documents.

7.08 Permits

A. Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, Contractor shall obtain and pay for all construction permits and licenses. Owner shall assist Contractor, when necessary, in obtaining such permits and licenses. Contractor shall pay all governmental charges and inspection fees necessary for the prosecution of the Work which are applicable at the time of the submission of Contractor's Bid (or when Contractor became bound under a negotiated contract). Owner shall pay all charges of utility owners for connections for providing permanent service to the Work

7.09 Taxes

A. Contractor shall pay all sales, consumer, use, and other similar taxes required to be paid by Contractor in accordance with the Laws and Regulations of the place of the Project which are applicable during the performance of the Work.

7.10 Laws and Regulations

- A. Contractor shall give all notices required by and shall comply with all Laws and Regulations applicable to the performance of the Work. Except where otherwise expressly required by applicable Laws and Regulations, neither Owner nor Engineer shall be responsible for monitoring Contractor's compliance with any Laws or Regulations.
- B. If Contractor performs any Work or takes any other action knowing or having reason to know that it is contrary to Laws or Regulations, Contractor shall bear all resulting costs and losses, and shall indemnify and hold harmless Owner and Engineer, and the officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, and subcontractors of each and any of them from and against all claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating to such Work or other action. It shall not be Contractor's responsibility to make certain that the Work described in the Contract Documents is in accordance with Laws and Regulations, but this shall not relieve Contractor of Contractor's obligations under Paragraph 3.03.
- C. Owner or Contractor may give notice to the other party of any changes after the submission of Contractor's Bid (or after the date when Contractor became bound under a negotiated contract) in Laws or Regulations having an effect on the cost or time of performance of the Work, including but not limited to changes in Laws or Regulations having an effect on procuring permits and on sales, use, value-added, consumption, and other similar taxes. If Owner and Contractor are unable to agree on entitlement to or on the amount or extent, if any, of any adjustment in Contract Price or Contract Times resulting from such changes, then within 30 days of such notice Contractor may submit a Change Proposal, or Owner may initiate a Claim.

7.11 Record Documents

A. Contractor shall maintain in a safe place at the Site one printed record copy of all Drawings, Specifications, Addenda, Change Orders, Work Change Directives, Field Orders, written interpretations and clarifications, and approved Shop Drawings. Contractor shall keep such record documents in good order and annotate them to show changes made during construction. These record documents, together with all approved Samples, will be available to Engineer for reference. Upon completion of the Work, Contractor shall deliver these record documents to Engineer.

7.12 Safety and Protection

- A. Contractor shall be solely responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions and programs in connection with the Work. Such responsibility does not relieve Subcontractors of their responsibility for the safety of persons or property in the performance of their work, nor for compliance with applicable safety Laws and Regulations. Contractor shall take all necessary precautions for the safety of, and shall provide the necessary protection to prevent damage, injury, or loss to:
 - 1. all persons on the Site or who may be affected by the Work;

- 2. all the Work and materials and equipment to be incorporated therein, whether in storage on or off the Site; and
- other property at the Site or adjacent thereto, including trees, shrubs, lawns, walks, pavements, roadways, structures, other work in progress, utilities, and Underground Facilities not designated for removal, relocation, or replacement in the course of construction.
- B. Contractor shall comply with all applicable Laws and Regulations relating to the safety of persons or property, or to the protection of persons or property from damage, injury, or loss; and shall erect and maintain all necessary safeguards for such safety and protection. Contractor shall notify Owner; the owners of adjacent property, Underground Facilities, and other utilities; and other contractors and utility owners performing work at or adjacent to the Site, when prosecution of the Work may affect them, and shall cooperate with them in the protection, removal, relocation, and replacement of their property or work in progress.
- C. Contractor shall comply with the applicable requirements of Owner's safety programs, if any. The Supplementary Conditions identify any Owner's safety programs that are applicable to the Work.
- D. Contractor shall inform Owner and Engineer of the specific requirements of Contractor's safety program with which Owner's and Engineer's employees and representatives must comply while at the Site.
- E. All damage, injury, or loss to any property referred to in Paragraph 7.12.A.2 or 7.12.A.3 caused, directly or indirectly, in whole or in part, by Contractor, any Subcontractor, Supplier, or any other individual or entity directly or indirectly employed by any of them to perform any of the Work, or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, shall be remedied by Contractor at its expense (except damage or loss attributable to the fault of Drawings or Specifications or to the acts or omissions of Owner or Engineer or anyone employed by any of them, or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, and not attributable, directly or indirectly, in whole or in part, to the fault or negligence of Contractor or any Subcontractor, Supplier, or other individual or entity directly or indirectly employed by any of them).
- F. Contractor's duties and responsibilities for safety and protection shall continue until such time as all the Work is completed and Engineer has issued a notice to Owner and Contractor in accordance with Paragraph 15.06.B that the Work is acceptable (except as otherwise expressly provided in connection with Substantial Completion).
- G. Contractor's duties and responsibilities for safety and protection shall resume whenever Contractor or any Subcontractor or Supplier returns to the Site to fulfill warranty or correction obligations, or to conduct other tasks arising from the Contract Documents.

7.13 Safety Representative

A. Contractor shall designate a qualified and experienced safety representative at the Site whose duties and responsibilities shall be the prevention of accidents and the maintaining and supervising of safety precautions and programs.

7.14 Hazard Communication Programs

A. Contractor shall be responsible for coordinating any exchange of material safety data sheets or other hazard communication information required to be made available to or

exchanged between or among employers at the Site in accordance with Laws or Regulations.

7.15 Emergencies

A. In emergencies affecting the safety or protection of persons or the Work or property at the Site or adjacent thereto, Contractor is obligated to act to prevent threatened damage, injury, or loss. Contractor shall give Engineer prompt written notice if Contractor believes that any significant changes in the Work or variations from the Contract Documents have been caused thereby or are required as a result thereof. If Engineer determines that a change in the Contract Documents is required because of the action taken by Contractor in response to such an emergency, a Work Change Directive or Change Order will be issued.

7.16 Shop Drawings, Samples, and Other Submittals

- A. Shop Drawing and Sample Submittal Requirements:
 - 1. Before submitting a Shop Drawing or Sample, Contractor shall have:
 - reviewed and coordinated the Shop Drawing or Sample with other Shop Drawings and Samples and with the requirements of the Work and the Contract Documents;
 - determined and verified all field measurements, quantities, dimensions, specified
 performance and design criteria, installation requirements, materials, catalog
 numbers, and similar information with respect thereto;
 - determined and verified the suitability of all materials and equipment offered with respect to the indicated application, fabrication, shipping, handling, storage, assembly, and installation pertaining to the performance of the Work; and
 - d. determined and verified all information relative to Contractor's responsibilities for means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of construction, and safety precautions and programs incident thereto.
 - 2. Each submittal shall bear a stamp or specific written certification that Contractor has satisfied Contractor's obligations under the Contract Documents with respect to Contractor's review of that submittal, and that Contractor approves the submittal.
 - 3. With each submittal, Contractor shall give Engineer specific written notice of any variations that the Shop Drawing or Sample may have from the requirements of the Contract Documents. This notice shall be set forth in a written communication separate from the Shop Drawings or Sample submittal; and, in addition, in the case of Shop Drawings by a specific notation made on each Shop Drawing submitted to Engineer for review and approval of each such variation.
- B. Submittal Procedures for Shop Drawings and Samples: Contractor shall submit Shop Drawings and Samples to Engineer for review and approval in accordance with the accepted Schedule of Submittals. Each submittal will be identified as Engineer may require.
 - 1. Shop Drawings:
 - a. Contractor shall submit the number of copies required in the Specifications.
 - Data shown on the Shop Drawings will be complete with respect to quantities, dimensions, specified performance and design criteria, materials, and similar data to show Engineer the services, materials, and equipment Contractor proposes to

provide and to enable Engineer to review the information for the limited purposes required by Paragraph 7.16.D.

2. Samples:

- a. Contractor shall submit the number of Samples required in the Specifications.
- b. Contractor shall clearly identify each Sample as to material, Supplier, pertinent data such as catalog numbers, the use for which intended and other data as Engineer may require to enable Engineer to review the submittal for the limited purposes required by Paragraph 7.16.D.
- 3. Where a Shop Drawing or Sample is required by the Contract Documents or the Schedule of Submittals, any related Work performed prior to Engineer's review and approval of the pertinent submittal will be at the sole expense and responsibility of Contractor.
- C. Other Submittals: Contractor shall submit other submittals to Engineer in accordance with the accepted Schedule of Submittals, and pursuant to the applicable terms of the Specifications.

D. Engineer's Review:

- Engineer will provide timely review of Shop Drawings and Samples in accordance with
 the Schedule of Submittals acceptable to Engineer. Engineer's review and approval will
 be only to determine if the items covered by the submittals will, after installation or
 incorporation in the Work, conform to the information given in the Contract
 Documents and be compatible with the design concept of the completed Project as a
 functioning whole as indicated by the Contract Documents.
- 2. Engineer's review and approval will not extend to means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction or to safety precautions or programs incident thereto.
- 3. Engineer's review and approval of a separate item as such will not indicate approval of the assembly in which the item functions.
- 4. Engineer's review and approval of a Shop Drawing or Sample shall not relieve Contractor from responsibility for any variation from the requirements of the Contract Documents unless Contractor has complied with the requirements of Paragraph 7.16.A.3 and Engineer has given written approval of each such variation by specific written notation thereof incorporated in or accompanying the Shop Drawing or Sample. Engineer will document any such approved variation from the requirements of the Contract Documents in a Field Order.
- 5. Engineer's review and approval of a Shop Drawing or Sample shall not relieve Contractor from responsibility for complying with the requirements of Paragraph 7.16.A and B.
- 6. Engineer's review and approval of a Shop Drawing or Sample, or of a variation from the requirements of the Contract Documents, shall not, under any circumstances, change the Contract Times or Contract Price, unless such changes are included in a Change Order.
- 7. Neither Engineer's receipt, review, acceptance or approval of a Shop Drawing, Sample, or other submittal shall result in such item becoming a Contract Document.

8. Contractor shall perform the Work in compliance with the requirements and commitments set forth in approved Shop Drawings and Samples, subject to the provisions of Paragraph 7.16.D.4.

E. Resubmittal Procedures:

- Contractor shall make corrections required by Engineer and shall return the required number of corrected copies of Shop Drawings and submit, as required, new Samples for review and approval. Contractor shall direct specific attention in writing to revisions other than the corrections called for by Engineer on previous submittals.
- 2. Contractor shall furnish required submittals with sufficient information and accuracy to obtain required approval of an item with no more than three submittals. Engineer will record Engineer's time for reviewing a fourth or subsequent submittal of a Shop Drawings, sample, or other item requiring approval, and Contractor shall be responsible for Engineer's charges to Owner for such time. Owner may impose a set-off against payments due to Contractor to secure reimbursement for such charges.
- 3. If Contractor requests a change of a previously approved submittal item, Contractor shall be responsible for Engineer's charges to Owner for its review time, and Owner may impose a set-off against payments due to Contractor to secure reimbursement for such charges, unless the need for such change is beyond the control of Contractor.

7.17 Contractor's General Warranty and Guarantee

- A. Contractor warrants and guarantees to Owner that all Work will be in accordance with the Contract Documents and will not be defective. Engineer and its officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, and subcontractors shall be entitled to rely on Contractor's warranty and guarantee.
- B. Contractor's warranty and guarantee hereunder excludes defects or damage caused by:
 - abuse, modification, or improper maintenance or operation by persons other than Contractor, Subcontractors, Suppliers, or any other individual or entity for whom Contractor is responsible; or
 - 2. normal wear and tear under normal usage.
- C. Contractor's obligation to perform and complete the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents shall be absolute. None of the following will constitute an acceptance of Work that is not in accordance with the Contract Documents or a release of Contractor's obligation to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents:
 - observations by Engineer;
 - 2. recommendation by Engineer or payment by Owner of any progress or final payment;
 - 3. the issuance of a certificate of Substantial Completion by Engineer or any payment related thereto by Owner;
 - 4. use or occupancy of the Work or any part thereof by Owner;
 - 5. any review and approval of a Shop Drawing or Sample submittal;
 - 6. the issuance of a notice of acceptability by Engineer;
 - 7. any inspection, test, or approval by others; or
 - 8. any correction of defective Work by Owner.

D. If the Contract requires the Contractor to accept the assignment of a contract entered into by Owner, then the specific warranties, guarantees, and correction obligations contained in the assigned contract shall govern with respect to Contractor's performance obligations to Owner for the Work described in the assigned contract.

7.18 Indemnification

- A. To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations, and in addition to any other obligations of Contractor under the Contract or otherwise, Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless Owner and Engineer, and the officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants and subcontractors of each and any of them from and against all claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating to the performance of the Work, provided that any such claim, cost, loss, or damage is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease, or death, or to injury to or destruction of tangible property (other than the Work itself), including the loss of use resulting therefrom but only to the extent caused by any negligent act or omission of Contractor, any Subcontractor, any Supplier, or any individual or entity directly or indirectly employed by any of them to perform any of the Work or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable.
- B. In any and all claims against Owner or Engineer or any of their officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, or subcontractors by any employee (or the survivor or personal representative of such employee) of Contractor, any Subcontractor, any Supplier, or any individual or entity directly or indirectly employed by any of them to perform any of the Work, or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, the indemnification obligation under Paragraph 7.18.A shall not be limited in any way by any limitation on the amount or type of damages, compensation, or benefits payable by or for Contractor or any such Subcontractor, Supplier, or other individual or entity under workers' compensation acts, disability benefit acts, or other employee benefit acts.
- C. The indemnification obligations of Contractor under Paragraph 7.18.A shall not extend to the liability of Engineer and Engineer's officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants and subcontractors arising out of:
 - 1. the preparation or approval of, or the failure to prepare or approve maps, Drawings, opinions, reports, surveys, Change Orders, designs, or Specifications; or
 - 2. giving directions or instructions, or failing to give them, if that is the primary cause of the injury or damage.

7.19 Delegation of Professional Design Services

- A. Contractor will not be required to provide professional design services unless such services are specifically required by the Contract Documents for a portion of the Work or unless such services are required to carry out Contractor's responsibilities for construction means, methods, techniques, sequences and procedures. Contractor shall not be required to provide professional services in violation of applicable Laws and Regulations.
- B. If professional design services or certifications by a design professional related to systems, materials, or equipment are specifically required of Contractor by the Contract Documents, Owner and Engineer will specify all performance and design criteria that such services must satisfy. Contractor shall cause such services or certifications to be provided by a properly licensed professional, whose signature and seal shall appear on all drawings, calculations, specifications, certifications, and other submittals prepared by such professional. Shop

- Drawings and other submittals related to the Work designed or certified by such professional, if prepared by others, shall bear such professional's written approval when submitted to Engineer.
- C. Owner and Engineer shall be entitled to rely upon the adequacy, accuracy, and completeness of the services, certifications, or approvals performed by such design professionals, provided Owner and Engineer have specified to Contractor all performance and design criteria that such services must satisfy.
- D. Pursuant to this paragraph, Engineer's review and approval of design calculations and design drawings will be only for the limited purpose of checking for conformance with performance and design criteria given and the design concept expressed in the Contract Documents. Engineer's review and approval of Shop Drawings and other submittals (except design calculations and design drawings) will be only for the purpose stated in Paragraph 7.16.D.1.
- E. Contractor shall not be responsible for the adequacy of the performance or design criteria specified by Owner or Engineer.

ARTICLE 8 – OTHER WORK AT THE SITE

8.01 Other Work

- A. In addition to and apart from the Work under the Contract Documents, the Owner may perform other work at or adjacent to the Site. Such other work may be performed by Owner's employees, or through contracts between the Owner and third parties. Owner may also arrange to have third-party utility owners perform work on their utilities and facilities at or adjacent to the Site.
- B. If Owner performs other work at or adjacent to the Site with Owner's employees, or through contracts for such other work, then Owner shall give Contractor written notice thereof prior to starting any such other work. If Owner has advance information regarding the start of any utility work at or adjacent to the Site, Owner shall provide such information to Contractor.
- C. Contractor shall afford each other contractor that performs such other work, each utility owner performing other work, and Owner, if Owner is performing other work with Owner's employees, proper and safe access to the Site, and provide a reasonable opportunity for the introduction and storage of materials and equipment and the execution of such other work. Contractor shall do all cutting, fitting, and patching of the Work that may be required to properly connect or otherwise make its several parts come together and properly integrate with such other work. Contractor shall not endanger any work of others by cutting, excavating, or otherwise altering such work; provided, however, that Contractor may cut or alter others' work with the written consent of Engineer and the others whose work will be affected.
- D. If the proper execution or results of any part of Contractor's Work depends upon work performed by others under this Article 8, Contractor shall inspect such other work and promptly report to Engineer in writing any delays, defects, or deficiencies in such other work that render it unavailable or unsuitable for the proper execution and results of Contractor's Work. Contractor's failure to so report will constitute an acceptance of such other work as fit and proper for integration with Contractor's Work except for latent defects and deficiencies in such other work.

8.02 Coordination

- A. If Owner intends to contract with others for the performance of other work at or adjacent to the Site, to perform other work at or adjacent to the Site with Owner's employees, or to arrange to have utility owners perform work at or adjacent to the Site, the following will be set forth in the Supplementary Conditions or provided to Contractor prior to the start of any such other work:
 - 1. the identity of the individual or entity that will have authority and responsibility for coordination of the activities among the various contractors;
 - 2. an itemization of the specific matters to be covered by such authority and responsibility; and
 - 3. the extent of such authority and responsibilities.
- B. Unless otherwise provided in the Supplementary Conditions, Owner shall have sole authority and responsibility for such coordination.

8.03 Legal Relationships

- If, in the course of performing other work at or adjacent to the Site for Owner, the Owner's employees, any other contractor working for Owner, or any utility owner for whom the Owner is responsible causes damage to the Work or to the property of Contractor or its Subcontractors, or delays, disrupts, interferes with, or increases the scope or cost of the performance of the Work, through actions or inaction, then Contractor shall be entitled to an equitable adjustment in the Contract Price or the Contract Times, or both, Contractor must submit any Change Proposal seeking an equitable adjustment in the Contract Price or the Contract Times under this paragraph within 30 days of the damaging, delaying, disrupting, or interfering event. The entitlement to, and extent of, any such equitable adjustment shall take into account information (if any) regarding such other work that was provided to Contractor in the Contract Documents prior to the submittal of the Bid or the final negotiation of the terms of the Contract. When applicable, any such equitable adjustment in Contract Price shall be conditioned on Contractor assigning to Owner all Contractor's rights against such other contractor or utility owner with respect to the damage, delay, disruption, or interference that is the subject of the adjustment. Contractor's entitlement to an adjustment of the Contract Times is conditioned on such adjustment being essential to Contractor's ability to complete the Work within the Contract Times.
- 3. Contractor shall take reasonable and customary measures to avoid damaging, delaying, disrupting, or interfering with the work of Owner, any other contractor, or any utility owner performing other work at or adjacent to the Site. If Contractor fails to take such measures and as a result damages, delays, disrupts, or interferes with the work of any such other contractor or utility owner, then Owner may impose a set-off against payments due to Contractor, and assign to such other contractor or utility owner the Owner's contractual rights against Contractor with respect to the breach of the obligations set forth in this paragraph.
- When Owner is performing other work at or adjacent to the Site with Owner's employees, Contractor shall be liable to Owner for damage to such other work, and for the reasonable direct delay, disruption, and interference costs incurred by Owner as a result of Contractor's failure to take reasonable and customary measures with respect to Owner's other work. In response to such damage, delay, disruption, or interference, Owner may impose a set-off against payments due to Contractor.

D. If Contractor damages, delays, disrupts, or interferes with the work of any other contractor, or any utility owner performing other work at or adjacent to the Site, through Contractor's failure to take reasonable and customary measures to avoid such impacts, or if any claim arising out of Contractor's actions, inactions, or negligence in performance of the Work at or adjacent to the Site is made by any such other contractor or utility owner against Contractor, Owner, or Engineer, then Contractor shall (1) promptly attempt to settle the claim as to all parties through negotiations with such other contractor or utility owner, or otherwise resolve the claim by arbitration or other dispute resolution proceeding or at law, and (2) indemnify and hold harmless Owner and Engineer, and the officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants and subcontractors of each and any of them from and against any such claims, and against all costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating to such damage, delay, disruption, or interference.

ARTICLE 9 – OWNER'S RESPONSIBILITIES

9.01 Communications to Contractor

A. Except as otherwise provided in these General Conditions, Owner shall issue all communications to Contractor through Engineer.

9.02 Replacement of Engineer

A. Owner may at its discretion appoint an engineer to replace Engineer, provided Contractor makes no reasonable objection to the replacement engineer. The replacement engineer's status under the Contract Documents shall be that of the former Engineer.

9.03 Furnish Data

A. Owner shall promptly furnish the data required of Owner under the Contract Documents.

9.04 Pay When Due

A. Owner shall make payments to Contractor when they are due as provided in the Agreement.

9.05 Lands and Easements; Reports, Tests, and Drawings

- A. Owner's duties with respect to providing lands and easements are set forth in Paragraph 5.01.
- B. Owner's duties with respect to providing engineering surveys to establish reference points are set forth in Paragraph 4.03.
- C. Article 5 refers to Owner's identifying and making available to Contractor copies of reports of explorations and tests of conditions at the Site, and drawings of physical conditions relating to existing surface or subsurface structures at the Site.

9.06 Insurance

A. Owner's responsibilities, if any, with respect to purchasing and maintaining liability and property insurance are set forth in Article 6.

9.07 Change Orders

A. Owner's responsibilities with respect to Change Orders are set forth in Article 11.

9.08 Inspections, Tests, and Approvals

A. Owner's responsibility with respect to certain inspections, tests, and approvals is set forth in Paragraph 14.02.B.

9.09 Limitations on Owner's Responsibilities

A. The Owner shall not supervise, direct, or have control or authority over, nor be responsible for, Contractor's means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction, or the safety precautions and programs incident thereto, or for any failure of Contractor to comply with Laws and Regulations applicable to the performance of the Work. Owner will not be responsible for Contractor's failure to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.

9.10 Undisclosed Hazardous Environmental Condition

A. Owner's responsibility in respect to an undisclosed Hazardous Environmental Condition is set forth in Paragraph 5.06.

9.11 Evidence of Financial Arrangements

A. Upon request of Contractor, Owner shall furnish Contractor reasonable evidence that financial arrangements have been made to satisfy Owner's obligations under the Contract Documents (including obligations under proposed changes in the Work).

9.12 Safety Programs

- A. While at the Site, Owner's employees and representatives shall comply with the specific applicable requirements of Contractor's safety programs of which Owner has been informed.
- B. Owner shall furnish copies of any applicable Owner safety programs to Contractor.

ARTICLE 10 - ENGINEER'S STATUS DURING CONSTRUCTION

10.01 Owner's Representative

A. Engineer will be Owner's representative during the construction period. The duties and responsibilities and the limitations of authority of Engineer as Owner's representative during construction are set forth in the Contract.

10.02 Visits to Site

- A. Engineer will make visits to the Site at intervals appropriate to the various stages of construction as Engineer deems necessary in order to observe as an experienced and qualified design professional the progress that has been made and the quality of the various aspects of Contractor's executed Work. Based on information obtained during such visits and observations, Engineer, for the benefit of Owner, will determine, in general, if the Work is proceeding in accordance with the Contract Documents. Engineer will not be required to make exhaustive or continuous inspections on the Site to check the quality or quantity of the Work. Engineer's efforts will be directed toward providing for Owner a greater degree of confidence that the completed Work will conform generally to the Contract Documents. On the basis of such visits and observations, Engineer will keep Owner informed of the progress of the Work and will endeavor to guard Owner against defective Work.
- B. Engineer's visits and observations are subject to all the limitations on Engineer's authority and responsibility set forth in Paragraph 10.08. Particularly, but without limitation, during

or as a result of Engineer's visits or observations of Contractor's Work, Engineer will not supervise, direct, control, or have authority over or be responsible for Contractor's means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction, or the safety precautions and programs incident thereto, or for any failure of Contractor to comply with Laws and Regulations applicable to the performance of the Work.

10.03 Project Representative

A. If Owner and Engineer have agreed that Engineer will furnish a Resident Project Representative to represent Engineer at the Site and assist Engineer in observing the progress and quality of the Work, then the authority and responsibilities of any such Resident Project Representative will be as provided in the Supplementary Conditions, and limitations on the responsibilities thereof will be as provided in Paragraph 10.08. If Owner designates another representative or agent to represent Owner at the Site who is not Engineer's consultant, agent, or employee, the responsibilities and authority and limitations thereon of such other individual or entity will be as provided in the Supplementary Conditions.

10.04 Rejecting Defective Work

A. Engineer has the authority to reject Work in accordance with Article 14.

10.05 Shop Drawings, Change Orders and Payments

- A. Engineer's authority, and limitations thereof, as to Shop Drawings and Samples, are set forth in Paragraph 7.16.
- B. Engineer's authority, and limitations thereof, as to design calculations and design drawings submitted in response to a delegation of professional design services, if any, are set forth in Paragraph 7.19.
- C. Engineer's authority as to Change Orders is set forth in Article 11.
- D. Engineer's authority as to Applications for Payment is set forth in Article 15.

10.06 Determinations for Unit Price Work

A. Engineer will determine the actual quantities and classifications of Unit Price Work performed by Contractor as set forth in Paragraph 13.03.

10.07 Decisions on Requirements of Contract Documents and Acceptability of Work

A. Engineer will render decisions regarding the requirements of the Contract Documents, and judge the acceptability of the Work, pursuant to the specific procedures set forth herein for initial interpretations, Change Proposals, and acceptance of the Work. In rendering such decisions and judgments, Engineer will not show partiality to Owner or Contractor, and will not be liable to Owner, Contractor, or others in connection with any proceedings, interpretations, decisions, or judgments conducted or rendered in good faith.

10.08 Limitations on Engineer's Authority and Responsibilities

A. Neither Engineer's authority or responsibility under this Article 10 or under any other provision of the Contract, nor any decision made by Engineer in good faith either to exercise or not exercise such authority or responsibility or the undertaking, exercise, or performance of any authority or responsibility by Engineer, shall create, impose, or give rise to any duty in contract, tort, or otherwise owed by Engineer to Contractor, any Subcontractor, any Supplier, any other individual or entity, or to any surety for or employee or agent of any of them.

- B. Engineer will not supervise, direct, control, or have authority over or be responsible for Contractor's means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction, or the safety precautions and programs incident thereto, or for any failure of Contractor to comply with Laws and Regulations applicable to the performance of the Work. Engineer will not be responsible for Contractor's failure to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.
- C. Engineer will not be responsible for the acts or omissions of Contractor or of any Subcontractor, any Supplier, or of any other individual or entity performing any of the Work.
- D. Engineer's review of the final Application for Payment and accompanying documentation and all maintenance and operating instructions, schedules, guarantees, bonds, certificates of inspection, tests and approvals, and other documentation required to be delivered by Paragraph 15.06.A will only be to determine generally that their content complies with the requirements of, and in the case of certificates of inspections, tests, and approvals, that the results certified indicate compliance with the Contract Documents.
- E. The limitations upon authority and responsibility set forth in this Paragraph 10.08 shall also apply to the Resident Project Representative, if any.

10.09 Compliance with Safety Program

A. While at the Site, Engineer's employees and representatives will comply with the specific applicable requirements of Owner's and Contractor's safety programs (if any) of which Engineer has been informed.

ARTICLE 11 - AMENDING THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS; CHANGES IN THE WORK

11.01 Amending and Supplementing Contract Documents

A. The Contract Documents may be amended or supplemented by a Change Order, a Work Change Directive, or a Field Order.

1. Change Orders:

- a. If an amendment or supplement to the Contract Documents includes a change in the Contract Price or the Contract Times, such amendment or supplement must be set forth in a Change Order. A Change Order also may be used to establish amendments and supplements of the Contract Documents that do not affect the Contract Price or Contract Times.
- b. Owner and Contractor may amend those terms and conditions of the Contract Documents that do not involve (1) the performance or acceptability of the Work, (2) the design (as set forth in the Drawings, Specifications, or otherwise), or (3) other engineering or technical matters, without the recommendation of the Engineer. Such an amendment shall be set forth in a Change Order.
- 2. Work Change Directives: A Work Change Directive will not change the Contract Price or the Contract Times but is evidence that the parties expect that the modification ordered or documented by a Work Change Directive will be incorporated in a subsequently issued Change Order, following negotiations by the parties as to the Work Change Directive's effect, if any, on the Contract Price and Contract Times; or, if negotiations are unsuccessful, by a determination under the terms of the Contract Documents governing adjustments, expressly including Paragraph 11.04 regarding change of Contract Price. Contractor must submit any Change Proposal seeking an

- adjustment of the Contract Price or the Contract Times, or both, no later than 30 days after the completion of the Work set out in the Work Change Directive. Owner must submit any Claim seeking an adjustment of the Contract Price or the Contract Times, or both, no later than 60 days after issuance of the Work Change Directive.
- 3. Field Orders: Engineer may authorize minor changes in the Work if the changes do not involve an adjustment in the Contract Price or the Contract Times and are compatible with the design concept of the completed Project as a functioning whole as indicated by the Contract Documents. Such changes will be accomplished by a Field Order and will be binding on Owner and also on Contractor, which shall perform the Work involved promptly. If Contractor believes that a Field Order justifies an adjustment in the Contract Price or Contract Times, or both, then before proceeding with the Work at issue, Contractor shall submit a Change Proposal as provided herein.

11.02 Owner-Authorized Changes in the Work

A. Without invalidating the Contract and without notice to any surety, Owner may, at any time or from time to time, order additions, deletions, or revisions in the Work. Such changes shall be supported by Engineer's recommendation, to the extent the change involves the design (as set forth in the Drawings, Specifications, or otherwise), or other engineering or technical matters. Such changes may be accomplished by a Change Order, if Owner and Contractor have agreed as to the effect, if any, of the changes on Contract Times or Contract Price; or by a Work Change Directive. Upon receipt of any such document, Contractor shall promptly proceed with the Work involved; or, in the case of a deletion in the Work, promptly cease construction activities with respect to such deleted Work. Added or revised Work shall be performed under the applicable conditions of the Contract Documents. Nothing in this paragraph shall obligate Contractor to undertake work that Contractor reasonably concludes cannot be performed in a manner consistent with Contractor's safety obligations under the Contract Documents or Laws and Regulations.

11.03 Unauthorized Changes in the Work

A. Contractor shall not be entitled to an increase in the Contract Price or an extension of the Contract Times with respect to any work performed that is not required by the Contract Documents, as amended, modified, or supplemented, except in the case of an emergency as provided in Paragraph 7.15 or in the case of uncovering Work as provided in Paragraph 14.05.

11.04 Change of Contract Price

- A. The Contract Price may only be changed by a Change Order. Any Change Proposal for an adjustment in the Contract Price shall comply with the provisions of Paragraph 11.06. Any Claim for an adjustment of Contract Price shall comply with the provisions of Article 12.
- B. An adjustment in the Contract Price will be determined as follows:
 - where the Work involved is covered by unit prices contained in the Contract
 Documents, then by application of such unit prices to the quantities of the items involved (subject to the provisions of Paragraph 13.03); or
 - where the Work involved is not covered by unit prices contained in the Contract Documents, then by a mutually agreed lump sum (which may include an allowance for overhead and profit not necessarily in accordance with Paragraph 11.04.C.2); or
 - where the Work involved is not covered by unit prices contained in the Contract Documents and the parties do not reach mutual agreement to a lump sum, then on

the basis of the Cost of the Work (determined as provided in Paragraph 13.01) plus a Contractor's fee for overhead and profit (determined as provided in Paragraph 11.04.C).

- C. Contractor's Fee: When applicable, the Contractor's fee for overhead and profit shall be determined as follows:
 - a mutually acceptable fixed fee; or
 - 2. if a fixed fee is not agreed upon, then a fee based on the following percentages of the various portions of the Cost of the Work:
 - a. for costs incurred under Paragraphs 13.01.B.1 and 13.01.B.2, the Contractor's fee shall be 15 percent;
 - b. for costs incurred under Paragraph 13.01.B.3, the Contractor's fee shall be five percent;
 - c. where one or more tiers of subcontracts are on the basis of Cost of the Work plus a fee and no fixed fee is agreed upon, the intent of Paragraphs 11.04.C.2.a and 11.04.C.2.b is that the Contractor's fee shall be based on: (1) a fee of 15 percent of the costs incurred under Paragraphs 13.01.A.1 and 13.01.A.2 by the Subcontractor that actually performs the Work, at whatever tier, and (2) with respect to Contractor itself and to any Subcontractors of a tier higher than that of the Subcontractor that actually performs the Work, a fee of five percent of the amount (fee plus underlying costs incurred) attributable to the next lower tier Subcontractor; provided, however, that for any such subcontracted work the maximum total fee to be paid by Owner shall be no greater than 27 percent of the costs incurred by the Subcontractor that actually performs the work;
 - d. no fee shall be payable on the basis of costs itemized under Paragraphs 13.01.B.4, 13.01.B.5, and 13.01.C;
 - the amount of credit to be allowed by Contractor to Owner for any change which
 results in a net decrease in cost will be the amount of the actual net decrease in
 cost plus a deduction in Contractor's fee by an amount equal to five percent of
 such net decrease; and
 - f. when both additions and credits are involved in any one change, the adjustment in Contractor's fee shall be computed on the basis of the net change in accordance with Paragraphs 11.04.C.2.a through 11.04.C.2.e, inclusive.

11.05 Change of Contract Times

- A. The Contract Times may only be changed by a Change Order. Any Change Proposal for an adjustment in the Contract Times shall comply with the provisions of Paragraph 11.06. Any Claim for an adjustment in the Contract Times shall comply with the provisions of Article 12.
- B. An adjustment of the Contract Times shall be subject to the limitations set forth in Paragraph 4.05, concerning delays in Contractor's progress.

11.06 Change Proposals

A. Contractor shall submit a Change Proposal to Engineer to request an adjustment in the Contract Times or Contract Price; appeal an initial decision by Engineer concerning the requirements of the Contract Documents or relating to the acceptability of the Work under the Contract Documents; contest a set-off against payment due; or seek other relief under the Contract. The Change Proposal shall specify any proposed change in Contract Times or Contract Price, or both, or other proposed relief, and explain the reason for the proposed change, with citations to any governing or applicable provisions of the Contract Documents.

- 1. Procedures: Contractor shall submit each Change Proposal to Engineer promptly (but in no event later than 30 days) after the start of the event giving rise thereto, or after such initial decision. The Contractor shall submit supporting data, including the proposed change in Contract Price or Contract Time (if any), to the Engineer and Owner within 15 days after the submittal of the Change Proposal. The supporting data shall be accompanied by a written statement that the supporting data are accurate and complete, and that any requested time or price adjustment is the entire adjustment to which Contractor believes it is entitled as a result of said event. Engineer will advise Owner regarding the Change Proposal, and consider any comments or response from Owner regarding the Change Proposal.
- 2. Engineer's Action: Engineer will review each Change Proposal and, within 30 days after receipt of the Contractor's supporting data, either deny the Change Proposal in whole, approve it in whole, or deny it in part and approve it in part. Such actions shall be in writing, with a copy provided to Owner and Contractor. If Engineer does not take action on the Change Proposal within 30 days, then either Owner or Contractor may at any time thereafter submit a letter to the other party indicating that as a result of Engineer's inaction the Change Proposal is deemed denied, thereby commencing the time for appeal of the denial under Article 12.
- Binding Decision: Engineer's decision will be final and binding upon Owner and Contractor, unless Owner or Contractor appeals the decision by filing a Claim under Article 12.
- B. Resolution of Certain Change Proposals: If the Change Proposal does not involve the design (as set forth in the Drawings, Specifications, or otherwise), the acceptability of the Work, or other engineering or technical matters, then Engineer will notify the parties that the Engineer is unable to resolve the Change Proposal. For purposes of further resolution of such a Change Proposal, such notice shall be deemed a denial, and Contractor may choose to seek resolution under the terms of Article 12.

11.07 Execution of Change Orders

- A. Owner and Contractor shall execute appropriate Change Orders covering:
 - changes in the Contract Price or Contract Times which are agreed to by the parties, including any undisputed sum or amount of time for Work actually performed in accordance with a Work Change Directive;
 - 2. changes in Contract Price resulting from an Owner set-off, unless Contractor has duly contested such set-off;
 - 3. changes in the Work which are: (a) ordered by Owner pursuant to Paragraph 11.02, (b) required because of Owner's acceptance of defective Work under Paragraph 14.04 or Owner's correction of defective Work under Paragraph 14.07, or (c) agreed to by the parties, subject to the need for Engineer's recommendation if the change in the Work involves the design (as set forth in the Drawings, Specifications, or otherwise), or other engineering or technical matters; and
 - 4. changes in the Contract Price or Contract Times, or other changes, which embody the substance of any final and binding results under Paragraph 11.06, or Article 12.

B. If Owner or Contractor refuses to execute a Change Order that is required to be executed under the terms of this Paragraph 11.07, it shall be deemed to be of full force and effect, as if fully executed.

11.08 Notification to Surety

A. If the provisions of any bond require notice to be given to a surety of any change affecting the general scope of the Work or the provisions of the Contract Documents (including, but not limited to, Contract Price or Contract Times), the giving of any such notice will be Contractor's responsibility. The amount of each applicable bond will be adjusted to reflect the effect of any such change.

ARTICLE 12 - CLAIMS

12.01 Claims

- A. *Claims Process*: The following disputes between Owner and Contractor shall be submitted to the Claims process set forth in this Article:
 - Appeals by Owner or Contractor of Engineer's decisions regarding Change Proposals;
 - 2. Owner demands for adjustments in the Contract Price or Contract Times, or other relief under the Contract Documents; and
 - 3. Disputes that Engineer has been unable to address because they do not involve the design (as set forth in the Drawings, Specifications, or otherwise), the acceptability of the Work, or other engineering or technical matters.
- B. Submittal of Claim: The party submitting a Claim shall deliver it directly to the other party to the Contract promptly (but in no event later than 30 days) after the start of the event giving rise thereto; in the case of appeals regarding Change Proposals within 30 days of the decision under appeal. The party submitting the Claim shall also furnish a copy to the Engineer, for its information only. The responsibility to substantiate a Claim shall rest with the party making the Claim. In the case of a Claim by Contractor seeking an increase in the Contract Times or Contract Price, or both, Contractor shall certify that the Claim is made in good faith, that the supporting data are accurate and complete, and that to the best of Contractor's knowledge and belief the amount of time or money requested accurately reflects the full amount to which Contractor is entitled.
- C. Review and Resolution: The party receiving a Claim shall review it thoroughly, giving full consideration to its merits. The two parties shall seek to resolve the Claim through the exchange of information and direct negotiations. The parties may extend the time for resolving the Claim by mutual agreement. All actions taken on a Claim shall be stated in writing and submitted to the other party, with a copy to Engineer.

D. Mediation:

- At any time after initiation of a Claim, Owner and Contractor may mutually agree to mediation of the underlying dispute. The agreement to mediate shall stay the Claim submittal and response process.
- If Owner and Contractor agree to mediation, then after 60 days from such agreement, either Owner or Contractor may unilaterally terminate the mediation process, and the Claim submittal and decision process shall resume as of the date of the termination. If the mediation proceeds but is unsuccessful in resolving the dispute, the Claim

- submittal and decision process shall resume as of the date of the conclusion of the mediation, as determined by the mediator.
- Owner and Contractor shall each pay one-half of the mediator's fees and costs.
- E. Partial Approval: If the party receiving a Claim approves the Claim in part and denies it in part, such action shall be final and binding unless within 30 days of such action the other party invokes the procedure set forth in Article 17 for final resolution of disputes.
- F. Denial of Claim: If efforts to resolve a Claim are not successful, the party receiving the Claim may deny it by giving written notice of denial to the other party. If the receiving party does not take action on the Claim within 90 days, then either Owner or Contractor may at any time thereafter submit a letter to the other party indicating that as a result of the inaction, the Claim is deemed denied, thereby commencing the time for appeal of the denial. A denial of the Claim shall be final and binding unless within 30 days of the denial the other party invokes the procedure set forth in Article 17 for the final resolution of disputes:
- G. Final and Binding Results: If the parties reach a mutual agreement regarding a Claim, whether through approval of the Claim, direct negotiations, mediation, or otherwise; or if a Claim is approved in part and denied in part, or denied in full, and such actions become final and binding; then the results of the agreement or action on the Claim shall be incorporated in a Change Order to the extent they affect the Contract, including the Work, the Contract Times, or the Contract Price.

ARTICLE 13 - COST OF THE WORK; ALLOWANCES; UNIT PRICE WORK

13.01 Cost of the Work

- A. Purposes for Determination of Cost of the Work: The term Cost of the Work means the sum of all costs necessary for the proper performance of the Work at issue, as further defined below. The provisions of this Paragraph 13.01 are used for two distinct purposes:
 - 1. To determine Cost of the Work when Cost of the Work is a component of the Contract Price, under cost-plus-fee, time-and-materials, or other cost-based terms; or
 - 2. To determine the value of a Change Order, Change Proposal, Claim, set-off, or other adjustment in Contract Price. When the value of any such adjustment is determined on the basis of Cost of the Work, Contractor is entitled only to those additional or incremental costs required because of the change in the Work or because of the event giving rise to the adjustment.
- B. Costs Included: Except as otherwise may be agreed to in writing by Owner, costs included in the Cost of the Work shall be in amounts no higher than those prevailing in the locality of the Project, shall not include any of the costs itemized in Paragraph 13.01.C, and shall include only the following items:
 - 1. Payroll costs for employees in the direct employ of Contractor in the performance of the Work under schedules of job classifications agreed upon by Owner and Contractor. Such employees shall include, without limitation, superintendents, foremen, and other personnel employed full time on the Work. Payroll costs for employees not employed full time on the Work shall be apportioned on the basis of their time spent on the Work. Payroll costs shall include, but not be limited to, salaries and wages plus the cost of fringe benefits, which shall include social security contributions, unemployment, excise, and payroll taxes, workers' compensation, health and retirement benefits, bonuses, sick leave, and vacation and holiday pay applicable

- thereto. The expenses of performing Work outside of regular working hours, on Saturday, Sunday, or legal holidays, shall be included in the above to the extent authorized by Owner.
- 2. Cost of all materials and equipment furnished and incorporated in the Work, including costs of transportation and storage thereof, and Suppliers' field services required in connection therewith. All cash discounts shall accrue to Contractor unless Owner deposits funds with Contractor with which to make payments, in which case the cash discounts shall accrue to Owner. All trade discounts, rebates, and refunds and returns from sale of surplus materials and equipment shall accrue to Owner, and Contractor shall make provisions so that they may be obtained.
- 3. Payments made by Contractor to Subcontractors for Work performed by Subcontractors. If required by Owner, Contractor shall obtain competitive bids from subcontractors acceptable to Owner and Contractor and shall deliver such bids to Owner, who will then determine, with the advice of Engineer, which bids, if any, will be acceptable. If any subcontract provides that the Subcontractor is to be paid on the basis of Cost of the Work plus a fee, the Subcontractor's Cost of the Work and fee shall be determined in the same manner as Contractor's Cost of the Work and fee as provided in this Paragraph 13.01.
- Costs of special consultants (including but not limited to engineers, architects, testing laboratories, surveyors, attorneys, and accountants) employed for services specifically related to the Work.
- 5. Supplemental costs including the following:
 - a. The proportion of necessary transportation, travel, and subsistence expenses of Contractor's employees incurred in discharge of duties connected with the Work.
 - b. Cost, including transportation and maintenance, of all materials, supplies, equipment, machinery, appliances, office, and temporary facilities at the Site, and hand tools not owned by the workers, which are consumed in the performance of the Work, and cost, less market value, of such items used but not consumed which remain the property of Contractor.
 - c. Rentals of all construction equipment and machinery, and the parts thereof, whether rented from Contractor or others in accordance with rental agreements approved by Owner with the advice of Engineer, and the costs of transportation, loading, unloading, assembly, dismantling, and removal thereof. All such costs shall be in accordance with the terms of said rental agreements. The rental of any such equipment, machinery, or parts shall cease when the use thereof is no longer necessary for the Work.
 - Sales, consumer, use, and other similar taxes related to the Work, and for which Contractor is liable, as imposed by Laws and Regulations.
 - e. Deposits lost for causes other than negligence of Contractor, any Subcontractor, or anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them or for whose acts any of them may be liable, and royalty payments and fees for permits and licenses.
 - f. Losses and damages (and related expenses) caused by damage to the Work, not compensated by insurance or otherwise, sustained by Contractor in connection with the performance of the Work (except losses and damages within the deductible amounts of property insurance established in accordance with Paragraph 6.05), provided such losses and damages have resulted from causes

other than the negligence of Contractor, any Subcontractor, or anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them or for whose acts any of them may be liable. Such losses shall include settlements made with the written consent and approval of Owner. No such losses, damages, and expenses shall be included in the Cost of the Work for the purpose of determining Contractor's fee.

- g. The cost of utilities, fuel, and sanitary facilities at the Site.
- h. Minor expenses such as communication service at the Site, express and courier services, and similar petty cash items in connection with the Work.
- i. The costs of premiums for all bonds and insurance that Contractor is required by the Contract Documents to purchase and maintain.
- C. Costs Excluded: The term Cost of the Work shall not include any of the following items:
 - 1. Payroll costs and other compensation of Contractor's officers, executives, principals (of partnerships and sole proprietorships), general managers, safety managers, engineers, architects, estimators, attorneys, auditors, accountants, purchasing and contracting agents, expediters, timekeepers, clerks, and other personnel employed by Contractor, whether at the Site or in Contractor's principal or branch office for general administration of the Work and not specifically included in the agreed upon schedule of job classifications referred to in Paragraph 13.01.B.1 or specifically covered by Paragraph 13.01.B.4. The payroll costs and other compensation excluded here are to be considered administrative costs covered by the Contractor's fee.
 - 2. Expenses of Contractor's principal and branch offices other than Contractor's office at the Site.
 - 3. Any part of Contractor's capital expenses, including interest on Contractor's capital employed for the Work and charges against Contractor for delinquent payments.
 - 4. Costs due to the negligence of Contractor, any Subcontractor, or anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them or for whose acts any of them may be liable, including but not limited to, the correction of defective Work, disposal of materials or equipment wrongly supplied, and making good any damage to property.
 - 5. Other overhead or general expense costs of any kind and the costs of any item not specifically and expressly included in Paragraph 13.01.B.
- D. Contractor's Fee: When the Work as a whole is performed on the basis of cost-plus, Contractor's fee shall be determined as set forth in the Agreement. When the value of any Work covered by a Change Order, Change Proposal, Claim, set-off, or other adjustment in Contract Price is determined on the basis of Cost of the Work, Contractor's fee shall be determined as set forth in Paragraph 11.04.C.
- E. Documentation: Whenever the Cost of the Work for any purpose is to be determined pursuant to this Article 13, Contractor will establish and maintain records thereof in accordance with generally accepted accounting practices and submit in a form acceptable to Engineer an itemized cost breakdown together with supporting data.

13.02 Allowances

A. It is understood that Contractor has included in the Contract Price all allowances so named in the Contract Documents and shall cause the Work so covered to be performed for such sums and by such persons or entities as may be acceptable to Owner and Engineer.

- B. Cash Allowances: Contractor agrees that:
 - 1. the cash allowances include the cost to Contractor (less any applicable trade discounts) of materials and equipment required by the allowances to be delivered at the Site, and all applicable taxes; and
 - Contractor's costs for unloading and handling on the Site, labor, installation, overhead, profit, and other expenses contemplated for the cash allowances have been included in the Contract Price and not in the allowances, and no demand for additional payment on account of any of the foregoing will be valid.
- C. Contingency Allowance: Contractor agrees that a contingency allowance, if any, is for the sole use of Owner to cover unanticipated costs.
- D. Prior to final payment, an appropriate Change Order will be issued as recommended by Engineer to reflect actual amounts due Contractor on account of Work covered by allowances, and the Contract Price shall be correspondingly adjusted.

13.03 Unit Price Work

- A. Where the Contract Documents provide that all or part of the Work is to be Unit Price Work, initially the Contract Price will be deemed to include for all Unit Price Work an amount equal to the sum of the unit price for each separately identified item of Unit Price Work times the estimated quantity of each item as indicated in the Agreement.
- B. The estimated quantities of items of Unit Price Work are not guaranteed and are solely for the purpose of comparison of Bids and determining an initial Contract Price. Payments to Contractor for Unit Price Work will be based on actual quantities.
- C. Each unit price will be deemed to include an amount considered by Contractor to be adequate to cover Contractor's overhead and profit for each separately identified item.
- D. Engineer will determine the actual quantities and classifications of Unit Price Work performed by Contractor. Engineer will review with Contractor the Engineer's preliminary determinations on such matters before rendering a written decision thereon (by recommendation of an Application for Payment or otherwise). Engineer's written decision thereon will be final and binding (except as modified by Engineer to reflect changed factual conditions or more accurate data) upon Owner and Contractor, subject to the provisions of the following paragraph.
- E. Within 30 days of Engineer's written decision under the preceding paragraph, Contractor may submit a Change Proposal, or Owner may file a Claim, seeking an adjustment in the Contract Price if:
 - the quantity of any item of Unit Price Work performed by Contractor differs materially and significantly from the estimated quantity of such item indicated in the Agreement;
 - 2. there is no corresponding adjustment with respect to any other item of Work; and
 - Contractor believes that it is entitled to an increase in Contract Price as a result of having incurred additional expense or Owner believes that Owner is entitled to a decrease in Contract Price, and the parties are unable to agree as to the amount of any such increase or decrease.

ARTICLE 14 – TESTS AND INSPECTIONS; CORRECTION, REMOVAL OR ACCEPTANCE OF DEFECTIVE WORK

14.01 Access to Work

A. Owner, Engineer, their consultants and other representatives and personnel of Owner, independent testing laboratories, and authorities having jurisdiction will have access to the Site and the Work at reasonable times for their observation, inspection, and testing. Contractor shall provide them proper and safe conditions for such access and advise them of Contractor's safety procedures and programs so that they may comply therewith as applicable.

14.02 Tests, Inspections, and Approvals

- A. Contractor shall give Engineer timely notice of readiness of the Work (or specific parts thereof) for all required inspections and tests, and shall cooperate with inspection and testing personnel to facilitate required inspections and tests.
- B. Owner shall retain and pay for the services of an independent inspector, testing laboratory, or other qualified individual or entity to perform all inspections and tests expressly required by the Contract Documents to be furnished and paid for by Owner, except that costs incurred in connection with tests or inspections of covered Work shall be governed by the provisions of Paragraph 14.05.
- C. If Laws or Regulations of any public body having jurisdiction require any Work (or part thereof) specifically to be inspected, tested, or approved by an employee or other representative of such public body, Contractor shall assume full responsibility for arranging and obtaining such inspections, tests, or approvals, pay all costs in connection therewith, and furnish Engineer the required certificates of inspection or approval.
- D. Contractor shall be responsible for arranging, obtaining, and paying for all inspections and tests required:
 - 1. by the Contract Documents, unless the Contract Documents expressly allocate responsibility for a specific inspection or test to Owner;
 - 2. to attain Owner's and Engineer's acceptance of materials or equipment to be incorporated in the Work;
 - 3. by manufacturers of equipment furnished under the Contract Documents;
 - 4. for testing, adjusting, and balancing of mechanical, electrical, and other equipment to be incorporated into the Work; and
 - 5. for acceptance of materials, mix designs, or equipment submitted for approval prior to Contractor's purchase thereof for incorporation in the Work.

Such inspections and tests shall be performed by independent inspectors, testing laboratories, or other qualified individuals or entities acceptable to Owner and Engineer.

- E. If the Contract Documents require the Work (or part thereof) to be approved by Owner, Engineer, or another designated individual or entity, then Contractor shall assume full responsibility for arranging and obtaining such approvals.
- F. If any Work (or the work of others) that is to be inspected, tested, or approved is covered by Contractor without written concurrence of Engineer, Contractor shall, if requested by Engineer, uncover such Work for observation. Such uncovering shall be at Contractor's expense unless Contractor had given Engineer timely notice of Contractor's intention to

cover the same and Engineer had not acted with reasonable promptness in response to such notice.

14.03 Defective Work

- A. Contractor's Obligation: It is Contractor's obligation to assure that the Work is not defective.
- B. *Engineer's Authority*: Engineer has the authority to determine whether Work is defective, and to reject defective Work.
- C. Notice of Defects: Prompt notice of all defective Work of which Owner or Engineer has actual knowledge will be given to Contractor.
- D. Correction, or Removal and Replacement: Promptly after receipt of written notice of defective Work, Contractor shall correct all such defective Work, whether or not fabricated, installed, or completed, or, if Engineer has rejected the defective Work, remove it from the Project and replace it with Work that is not defective.
- E. *Preservation of Warranties*: When correcting defective Work, Contractor shall take no action that would void or otherwise impair Owner's special warranty and guarantee, if any, on said Work.
- F. Costs and Damages: In addition to its correction, removal, and replacement obligations with respect to defective Work, Contractor shall pay all claims, costs, losses, and damages arising out of or relating to defective Work, including but not limited to the cost of the inspection, testing, correction, removal, replacement, or reconstruction of such defective Work, fines levied against Owner by governmental authorities because the Work is defective, and the costs of repair or replacement of work of others resulting from defective Work. Prior to final payment, if Owner and Contractor are unable to agree as to the measure of such claims, costs, losses, and damages resulting from defective Work, then Owner may impose a reasonable set-off against payments due under Article 15.

14.04 Acceptance of Defective Work

A. If, instead of requiring correction or removal and replacement of defective Work, Owner prefers to accept it, Owner may do so (subject, if such acceptance occurs prior to final payment, to Engineer's confirmation that such acceptance is in general accord with the design intent and applicable engineering principles, and will not endanger public safety). Contractor shall pay all claims, costs, losses, and damages attributable to Owner's evaluation of and determination to accept such defective Work (such costs to be approved by Engineer as to reasonableness), and for the diminished value of the Work to the extent not otherwise paid by Contractor. If any such acceptance occurs prior to final payment, the necessary revisions in the Contract Documents with respect to the Work shall be incorporated in a Change Order. If the parties are unable to agree as to the decrease in the Contract Price, reflecting the diminished value of Work so accepted, then Owner may impose a reasonable set-off against payments due under Article 15. If the acceptance of defective Work occurs after final payment, Contractor shall pay an appropriate amount to Owner.

14.05 Uncovering Work

A. Engineer has the authority to require additional inspection or testing of the Work, whether or not the Work is fabricated, installed, or completed.

- B. If any Work is covered contrary to the written request of Engineer, then Contractor shall, if requested by Engineer, uncover such Work for Engineer's observation, and then replace the covering, all at Contractor's expense.
- C. If Engineer considers it necessary or advisable that covered Work be observed by Engineer or inspected or tested by others, then Contractor, at Engineer's request, shall uncover, expose, or otherwise make available for observation, inspection, or testing as Engineer may require, that portion of the Work in question, and provide all necessary labor, material, and equipment.
 - If it is found that the uncovered Work is defective, Contractor shall be responsible for all claims, costs, losses, and damages arising out of or relating to such uncovering, exposure, observation, inspection, and testing, and of satisfactory replacement or reconstruction (including but not limited to all costs of repair or replacement of work of others); and pending Contractor's full discharge of this responsibility the Owner shall be entitled to impose a reasonable set-off against payments due under Article 15.
 - 2. If the uncovered Work is not found to be defective, Contractor shall be allowed an increase in the Contract Price or an extension of the Contract Times, or both, directly attributable to such uncovering, exposure, observation, inspection, testing, replacement, and reconstruction. If the parties are unable to agree as to the amount or extent thereof, then Contractor may submit a Change Proposal within 30 days of the determination that the Work is not defective.

14.06 Owner May Stop the Work

A. If the Work is defective, or Contractor fails to supply sufficient skilled workers or suitable materials or equipment, or fails to perform the Work in such a way that the completed Work will conform to the Contract Documents, then Owner may order Contractor to stop the Work, or any portion thereof, until the cause for such order has been eliminated; however, this right of Owner to stop the Work shall not give rise to any duty on the part of Owner to exercise this right for the benefit of Contractor, any Subcontractor, any Supplier, any other individual or entity, or any surety for, or employee or agent of any of them.

14.07 Owner May Correct Defective Work

- A. If Contractor fails within a reasonable time after written notice from Engineer to correct defective Work, or to remove and replace rejected Work as required by Engineer, or if Contractor fails to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents, or if Contractor fails to comply with any other provision of the Contract Documents, then Owner may, after seven days written notice to Contractor, correct or remedy any such deficiency.
- B. In exercising the rights and remedies under this Paragraph 14.07, Owner shall proceed expeditiously. In connection with such corrective or remedial action, Owner may exclude Contractor from all or part of the Site, take possession of all or part of the Work and suspend Contractor's services related thereto, and incorporate in the Work all materials and equipment stored at the Site or for which Owner has paid Contractor but which are stored elsewhere. Contractor shall allow Owner, Owner's representatives, agents and employees, Owner's other contractors, and Engineer and Engineer's consultants access to the Site to enable Owner to exercise the rights and remedies under this paragraph.
- C. All claims, costs, losses, and damages incurred or sustained by Owner in exercising the rights and remedies under this Paragraph 14.07 will be charged against Contractor as setoffs against payments due under Article 15. Such claims, costs, losses and damages will

- include but not be limited to all costs of repair, or replacement of work of others destroyed or damaged by correction, removal, or replacement of Contractor's defective Work.
- D. Contractor shall not be allowed an extension of the Contract Times because of any delay in the performance of the Work attributable to the exercise by Owner of Owner's rights and remedies under this Paragraph 14.07.

ARTICLE 15 - PAYMENTS TO CONTRACTOR; SET-OFFS; COMPLETION; CORRECTION PERIOD

15.01 Progress Payments

A. Basis for Progress Payments: The Schedule of Values established as provided in Article 2 will serve as the basis for progress payments and will be incorporated into a form of Application for Payment acceptable to Engineer. Progress payments on account of Unit Price Work will be based on the number of units completed during the pay period, as determined under the provisions of Paragraph 13.03. Progress payments for cost-based Work will be based on Cost of the Work completed by Contractor during the pay period.

B. Applications for Payments:

- 1. At least 20 days before the date established in the Agreement for each progress payment (but not more often than once a month), Contractor shall submit to Engineer for review an Application for Payment filled out and signed by Contractor covering the Work completed as of the date of the Application and accompanied by such supporting documentation as is required by the Contract Documents. If payment is requested on the basis of materials and equipment not incorporated in the Work but delivered and suitably stored at the Site or at another location agreed to in writing, the Application for Payment shall also be accompanied by a bill of sale, invoice, or other documentation warranting that Owner has received the materials and equipment free and clear of all Liens, and evidence that the materials and equipment are covered by appropriate property insurance, a warehouse bond, or other arrangements to protect Owner's interest therein, all of which must be satisfactory to Owner.
- Beginning with the second Application for Payment, each Application shall include an
 affidavit of Contractor stating that all previous progress payments received on account
 of the Work have been applied on account to discharge Contractor's legitimate
 obligations associated with prior Applications for Payment.
- 3. The amount of retainage with respect to progress payments will be as stipulated in the Agreement.

C. Review of Applications:

- Engineer will, within 10 days after receipt of each Application for Payment, including each resubmittal, either indicate in writing a recommendation of payment and present the Application to Owner, or return the Application to Contractor indicating in writing Engineer's reasons for refusing to recommend payment. In the latter case, Contractor may make the necessary corrections and resubmit the Application.
- 2. Engineer's recommendation of any payment requested in an Application for Payment will constitute a representation by Engineer to Owner, based on Engineer's observations of the executed Work as an experienced and qualified design professional, and on Engineer's review of the Application for Payment and the accompanying data and schedules, that to the best of Engineer's knowledge, information and belief:

- a. the Work has progressed to the point indicated;
- b. the quality of the Work is generally in accordance with the Contract Documents (subject to an evaluation of the Work as a functioning whole prior to or upon Substantial Completion, the results of any subsequent tests called for in the Contract Documents, a final determination of quantities and classifications for Unit Price Work under Paragraph 13.03, and any other qualifications stated in the recommendation); and
- c. the conditions precedent to Contractor's being entitled to such payment appear to have been fulfilled in so far as it is Engineer's responsibility to observe the Work.
- 3. By recommending any such payment Engineer will not thereby be deemed to have represented that:
 - a. inspections made to check the quality or the quantity of the Work as it has been performed have been exhaustive, extended to every aspect of the Work in progress, or involved detailed inspections of the Work beyond the responsibilities specifically assigned to Engineer in the Contract; or
 - b. there may not be other matters or issues between the parties that might entitle Contractor to be paid additionally by Owner or entitle Owner to withhold payment to Contractor.
- 4. Neither Engineer's review of Contractor's Work for the purposes of recommending payments nor Engineer's recommendation of any payment, including final payment, will impose responsibility on Engineer:
 - a. to supervise, direct, or control the Work, or
 - b. for the means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction, or the safety precautions and programs incident thereto, or
 - c. for Contractor's failure to comply with Laws and Regulations applicable to Contractor's performance of the Work, or
 - d. to make any examination to ascertain how or for what purposes Contractor has used the money paid on account of the Contract Price, or
 - e. to determine that title to any of the Work, materials, or equipment has passed to Owner free and clear of any Liens.
- 5. Engineer may refuse to recommend the whole or any part of any payment if, in Engineer's opinion, it would be incorrect to make the representations to Owner stated in Paragraph 15.01.C.2.
- 6. Engineer will recommend reductions in payment (set-offs) necessary in Engineer's opinion to protect Owner from loss because:
 - a. the Work is defective, requiring correction or replacement;
 - the Contract Price has been reduced by Change Orders;
 - c. Owner has been required to correct defective Work in accordance with Paragraph 14.07, or has accepted defective Work pursuant to Paragraph 14.04;
 - d. Owner has been required to remove or remediate a Hazardous Environmental Condition for which Contractor is responsible; or

e. Engineer has actual knowledge of the occurrence of any of the events that would constitute a default by Contractor and therefore justify termination for cause under the Contract Documents.

D. Payment Becomes Due:

1. Ten days after presentation of the Application for Payment to Owner with Engineer's recommendation, the amount recommended (subject to any Owner set-offs) will become due, and when due will be paid by Owner to Contractor.

E. Reductions in Payment by Owner:

- 1. In addition to any reductions in payment (set-offs) recommended by Engineer, Owner is entitled to impose a set-off against payment based on any of the following:
 - a. claims have been made against Owner on account of Contractor's conduct in the performance or furnishing of the Work, or Owner has incurred costs, losses, or damages on account of Contractor's conduct in the performance or furnishing of the Work, including but not limited to claims, costs, losses, or damages from workplace injuries, adjacent property damage, non-compliance with Laws and Regulations, and patent infringement;
 - Contractor has failed to take reasonable and customary measures to avoid damage, delay, disruption, and interference with other work at or adjacent to the Site;
 - c. Contractor has failed to provide and maintain required bonds or insurance;
 - d. Owner has been required to remove or remediate a Hazardous Environmental Condition for which Contractor is responsible;
 - e. Owner has incurred extra charges or engineering costs related to submittal reviews, evaluations of proposed substitutes, tests and inspections, or return visits to manufacturing or assembly facilities;
 - f. the Work is defective, requiring correction or replacement;
 - g. Owner has been required to correct defective Work in accordance with Paragraph 14.07, or has accepted defective Work pursuant to Paragraph 14.04;
 - h. the Contract Price has been reduced by Change Orders;
 - an event that would constitute a default by Contractor and therefore justify a termination for cause has occurred;
 - liquidated damages have accrued as a result of Contractor's failure to achieve Milestones, Substantial Completion, or final completion of the Work;
 - Liens have been filed in connection with the Work, except where Contractor has delivered a specific bond satisfactory to Owner to secure the satisfaction and discharge of such Liens;
 - l. there are other items entitling Owner to a set off against the amount recommended.
- If Owner imposes any set-off against payment, whether based on its own knowledge
 or on the written recommendations of Engineer, Owner will give Contractor
 immediate written notice (with a copy to Engineer) stating the reasons for such action
 and the specific amount of the reduction, and promptly pay Contractor any amount

remaining after deduction of the amount so withheld. Owner shall promptly pay Contractor the amount so withheld, or any adjustment thereto agreed to by Owner and Contractor, if Contractor remedies the reasons for such action. The reduction imposed shall be binding on Contractor unless it duly submits a Change Proposal contesting the reduction.

3. Upon a subsequent determination that Owner's refusal of payment was not justified, the amount wrongfully withheld shall be treated as an amount due as determined by Paragraph 15.01.C.1 and subject to interest as provided in the Agreement.

15.02 Contractor's Warranty of Title

A. Contractor warrants and guarantees that title to all Work, materials, and equipment furnished under the Contract will pass to Owner free and clear of (1) all Liens and other title defects, and (2) all patent, licensing, copyright, or royalty obligations, no later than seven days after the time of payment by Owner.

15.03 Substantial Completion

- A. When Contractor considers the entire Work ready for its intended use Contractor shall notify Owner and Engineer in writing that the entire Work is substantially complete and request that Engineer issue a certificate of Substantial Completion. Contractor shall at the same time submit to Owner and Engineer an initial draft of punch list items to be completed or corrected before final payment.
- B. Promptly after Contractor's notification, Owner, Contractor, and Engineer shall make an inspection of the Work to determine the status of completion. If Engineer does not consider the Work substantially complete, Engineer will notify Contractor in writing giving the reasons therefor.
- C. If Engineer considers the Work substantially complete, Engineer will deliver to Owner a preliminary certificate of Substantial Completion which shall fix the date of Substantial Completion. Engineer shall attach to the certificate a punch list of items to be completed or corrected before final payment. Owner shall have seven days after receipt of the preliminary certificate during which to make written objection to Engineer as to any provisions of the certificate or attached punch list. If, after considering the objections to the provisions of the preliminary certificate, Engineer concludes that the Work is not substantially complete, Engineer will, within 14 days after submission of the preliminary certificate to Owner, notify Contractor in writing that the Work is not substantially complete, stating the reasons therefor. If Owner does not object to the provisions of the certificate, or if despite consideration of Owner's objections Engineer concludes that the Work is substantially complete, then Engineer will, within said 14 days, execute and deliver to Owner and Contractor a final certificate of Substantial Completion (with a revised punch list of items to be completed or corrected) reflecting such changes from the preliminary certificate as Engineer believes justified after consideration of any objections from Owner.
- D. At the time of receipt of the preliminary certificate of Substantial Completion, Owner and Contractor will confer regarding Owner's use or occupancy of the Work following Substantial Completion, review the builder's risk insurance policy with respect to the end of the builder's risk coverage, and confirm the transition to coverage of the Work under a permanent property insurance policy held by Owner. Unless Owner and Contractor agree otherwise in writing, Owner shall bear responsibility for security, operation, protection of the Work, property insurance, maintenance, heat, and utilities upon Owner's use or occupancy of the Work.

- E. After Substantial Completion the Contractor shall promptly begin work on the punch list of items to be completed or corrected prior to final payment. In appropriate cases Contractor may submit monthly Applications for Payment for completed punch list items, following the progress payment procedures set forth above.
- F. Owner shall have the right to exclude Contractor from the Site after the date of Substantial Completion subject to allowing Contractor reasonable access to remove its property and complete or correct items on the punch list.

15.04 Partial Use or Occupancy

- A. Prior to Substantial Completion of all the Work, Owner may use or occupy any substantially completed part of the Work which has specifically been identified in the Contract Documents, or which Owner, Engineer, and Contractor agree constitutes a separately functioning and usable part of the Work that can be used by Owner for its intended purpose without significant interference with Contractor's performance of the remainder of the Work, subject to the following conditions:
 - At any time Owner may request in writing that Contractor permit Owner to use or occupy any such part of the Work that Owner believes to be substantially complete. If and when Contractor agrees that such part of the Work is substantially complete, Contractor, Owner, and Engineer will follow the procedures of Paragraph 15.03.A through E for that part of the Work.
 - 2. At any time Contractor may notify Owner and Engineer in writing that Contractor considers any such part of the Work substantially complete and request Engineer to issue a certificate of Substantial Completion for that part of the Work.
 - 3. Within a reasonable time after either such request, Owner, Contractor, and Engineer shall make an inspection of that part of the Work to determine its status of completion. If Engineer does not consider that part of the Work to be substantially complete, Engineer will notify Owner and Contractor in writing giving the reasons therefor. If Engineer considers that part of the Work to be substantially complete, the provisions of Paragraph 15.03 will apply with respect to certification of Substantial Completion of that part of the Work and the division of responsibility in respect thereof and access thereto.
 - 4. No use or occupancy or separate operation of part of the Work may occur prior to compliance with the requirements of Paragraph 6.05 regarding builder's risk or other property insurance.

15.05 Final Inspection

A. Upon written notice from Contractor that the entire Work or an agreed portion thereof is complete, Engineer will promptly make a final inspection with Owner and Contractor and will notify Contractor in writing of all particulars in which this inspection reveals that the Work, or agreed portion thereof, is incomplete or defective. Contractor shall immediately take such measures as are necessary to complete such Work or remedy such deficiencies.

15.06 Final Payment

- A. Application for Payment:
 - After Contractor has, in the opinion of Engineer, satisfactorily completed all
 corrections identified during the final inspection and has delivered, in accordance with
 the Contract Documents, all maintenance and operating instructions, schedules,
 guarantees, bonds, certificates or other evidence of insurance, certificates of

inspection, annotated record documents (as provided in Paragraph 7.11), and other documents, Contractor may make application for final payment.

- The final Application for Payment shall be accompanied (except as previously delivered) by:
 - a. all documentation called for in the Contract Documents;
 - b. consent of the surety, if any, to final payment;
 - c. satisfactory evidence that all title issues have been resolved such that title to all Work, materials, and equipment has passed to Owner free and clear of any Liens or other title defects, or will so pass upon final payment.
 - d. a list of all disputes that Contractor believes are unsettled; and
 - e. complete and legally effective releases or waivers (satisfactory to Owner) of all Lien rights arising out of the Work, and of Liens filed in connection with the Work.
- 3. In lieu of the releases or waivers of Liens specified in Paragraph 15.06.A.2 and as approved by Owner, Contractor may furnish receipts or releases in full and an affidavit of Contractor that: (a) the releases and receipts include all labor, services, material, and equipment for which a Lien could be filed; and (b) all payrolls, material and equipment bills, and other indebtedness connected with the Work for which Owner might in any way be responsible, or which might in any way result in liens or other burdens on Owner's property, have been paid or otherwise satisfied. If any Subcontractor or Supplier fails to furnish such a release or receipt in full, Contractor may furnish a bond or other collateral satisfactory to Owner to indemnify Owner against any Lien, or Owner at its option may issue joint checks payable to Contractor and specified Subcontractors and Suppliers.
- B. Engineer's Review of Application and Acceptance:
 - 1. If, on the basis of Engineer's observation of the Work during construction and final inspection, and Engineer's review of the final Application for Payment and accompanying documentation as required by the Contract Documents, Engineer is satisfied that the Work has been completed and Contractor's other obligations under the Contract have been fulfilled, Engineer will, within ten days after receipt of the final Application for Payment, indicate in writing Engineer's recommendation of final payment and present the Application for Payment to Owner for payment. Such recommendation shall account for any set-offs against payment that are necessary in Engineer's opinion to protect Owner from loss for the reasons stated above with respect to progress payments. At the same time Engineer will also give written notice to Owner and Contractor that the Work is acceptable, subject to the provisions of Paragraph 15.07. Otherwise, Engineer will return the Application for Payment to Contractor, indicating in writing the reasons for refusing to recommend final payment, in which case Contractor shall make the necessary corrections and resubmit the Application for Payment.
- C. Completion of Work: The Work is complete (subject to surviving obligations) when it is ready for final payment as established by the Engineer's written recommendation of final payment.
- D. Payment Becomes Due: Thirty days after the presentation to Owner of the final Application for Payment and accompanying documentation, the amount recommended by Engineer (less any further sum Owner is entitled to set off against Engineer's recommendation,

including but not limited to set-offs for liquidated damages and set-offs allowed under the provisions above with respect to progress payments) will become due and shall be paid by Owner to Contractor.

15.07 Waiver of Claims

- A. The making of final payment will not constitute a waiver by Owner of claims or rights against Contractor. Owner expressly reserves claims and rights arising from unsettled Liens, from defective Work appearing after final inspection pursuant to Paragraph 15.05, from Contractor's failure to comply with the Contract Documents or the terms of any special guarantees specified therein, from outstanding Claims by Owner, or from Contractor's continuing obligations under the Contract Documents.
- B. The acceptance of final payment by Contractor will constitute a waiver by Contractor of all claims and rights against Owner other than those pending matters that have been duly submitted or appealed under the provisions of Article 17.

15.08 Correction Period

- A. If within one year after the date of Substantial Completion (or such longer period of time as may be prescribed by the terms of any applicable special guarantee required by the Contract Documents, or by any specific provision of the Contract Documents), any Work is found to be defective, or if the repair of any damages to the Site, adjacent areas that Contractor has arranged to use through construction easements or otherwise, and other adjacent areas used by Contractor as permitted by Laws and Regulations, is found to be defective, then Contractor shall promptly, without cost to Owner and in accordance with Owner's written instructions:
 - 1. correct the defective repairs to the Site or such other adjacent areas;
 - 2. correct such defective Work;
 - 3. if the defective Work has been rejected by Owner, remove it from the Project and replace it with Work that is not defective, and
 - 4. satisfactorily correct or repair or remove and replace any damage to other Work, to the work of others, or to other land or areas resulting therefrom.
- B. If Contractor does not promptly comply with the terms of Owner's written instructions, or in an emergency where delay would cause serious risk of loss or damage, Owner may have the defective Work corrected or repaired or may have the rejected Work removed and replaced. Contractor shall pay all claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals and all court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating to such correction or repair or such removal and replacement (including but not limited to all costs of repair or replacement of work of others).
- C. In special circumstances where a particular item of equipment is placed in continuous service before Substantial Completion of all the Work, the correction period for that item may start to run from an earlier date if so provided in the Specifications.
- D. Where defective Work (and damage to other Work resulting therefrom) has been corrected or removed and replaced under this paragraph; the correction period hereunder with respect to such Work will be extended for an additional period of one year after such correction or removal and replacement has been satisfactorily completed.

E. Contractor's obligations under this paragraph are in addition to all other obligations and warranties. The provisions of this paragraph shall not be construed as a substitute for, or a waiver of, the provisions of any applicable statute of limitation or repose.

ARTICLE 16 - SUSPENSION OF WORK AND TERMINATION

16.01 Owner May Suspend Work

A. At any time and without cause, Owner may suspend the Work or any portion thereof for a period of not more than 90 consecutive days by written notice to Contractor and Engineer. Such notice will fix the date on which Work will be resumed. Contractor shall resume the Work on the date so fixed. Contractor shall be entitled to an adjustment in the Contract Price or an extension of the Contract Times, or both, directly attributable to any such suspension. Any Change Proposal seeking such adjustments shall be submitted no later than 30 days after the date fixed for resumption of Work.

16.02 Owner May Terminate for Cause

- A. The occurrence of any one or more of the following events will constitute a default by Contractor and justify termination for cause:
 - Contractor's persistent failure to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents (including, but not limited to, failure to supply sufficient skilled workers or suitable materials or equipment or failure to adhere to the Progress Schedule);
 - 2. Failure of Contractor to perform or otherwise to comply with a material term of the Contract Documents;
 - 3. Contractor's disregard of Laws or Regulations of any public body having jurisdiction; or
 - 4. Contractor's repeated disregard of the authority of Owner or Engineer.
- B. If one or more of the events identified in Paragraph 16.02.A occurs, then after giving Contractor (and any surety) ten days written notice that Owner is considering a declaration that Contractor is in default and termination of the contract, Owner may proceed to:
 - 1. declare Contractor to be in default, and give Contractor (and any surety) notice that the Contract is terminated; and
 - 2. enforce the rights available to Owner under any applicable performance bond.
- C. Subject to the terms and operation of any applicable performance bond, if Owner has terminated the Contract for cause, Owner may exclude Contractor from the Site, take possession of the Work, incorporate in the Work all materials and equipment stored at the Site or for which Owner has paid Contractor but which are stored elsewhere, and complete the Work as Owner may deem expedient.
- D. Owner may not proceed with termination of the Contract under Paragraph 16.02.B if Contractor within seven days of receipt of notice of intent to terminate begins to correct its failure to perform and proceeds diligently to cure such failure.
- E. If Owner proceeds as provided in Paragraph 16.02.B, Contractor shall not be entitled to receive any further payment until the Work is completed. If the unpaid balance of the Contract Price exceeds the cost to complete the Work, including all related claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals) sustained by Owner, such excess will be paid to Contractor. If the cost to complete the Work including such related claims, costs, losses,

- and damages exceeds such unpaid balance, Contractor shall pay the difference to Owner. Such claims, costs, losses, and damages incurred by Owner will be reviewed by Engineer as to their reasonableness and, when so approved by Engineer, incorporated in a Change Order. When exercising any rights or remedies under this paragraph, Owner shall not be required to obtain the lowest price for the Work performed.
- F. Where Contractor's services have been so terminated by Owner, the termination will not affect any rights or remedies of Owner against Contractor then existing or which may thereafter accrue, or any rights or remedies of Owner against Contractor or any surety under any payment bond or performance bond. Any retention or payment of money due Contractor by Owner will not release Contractor from liability.
- G. If and to the extent that Contractor has provided a performance bond under the provisions of Paragraph 6.01.A, the provisions of that bond shall govern over any inconsistent provisions of Paragraphs 16.02.B and 16.02.D.

16.03 Owner May Terminate For Convenience

- A. Upon seven days written notice to Contractor and Engineer, Owner may, without cause and without prejudice to any other right or remedy of Owner, terminate the Contract. In such case, Contractor shall be paid for (without duplication of any items):
 - completed and acceptable Work executed in accordance with the Contract Documents prior to the effective date of termination, including fair and reasonable sums for overhead and profit on such Work;
 - expenses sustained prior to the effective date of termination in performing services and furnishing labor, materials, or equipment as required by the Contract Documents in connection with uncompleted Work, plus fair and reasonable sums for overhead and profit on such expenses; and
 - 3. other reasonable expenses directly attributable to termination, including costs incurred to prepare a termination for convenience cost proposal.
- B. Contractor shall not be paid on account of loss of anticipated overhead, profits, or revenue, or other economic loss arising out of or resulting from such termination.

16.04 Contractor May Stop Work or Terminate

- A. If, through no act or fault of Contractor, (1) the Work is suspended for more than 90 consecutive days by Owner or under an order of court or other public authority, or (2) Engineer fails to act on any Application for Payment within 30 days after it is submitted, or (3) Owner fails for 30 days to pay Contractor any sum finally determined to be due, then Contractor may, upon seven days written notice to Owner and Engineer, and provided Owner or Engineer do not remedy such suspension or failure within that time, terminate the contract and recover from Owner payment on the same terms as provided in Paragraph 16.03.
- B. In lieu of terminating the Contract and without prejudice to any other right or remedy, if Engineer has failed to act on an Application for Payment within 30 days after it is submitted, or Owner has failed for 30 days to pay Contractor any sum finally determined to be due, Contractor may, seven days after written notice to Owner and Engineer, stop the Work until payment is made of all such amounts due Contractor, including interest thereon. The provisions of this paragraph are not intended to preclude Contractor from submitting a Change Proposal for an adjustment in Contract Price or Contract Times or otherwise for

expenses or damage directly attributable to Contractor's stopping the Work as permitted by this paragraph.

ARTICLE 17 - FINAL RESOLUTION OF DISPUTES

17.01 Methods and Procedures

- A. Disputes Subject to Final Resolution: The following disputed matters are subject to final resolution under the provisions of this Article:
 - 1. A timely appeal of an approval in part and denial in part of a Claim, or of a denial in full; and
 - 2. Disputes between Owner and Contractor concerning the Work or obligations under the Contract Documents, and arising after final payment has been made.
- B. *Final Resolution of Disputes*: For any dispute subject to resolution under this Article, Owner or Contractor may:
 - elect in writing to invoke the dispute resolution process provided for in the Supplementary Conditions; or
 - 2. agree with the other party to submit the dispute to another dispute resolution process; or
 - if no dispute resolution process is provided for in the Supplementary Conditions or mutually agreed to, give written notice to the other party of the intent to submit the dispute to a court of competent jurisdiction.

ARTICLE 18 – MISCELLANEOUS

18.01 Giving Notice.

- A. Whenever any provision of the Contract Documents requires the giving of written notice, it will be deemed to have been validly given if:
 - 1. delivered in person, by a commercial courier service or otherwise, to the individual or to a member of the firm or to an officer of the corporation for which it is intended; or
 - 2. delivered at or sent by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, to the last business address known to the sender of the notice.

18.02 Computation of Times

A. When any period of time is referred to in the Contract by days, it will be computed to exclude the first and include the last day of such period. If the last day of any such period falls on a Saturday or Sunday or on a day made a legal holiday by the law of the applicable jurisdiction, such day will be omitted from the computation.

18.03 Cumulative Remedies

A. The duties and obligations imposed by these General Conditions and the rights and remedies available hereunder to the parties hereto are in addition to, and are not to be construed in any way as a limitation of, any rights and remedies available to any or all of them which are otherwise imposed or available by Laws or Regulations, by special warranty or guarantee, or by other provisions of the Contract. The provisions of this paragraph will be as effective as if repeated specifically in the Contract Documents in connection with each particular duty, obligation, right, and remedy to which they apply.

18.04 Limitation of Damages

A. With respect to any and all Change Proposals, Claims, disputes subject to final resolution, and other matters at issue, neither Owner nor Engineer, nor any of their officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, or subcontractors, shall be liable to Contractor for any claims, costs, losses, or damages sustained by Contractor on or in connection with any other project or anticipated project.

18.05 No Waiver

A. A party's non-enforcement of any provision shall not constitute a waiver of that provision, nor shall it affect the enforceability of that provision or of the remainder of this Contract.

18.06 Survival of Obligations

A. All representations, indemnifications, warranties, and guarantees made in, required by, or given in accordance with the Contract, as well as all continuing obligations indicated in the Contract, will survive final payment, completion, and acceptance of the Work or termination or completion of the Contract or termination of the services of Contractor.

18.07 Controlling Law

A. This Contract is to be governed by the law of the state in which the Project is located.

18.08 Headings

A. Article and paragraph headings are inserted for convenience only and do not constitute parts of these General Conditions.

These Supplementary Conditions amend or supplement the Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract, EJCDC® C-700 (2013 Edition). All provisions that are not so amended or supplemented remain in full force and effect.

The terms used in these Supplementary Conditions have the meanings stated in the General Conditions except as amended by Article 1. Additional terms used in these Supplementary Conditions have the meanings stated in Article 1 below, which are applicable to both the singular and plural thereof.

The address system used in these Supplementary Conditions is the same as the address system used in the General Conditions, with the prefix "SC" added thereto.

ARTICLE 1 - DEFINITIONS AND TERMINOLOGY

SC 1.01 Add the following language at the end of last sentence of Paragraph 1.01.A.8:

The Change Order form to be used on this Project is provided by the Owner. Owner approval is required before Change Orders are effective.

SC 1.01 Delete Paragraph 1.01.A.15 in its entirety and add the following in its place:

Contract Times - The number of days or the dates stated in the Agreement to complete the Work so that it is ready for final payment as evidenced by Engineer's written recommendation.

SC 1.01 Add the following new language at the end of the last sentence of Paragraph 1.01.A.28:

The authorized representative of Owner assigned to this project is herein, referred to as Project Director.

SC 1.01 Add the following new language at the end of the last sentence of Paragraph 1.01.A.48:

A Work Change directive cannot change Contract Price or Contract Times. Contract Price or Contract time can only be modified with a Change Order.

ARTICLE 2 - PRELIMINARY MATTERS

SC 2.02 Amend the first sentence of Paragraph 2.02.A to read as follows:

A. OWNER shall furnish to the Contractor three (3) copies of the Contract Document (including one fully executed counter part of the Agreement) and one copy in electronic portable document format (PDF).

SC 2.06 Delete Paragraph 2.06.B in its entirety.

ARTICLE 4 - COMMENCEMENT AND PROGRESS OF THE WORK

- SC 4.01 Delete Paragraph 4.01.A in its entirety and add the following in its place:
 - A. Notice to Proceed The OWNER will, after executing the Contract, issue to the Contractor in writing a Notice to Proceed. The beginning of the time allotted for the Contract completion will be 10 days after the date of the Notice to Proceed, or the day on which Work is actually started, whichever occurs first.
- SC. 4.05 Add the following paragraphs immediately after Paragraph 4.05.C.2
 - a. Claims for delays due to abnormal weather conditions shall be handled on a monthly basis. The Contractor shall submit a notice of a claim for a weather delay in each particular month on the last day of that month. Failure to submit notice as required shall constitute a waiver of any claim because of abnormal weather conditions for that month. The Contractor shall submit the notice to the Engineer. Within seven (7) calendar days after the submission of the weather claim notice, the Contractor will submit to the Engineer evidence to justify the claim. This evidence will include the following:
 - 1. The days of the month on which the adverse weather occurred. The Contractor will also provide the hours of the day during which the adverse weather occurred at the job site.
 - 2. A detailed description of the activities that were affected by the adverse weather.
 - 3. A detailed description of claim for the impact of the adverse weather on the critical path of the schedule.
 - b. The Engineer will review the claim evidence submitted by the Contractor. The Engineer will first compare the adverse weather received during the month against the weather that could have been anticipated for that month, then compare the number of days in the month that exceeded 0.1 inches, then verify that the days requested had greater than 1-inch of precipitation. Anticipated weather for a month will be defined as the average of the weather conditions that have occurred in that month for the years 2014-2016, as documented by the NOAA National Data Center at the St. Augustine Lighthouse.

ARTICLE 5 – AVAILABILITY OF LANDS; SUBSURFACE AND PHYSICAL CONDITIONS; HAZARDOUS ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS

SC 5.03 Add the following paragraphs immediately after Paragraph 5.03.A.3

A. Report dated May 18, 2018 titled "Report of Geotechnical Exploration SR 16 WWTP Filters, St. Johns County, Florida" is included in the Specifications as Appendix A – Geotechnical Report.

ARTICLE 6 - BONDS AND INSURANCE

SC 6.01 Amend Paragraph A to read as follows:

A. Contractor shall furnish a public construction bond, in an amount at least equal to the Contract Price, as security for the faithful performance and payment of all of Contractor's obligations under the Contract. The bond shall remain in effect until one year after the date when final payment becomes due or until completion of the correction period specified in Paragraph 15.08, whichever is later, except as provided otherwise by Laws or Regulations, the Supplementary Conditions, or other specific provisions of the Contract. Contractor shall also furnish such other bonds as are required by the Supplementary Conditions or other specific provisions of the Contract.

SC 6.01 Amend Paragraph F to read as follows:

F. Upon request, Owner shall provide a copy of the public construction bond to any Subcontractor, Supplier, or other person or entity claiming to have furnished labor or materials used in the performance of the Work.

SC 6.02 Add the following paragraphs immediately after Paragraph 6.02.J:

K. The Contractor shall not commence work under this Contract until he/she has obtained all insurance required under this section and such insurance has been approved by the County. All insurance policies shall be issued by companies authorized to do business under the laws of the State of Florida. The Contractor shall furnish proof of Insurance to the County prior to the commencement of operations. The Certificate(s) shall clearly indicate the Contractor has obtained insurance of the type, amount, and classification as required by contract and that no material change or cancellation of the insurance shall be effective without thirty (30) days prior written notice to the County. Certificates shall specifically include the County as Additional Insured for all lines of coverage except Workers' Compensation and Professional Liability. A copy of the endorsement must accompany the certificate. Compliance with the foregoing requirements shall not relieve the Contractor of its liability and obligations under this Contract.

Certificate Holder Address:
St. Johns County, a political subdivision of the State of Fiorida
500 San Sebastian View
St. Augustine, FL 32084

SC 6.03 Delete Paragraph 6.03.A. and replace with the following paragraph:

- A. Workers' Compensation: The Contractor shall maintain during the life of this Contract, adequate Workers' Compensation Insurance in at least such amounts as are required by the law for all of its per Florida Statute 440.02.
- SC 6.03 Delete paragraph 6.03 B and replace with the following paragraph:
 - B. Comprehensive General Liability: The Contractor shall maintain during the life of this Contract, Comprehensive General Liability Insurance with minimum limits of \$1,000,000 per occurrence, \$2,000,000 aggregate to protect the Contractor from claims for damages for bodily injury, including wrongful death, as well as from claims of property damages which may arise from any operations under this Contract, whether such operations be by the Contractor or by anyone directly employed by or contracting with the Contractor.
- SC 6.03 Delete paragraph 6.03 C in its entirety.
- SC 6.03 Delete paragraph 6.03 D and replace with the following paragraph:
 - D. Automotive Liability: The Contractor shall maintain during the life of this Contract, Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance with minimum limits of \$2,000,000 combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage liability to protect the Contractor from claims for damages for bodily injury, including the ownership, use, or maintenance of owned and non-owned automobiles, including rented/hired automobiles whether such operations be by the Contractor or by anyone directly or indirectly employed by a Contractor.
- SC 6.03 Delete paragraph 6.03 E and replace with the following paragraph:
 - E. Umbrella or Excess Liability: The Contractor shall maintain Umbrella or Excess Liability Insurance covering workers compensation, commercial general liability and business auto liability with minimum limits of liability of \$1,000,000.
 - SC 6.03 Delete Paragraph 6.03.F in its entirety and replace with the following paragraph:
 - F. Builder's Risk: The CONTRACTOR shall maintain during the life of this Contract, adequate Builder's Risk Insurance in the amount of the initial contract amount plus the values of subsequent modifications, change orders, and loss of materials supplied or installed by others comprising the value of the entire project at the site on a replacement cost basis.
 - SC 6.03 Delete Paragraph 6.03.H in its entirety and replace with the following paragraph:
 - H. Contractor's professional liability insurance: The Contractor shall maintain during the life of the contract, Professional Liability or Errors and Omissions Insurance with minimum limits of \$1,000,000, if

applicable.

ARTICLE 7 - CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES

SC 7.02 Amend the first sentence of Paragraph 7.02.B by adding 7:00 AM to 5:00 PM.

SC 7.04 Delete Paragraph 7.04 in its entirety and replace with the following paragraph:

- A. Contractor shall submit for approval of all equipment and materials that are not specifically listed as approved manufacturers, products, or equipment on the project. These procedures will be followed. Should the Contractor wish to deviate from the design provided herein, costs for review and approval of these modifications will be borne by the Contractor. The Contractor must submit a request for deviation and acknowledgement that they are responsible for all costs prior to the Engineer reviewing said changes.
- B. For products, materials, or equipment specified by name and which do not include "Engineer Approved Equal" or "Or Equal", there is not an option to provide a substitution and one of the product manufacturers or equipment listed shall be provided.
- C. Any equipment, materials, or products that the Contractor wishes to provide an alternate product, material, or equipment vendor and which are listed in the technical specifications or on the Drawings as "Engineer Approved Equal" or "Or Equal" shall be approved PRIOR to the bid opening. Contractor shall submit all information for approval by the Engineer a minimum of 14-days prior to the bid opening. Substitutions provided after that date will not be accepted or allowed.
 - 1. Provide the following information with the substitutions package for review during the bid phase:
 - a. Name of the material or equipment for which it is to be substituted and a complete description of the proposed substitute, including drawings, cut sheets, performance and testing data, and any other information necessary for the evaluation. Standard brochures are not acceptable. Information shall be specific and detailed for this project.
 - b. Provide a statement comparing the product, material, or equipment with the technical specification or drawings with any deviations, changes, or modifications required clearly outlined.
 - c. Provide a list of references of similar sized equipment or installation references for review. At least three separate references shall be provided.
 - Approval of substitutions is strictly at the discretion of the Owner and Engineer.

SC 7.05 Delete Paragraph 7.05 in its entirety.

SC 7.06 Amend Paragraph 7.06.A by adding the following text to the end of the paragraph:

The Contractor shall not award work valued at more than <u>50</u> percent of the Contract Price less cost of direct purchased items and the Sales Tax Exemption Agreement to Subcontractor(s), without prior written approval of the OWNER.

SC 7.16 Delete Paragraph 7.16.B. and replace with the following paragraph:

Submittal Procedures for Shop Drawings, Samples and Other Submittals: Contractor shall submit as per Section 01300 of the Specifications.

SC 7.16 Delete Paragraph 7.16.C in its entirety.

SC 7.16 Amend Paragraph 7.16.E.2 by striking out the following: "three" and replace with:

two

SC 7.16 Amend Paragraph 7.16.E.2 by striking out the following: "fourth" and replace with:

third

ARTICLE 9 - OWNER'S RESPONSIBILITIES

SC 9.13 Add the following new paragraph immediately after Paragraph 9.12.

9.13 Project Director

- A. The Project Director, unless otherwise directed by the Owner shall perform those duties and discharge those responsibilities allocated to the Project Director as set forth in this Agreement. The Project Director shall be the Owner's representative from the effective date of this Agreement until Final Payment has been made. The Project Director shall be authorized to act on behalf of the Owner only to the extent provided in this Agreement.
- B. The Owner and the Contractor shall communicate with each other in the first instance through the Engineer and Project Director.
- C. The Project Director shall be the initial interpreter of the requirements of the drawings and specifications and the judge of the performance there under by the Contractor. The Project Director shall render written or graphic interpretations necessary for the proper execution or progress of the Work with reasonable promptness on request of the Contractor.
- D. The Engineer and Project Director shall review the Contractor's Applications for Payment and shall certify to the Owner for payment to the Contractor, those amounts then due to the Contractor as provided in this Agreement.

- E. The Project Director shall have authority to reject Work, which is defective or does not conform to the requirements of this Agreement. If the Project Director deems it necessary or advisable, the Project Director shall authority to require additional inspection or testing of the Work for compliance with Contract requirements at Contractor's expense.
- F. The Project Director shall review and approve, or take other appropriate action as necessary, concerning the Contractor's submittals including Product Data and Samples. Such review, approval or other action shall be for the sole purpose of determining conformance with the design concept and information given through the Contract Documents.
- G. The Project Director shall prepare Change Orders and may authorize minor changes in the Work by field order as provided elsewhere herein.
- H. The Project Director shall, upon written request from the Contractor, conduct inspections to determine the date of Substantial Completion and the date of Final Completion, shall receive and forward to the Owner for the Owner's review and records, written warranties and related documents required by this Agreement and shall issue a Final Certificate for Payment upon compliance with the requirements of this Agreement.
- I. The Project Director's decision in matters relating to aesthetic effect shall be final if consistent with the intent of this Agreement.
- ARTICLE 15 PAYMENTS TO CONTRACTOR; SET-OFFS; COMPLETION; CORRECTION PERIOD
- SC 15.01 Delete Paragraph 15.01.B.3 in its entirety and replace with the following:

The amount of such payments shall be the total value of the Work done to the date of the estimate, based upon the quantities and the Contract unit and/or lump sum prices, less an amount retained and less payments previously made. The amount retained shall be determined in accordance with Section 255.078 of the Florida Statutes.

- (a) Owner may withhold from each progress payment made to the Contractor an amount not to exceed ten (10) percent of the payment as retainage until fifty (50) percent completion of the Work.
- (b) After fifty (50) percent completion of the Work is purchased pursuant to this Agreement, Owner will reduce to five (5) percent the amount of retainage withheld from each subsequent progress payment made to the Contractor. The term "fifty (50) percent completion" as used in this provision means the point at which Owner has expensed fifty (50) percent of the total cost of the Work purchased as provided herein, together with all costs associated with existing change orders and other additions or modifications to the Work described herein.

- (c) After fifty (50) percent completion of the Work is purchased pursuant to this Agreement, the Contractor may present to the Owner a payment request for up one-half of the retainage held by the Owner. The Owner shall make prompt payment to the Contractor, unless in accordance with Section 255.078(6) of the Florida Statutes, such funds are the subject of a good faith dispute, claim or demand by the Owner or the Contractor.
- (d) No payments will be made that would deplete the retainage, place in escrow any funds that are required for retainage, or invest the retainage for the benefit of the Contractor.
- SC 15.01 Add the following new paragraph immediately after Paragraph 15.01.B.3
 - 4. The Application for Payment form to be used on this Project is supplied by Owner. The OWNER must approve all Applications for Payment before payment is made.
- SC 15.01 Delete Paragraph 15.01.D.1 in its entirety and replace with the following:

The Application for Payment with Engineer's recommendations will be presented to the OWNER and Agency for consideration. If the OWNER finds the Application for Payment acceptable, the recommended amount less any reduction under the provisions of Paragraph 15.01.E will become due twenty (20) days after the Application for Payment is presented to the OWNER, and the OWNER will make payment to the Contractor.

SC 15.02 Amend Paragraph 15.02.A by striking out the following: "no later than seven days after the time of payment by Owner" and replace with:

no later than the time of payment by OWNER.

- SC 16.02 Add the following new paragraphs immediately after Paragraph 16.02.A.4
 - 5. fails to make prompt payment to Subcontractors, or for materials or labor;
 - 6. persistently disregards laws, ordinances, rules, regulations or orders of any public authority having jurisdiction; or
 - 7. otherwise substantially violates a material provision of this Agreement,
- SC 16.02 Replace the words **performance bond** with the words **public construction bond** in Paragraph 16.02.B.2
- SC 16.02 Replace the words **performance bond** with the words **public construction bond** in Paragraph 16.02.C
- SC 16.02 Replace the words **payment bond or performance bond** with the words **public construction bond** in Paragraph 16.02.F.

- SC 16.02 Replace the words payment bond or performance bond with the words public construction bond in Paragraph 16.02.G.
- SC 16.03 Add the following new paragraph immediately after Paragraph 16.03.B
 - C. The Contractor shall incur no further obligations in connection with the Work and the Contractor shall stop Work when such termination becomes effective. The Contractor shall also terminate outstanding orders and subcontracts. The Contractor shall settle liabilities and claims arising out of the termination of subcontracts and orders. The Owner may direct the Contractor to assign the Contractor's right, title and interest under terminated orders or subcontracts to the Owner or its designee.
 - D. The Contractor shall transfer title and deliver to the Owner such completed or partially completed Work and materials, equipment, parts, fixtures, information and Contract rights as the Contractor has.
 - E. The Contractor shall submit a termination claim to the Project Director specifying the amounts due because of the termination for convenience together with costs, pricing or other data required by the Project Director. If the Contractor fails to file a termination claim within one (1) year from the effective date of termination, the Owner shall pay the Contractor, an amount derived in accordance with subparagraph (G) below.
 - F. The Owner and the Contractor may agree to compensation, if any, due to the Contractor hereunder.
 - G. Absent agreement to the amount due to the Contractor, the Owner shall pay the Contractor the following amounts;
 - 1. Contract prices for labor, materials, equipment, and other services accepted under this Agreement;
 - 2. Reasonable costs incurred in preparing to perform and in performing a portion of the Work prior to termination and not included in (G.1.) or (G.2), and in terminating the Contractor's performance, plus a fair and reasonable allowance for overhead and profit thereon (such profit shall not include anticipated profit or consequential damages); provided, however, that if it appears that the Contractor would have not profited or would have sustained a loss if the entire Contract had been completed, no profit shall be allowed or included and the amount of compensation shall be reduced to reflect the anticipated rate of loss, if any;
 - 3. Reasonable costs of settling and paying claims arising out of the termination of Subcontracts or orders pursuant to Subparagraph 16.03.C of this Paragraph. These costs shall not include amounts paid in accordance with other provisions hereof.
 - H. The total sum to be paid the Contractor under this Subparagraph 16.03 shall not exceed the total Contract Price, as properly adjusted, reduced by the amount of payments otherwise made, and shall in no event include duplication of payment.

SC 18.01 Delete from Paragraph A.2 the words "registered or certified."

SC 18.09 Add the following new paragraph immediately after Paragraph 18.08

18.09 Contractor's Employment Opportunity

- A. The Contractor and all Subcontractors shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, religion, color, sex, national origin or age.
- B. The Contractor shall take affirmative action to insure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment without regard to their race, religion, color, sex, national origin or age. Such action shall include, but not be limited to, the following: employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertisement, layoff or termination, rates of pay or other forms of compensation, and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The Contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices setting forth the policies of non-discrimination.
- C. The Contractor and all Subcontractors shall, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by them or on their behalf, state that all qualified applicants shall receive consideration for employment without regard to race, religion, color, sex, national origin or age.

SC 18.10 Add the following new paragraph immediately after Paragraph 18.09

18.10 Apprenticeship Law (Chapter 446, Florida Statutes)

- A. The Contractor shall make a diligent effort to hire for Performance of the Contract a number of apprentices in each occupation which bears to the average number of journeyman in that occupation to be employed in the performance of the Contract, the ratio of at least one (1) apprentice or trainee to every five (5) journeymen.
- B. The Contractor shall, when feasible and except when the number of apprentices or trainees to be hired is fewer than four (4), assure that twenty-five (25) percent of such apprentices or trainees are in their first year of training. Feasibility here involves a consideration of the availability of training opportunities for first year apprentices or trainees, the hazardous nature of the Work for beginning workers, and excessive unemployment of apprentices or trainees in their second or subsequent years of training.
- C. The Contractor, during the performance of the Contract, shall make diligent efforts to employ the number of apprentices or trainees necessary to meet requirements of Subparagraphs a. and b. However, on-the-job training programs shall only be established in non-apprenticable trades or occupations to meet the requirements of this section.
- D. The Contractor agrees to return records of employment, by trade, of the number of apprentices or trainees by first year of training, and the number

of journeymen and the wages paid, and hours of work, of such persons on a form as prescribed by the Bureau of Apprenticeship of the Division of Labor at three (3) month intervals. Submission of duplicate copies of forms submitted to the United States Department of Labor shall be sufficient compliance with the provisions of the section.

- E. The Contractor agrees to supply the Bureau of Apprenticeship of the Division of Labor, at three (3) months intervals, a statement describing steps taken toward making diligent effort and containing a breakdown by craft or hours worked and wages paid for first year apprentices or trainees, other apprentices or trainees and journeymen.
- F. The Contractor agrees to insert in any Subcontract under this Agreement the requirements contained in this section. "The term Contractor" as used in such clauses and any Subcontract shall mean the Subcontractor.
- G. Anything herein to the Contrary notwithstanding, Contractor agrees to comply with all of the provisions of Florida Statutes 446 and all regulations prescribed by the Bureau of Apprenticeship of the Division of Labor.
- SC 18.11 Add the following new paragraph immediately after Paragraph 18.10.

18.11 Public Records

- A The cost of reproduction, access to, disclosure, non-disclosure, or exemption of records, data, documents, and/or materials, associated with this Agreement shall be subject to the applicable provisions of the Florida Public Records Law (Chapter 119, Florida Statutes), and other applicable State and Federal provisions. Access to such public records, may not be blocked, thwarted, and/or hindered by placing the public records in the possession of a third party, or an unaffiliated party.
- B. In accordance with Florida law, to the extent that Contractor's performance under this Contract constitutes an act on behalf of the County, Contractor shall comply with all requirements of Florida's public records law. Specifically, if Contractor is expressly authorized, and acts on behalf of the County under this Agreement, Contractor shall:
 - (1) Keep and maintain public records that ordinarily and necessarily would be required by the County in order to perform the Services;
 - (2) Upon request from the County's custodian of public records, provide the County with a copy of the requested records or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a reasonable time at a cost that does not exceed the cost as provided in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, or as otherwise provided by law;
 - (3) Ensure that public records related to this Agreement that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by applicable law for the duration of this Agreement and following completion of this Agreement if the Contractor does not transfer the records to the County; and

- (4) Upon completion of this Agreement, transfer, at no cost, to the County all public records in possession of the Contractor or keep and maintain public records required by the County to perform the Services.
- C. If the Contractor transfers all public records to the County upon completion of this Agreement, the Contractor shall destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements. If the Contractor keeps and maintains public records upon completion of this Agreement, the Contractor shall meet all applicable requirements for retaining public records. All records stored electronically must be provided to the County, upon request from the County's custodian of public records, in a format that is compatible with the County's information technology systems.
- D. Failure by the Contractor to comply with the requirements of this section shall be grounds for immediate, unilateral termination of this Agreement by the County.

IF THE CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO ITS DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT, CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS AT: OCA, ATTN: Public Records Manager, 500 San Sebastian View, St. Augustine, FL 32084, PH: (904) 209-0805, EMAIL: publicrecords@sjcfl.us.



St. Johns County Board of County Commissioners

Purchasing Division

NOTICE OF INTENT TO AWARD

November 1, 2018

RE: Bid No: 19-06; SR 16 Wastewater Treatment Facility (WWTF) Filter Improvements

Please be advised that the Purchasing Department of St. Johns County is issuing this Notice of Intent to Award a contract to SGS Contracting Services, Inc. as the lowest responsive, responsible bidder for Bid No: 19-06; SR 16 Wastewater Treatment Facility (WWTF) Filter Improvements. This notice will remain posted on the St. Johns County Purchasing Department bulletin board until 5:00 P.M., Monday, November 5, 2018.

Any person (including any bidder or proposer) who is, or claims to be, adversely affected by the County's decision or proposed decision shall file a written Notice of Protest with the Purchasing Department of St. Johns County within 72 hours after the posting of the notice of decision or proposed decision. Failure to file a Notice of Protest within the time prescribed in Section 304.10 of the St. Johns County Purchasing Manual (the Bid Protest Procedure), or failure to post the bond or other security required by the County within the time allowed for filing a bond, shall constitute a waiver of proceedings and a waiver of the right to protest. The protest procedures may be obtained from the Purchasing Department and are included in the County's Purchasing Manual. All of the terms and conditions of the County Purchasing Manual are incorporated herein by reference and are fully binding.

Should the Purchasing Department receive no protests in response to this notice, an agenda item will be submitted to the St. Johns County Board of County Commissioners for their consideration and subsequent approval to award a contract.

Please forward all correspondence, requests or inquiries directly to my attention at the information below.

Sincerely,

St. Johns County

Board of County Commissioners

County Répresentative Signature

Leigh A. Daniels, CPPB

Procurement Supervisor/Acting Purchasing Manager

(904) 209-0154 - Direct

(904) 209-0155 - Fax

Idaniels@sicfl.us

www.sjcfl.us



ST. JOHNS COUNTY PURCHASING DEPARTMENT.

500 San Sebastian View St. Augustine, Florida 32084

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM

TO:

Scott Trigg, P.E., Chief Engineer - Capital Projects

FROM:

Leigh Daniels, CPPB, Procurement Supervisor/Acting Purchasing Manager

SUBJECT:

Department Approval for Bid No. 19-06, SR16 Wastewater Treatment Facility

(WWTF) Filter Improvements

DATE:

October 31, 2018

Attached is a copy of the technical proposal review summary sheet.

Please review, evaluate and make a written recommendation for this project. Also, indicate the budgeted amount for this item along with the appropriate charge code and return at your earliest convenience. We will prepare the agenda item and contract.

Please let me know if I can assist your department in any other way.

Department Head Approval Seett Juge
Date
Budget Amount 850,000.00
Account Funding Title 2017 SRIE facility Upgrade
Funding Charge Code 4488 -56302~ 6475 -56302
Award to SGS Contracting Services, Inc
Award Amount #776, 500

ST JOHNS COUNTY NOV 0 1 '18 PURCHASING

ST. JOHNS COUNTY BID TABULATION

BID TITLE	SR16 WASTEWATER TREATMENT FACILITY (WWTF) FILTER IMPROVEMENTS			ANY BIDDER AFFECTED ADVERSELY BY AN INTENDED DECISION WITH RESPECT TO THE AWARD OF ANY BID,		OPENED BY	LEIGH DANIELS DAVID PYLE	
						TABULATED BY		
				SHALL FILE WITH THE PURCHASE	NG DEPARTMENT FOR	VERIFIED BY		
BID NUMBER	19-06			ST. JOHNS COUNTY, A WRITTEN N	OTICE OF INTENT			
OPENING DATE/TIME	October 31, 2018	2:00 PM		FILE A PROTEST NOT LATER THAI	N SEVENTY-TWO (72)	•		
				HOURS (EXCLUDING SATURDAY, S	UNDAY AND LEGAL			
	FROM		UNTIL.	HOLIDAYS) AFTER THE POSTING (OF THE BID TABULATION		•	
POSTING DATE/TIME	04/18/18	•	11/05/18	PROTEST PROCEDURES MAY BE O	BTAINED IN THE	PAGE(S) 1 of 1		
	3:00 PM		3:00 PM	PURCHASING DEPARTMENT.				
			-					
•				•	,			
BIDDERS	BASE BID PRICE	TESTING SERVICE ALLOWANCE	TOTAL BID PRICE	BID BOND	ADDENDUM # 1	ADDENDUM # 2	ADDENDUM # 3	
	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<u> </u>				
US WATER SERVICES CORP.	\$825,000.00	\$5,000.00	\$830,000.00	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	
<u> </u>								
SAWCROSS INC.	\$810,000.00	\$5,000.00	\$815,000.00	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	
	-							
PETTICOAT-SCHMITT CIVIL CONTRACTORS — INC.	\$845,000.00	\$5,000.00	\$850,000.00	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	
SGS CONTRACTING	\$771,500.00	\$5,000.00	\$776,500.00	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	
SERVICES, INC.	W//1,500.00	32,000.00				1.50	100	
-								
-	<u> </u>					,		
		·						
		1	l .	1	i ,	1	1	

BID AWARD DATE -

BID NO: 19-06



OFFICIAL COUNTY BID FORM ST. JOHNS COUNTY, FLORIDA

PROJECT:	SR 16 Wastewater Treatment Facility ((WWTF) FILTER IMPROVEME	NTS
TO:	THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMI	SSIONERS OF ST. JOHNS COUI	NTY, FLORIDA
	DATE SUBMITTED: 10-31-2018		
	BID	PROPOSAL OF	·.
SGS Contrac	ting Services, Inc.		
Full Legal Con	mpany Name	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
23625 W. US	Hwy 27, High Springs, FL 32643	352-745-6950	, N/A
Mailing Addre	ess	Telephone Number	Fax Number
voime Courty,	ions entitled for Bid No: 19-06, SR 16 W Florida, the undersigned proposes to fun necessary to comply with the Contract I	rnish all materials labor and cause	
FOR: SR 16	WASTEWATER TREATMENT FAC	ILITY (WWTF) FILTER IMPR	OVEMENTS as per plans and
BASE BID PR	RICE:		
Sever	altundral Seventy One	d'Price (Numerical) Husand Fue Humo ount written or typed in words)	ted /100 Dollars
Bidder shall ins amounts shall b	sert the Lump Sum Base Bid Price in num be determined by the amount written in w	nerals and in words. Any discrepan	cy between the two submitted
TESTING SI	ERVICE ALLOWANCE:		
	\$ Total Testing Service	5.000.00 e Allowance Price (Numerical)	· .
	Five CAmount well	Thousand and Zero	/100 Dollars
	. (Amount Wr	tten or typed in words)	

^{*}The allowance shown is an estimated unit price allowance and will be adjusted (+/-) upon receipt of an invoice for applicable testing.

TOTAL BID PRICE (Base Bid + Allowance):

	\$	
	Total Bid Price (Numerical)	
Seven to	endred Seventy Six Thousand Five tuneted	./100 Dollars
	Total Bid Price (Amount written or typed in words)	i i oo Dollata

Bidder shall insert the Total Bid Price in numerals and in words. Any discrepancy between the two submitted amounts shall be determined by the amount written in words.

During the preparation of the Bid, the following addenda, if any, were received:

No.: 1 Date Received: 10/2/2018

No.: 2 Date Received: 10/16/2018

No.: 3 Date Received: 10/23/2018

We, the undersigned, hereby declare that no person or persons, firm or corporation, other than the undersigned are interested, in this proposal, as principals, and that this proposal is made without collusion with any person, firm or corporation, and we have carefully and to our satisfaction examined the Bid Documents and Project Specifications.

We have made a full examination of the location of the proposed work and the sources of supply of materials, and we hereby agree to furnish all necessary labor, equipment and materials, fully understanding that any quantities shown therewith are approximate only, and that we will fully complete all requirements therein as prepared by the Owner, within the same time limit specified in the Bid Documents as indicated above.

If the Undersigned is notified of the acceptance of this Bid Proposal by the Board within ninety (90) calendar days for the time set for the opening of Bids, the Undersigned further agrees, to execute a contract for the above work within ten (10) days after notice that his Bid has been accepted for the above stated compensation in the form of a Contract presented by the Owner.

The Undersigned further agrees that security in the form of a Bid Bond, certified or cashier's check in the amount of not less than five percent (5%) of Total Bid Price, payable to the Owner, accompanies this Bid; that the amount is not to be construed as a penalty, but as liquidated damages which said Owner will sustain by failure of the Undersigned to execute and deliver the Contract and Bond within ten (10) days of the written notification of the Award of the Contract to him; thereupon, the security shall become the property of the Owner, but if this Bid is not accepted within ninety (90) days of the time set for the submission of Bids, or if the Undersigned delivers the executed Contract upon receipt, the Security shall be returned to the Bidder within seven (7) working days.

CORPORATE/COMPANY

SGS Contracting Se	ervices, Inc.	(Seal)
	Seth Simmons, President	
resentative	(Name & Title typed or printed)	
	N/A	
resentative	(Name & Title typed or printed)	•
27, High Springs, FL	32643	
45-6950	Fax No.: (<u>)</u> N/A	
d Company Represen	tative: seth@sgscsl.com	:
6-1147891	DUNS #: N/A	
	(If applicable)	
(Name typed or printed) (Title)	
·		
	Fax No.:	
Attachment "A" – Attachment "B" – Attachment "C" – Attachment "D" – Attachment "E" – Attachment "F" –	- St Johns County Board of County Commission - Certificate as to Corporate Principal - License / Certification List - List of Proposed Sub-Contractors / Suppliers - Conflict of Interest Disclosure Form - Certificate of Compliance with Florida Trench S	
	resentative 27, High Springs, FL 45-6950 d Company Represent 3-1147891 Official County B Attachment "A" - Attachment "B" - Attachment "D" - Attachment "E" - Attachment "F" -	resentative (Name & Title typed or printed) N/A (Name & Title typed or printed) 27, High Springs, FL 32643 45-6950 Fax No.: () N/A d Company Representative: seth@sgscsi.com 6-1147891 DUNS #: N/A (If applicable) (Name typed or printed) (Title)

Official County Bid Form, Attachments "A", "B", "C", "D", "E", "F", "G", "H" and Bid Bond must be completed, along with a fully acknowledged copy of each Addendum applicable to this Bid and submitted with each copy of the Bid Proposal. One (1) original and two (2) copies of all required forms must be submitted.

ATTACHMENT "A"

ST. JOHNS COUNTY, BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS AFFIDAVIT

TO:

ST. JOHNS COUNTY, BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS,

ST. JOHNS COUNTY, ST. AUGUSTINE, FLORIDA.

At the time the proposal is submitted, the Bidder shall attach to his Bid a sworn statement.

This sworn statement shall be an affidavit in the following form, executed by an officer of the firm, association, or corporation submitting the proposal, and shall be sworn to before a person who is authorized by law to administer oaths.

STATE OF FLORIDA, COUNTY OF ST. JOHNS

Before me, the Undersigned authority, p	ersonally appeared Seth Simmons			who	being d	iuly
sworn, deposes and says he is Presider	nt	(Title)	of		firm	of
SGS Contracting Services, Inc.	Bidder submitting the attached pro	posal for the	services	covered	by the	bid
documents for Bid No: 19-06; SR 16 W	astewater Treatment Facility (WWTF	Filter Impro	vements.	in St. Joi	hns Cou	ntv.
Florida.		,	,		004	,

The affiant further states that no more than one proposal for the above-referenced project will be submitted from the individual, his firm or corporation under the same or different name, and that such Bidder has no financial interest in the firm of another bidder for the same work. That neither he, his firm, association nor corporation has either directly or indirectly entered into any agreement, participated in any collusion, nor otherwise taken any action in restraint of free competitive bidding in connection with this firm's Bid on the above-described project. Furthermore, neither the firm nor any of its officers are barred from participating in public contract lettings in the State of Florida or any other state.

Seth Simmons - SGS Contracting Services, Inc.

President

Notary Public State of Florida Michelle D Burgess My Commission GG 293175 Expires 06/28/2022 Sworn and subscribed to me this 31st day of October 20 18

Notary Public

Signature O Burgare

Printed

My commission Expires: 6/26/2023

BIDDER ON ALL COUNTY PROJECTS MUST EXECUTE AND ATTACH THIS AFFADAVIT TO EACH BID.

ATTACHMENT "B"

CERTIFICATE AS TO CORPORATE PRINCIPAL

I, Wallis Simmons ,	certify that I am the Secretary	of the Corporation named as	Principal in the attached bond;
that Seth Simmons	who si	gned the said bond on beha	If of the Principal, was then
of said Corporation; that I kno	w his signature, and his signa	ture hereto is genuine; and th	at said bond was duly signed,
sealed, and attested for and in b	pehalf of said proporation by a	uthority of its governing body.	,
	11/10/10/1	A X	
	1000		
	Secretary	Corporate Seal	the same of the same
÷		•	
			•
(STATE OF FLORIDA			
COUNTY OF ST. JOHNS)	•		
Before me, a Notary	Dublic duly commission	nod mulified and not	tha managarily appared
Before me, a Notary to me well known, who bein	Public duly commissio		ting, personally appeared the Attorney In Fact for the
and that he has been authorized	by SGS Contracting Service	es, Inc.	to execute the
foregoing bond on behalf of the	surety named therein in favor	of St. Johns County, Florida.	to exceute the
Subscribed and sworn to me thi	is 31st day of October	, 20_18 , A.D.	
	•		
	- **		•
mustle state of Florida	~~~	.11	
Notary Public State of Florida Michelle D Burgess	•	M/ In Branch	
My Commission GG 233175 Expires 06/28/2022	NOTARY PUBLIC	M/ schle Doses	
**************************************	State of Florida-at-large	MiddeBogess Middelle Bogess 6/26/2022	
UU W V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V			
	My Commission Expires		

(Attach Power of Attorney to original Bid Bond and Financial Statement of Surety Company)

BID NO: 19-06

ATTACHMENT "C"

LICENSE / CERTIFICATION LIST

In the space below, the Bidder shall list all current licenses and certifications held.

The bidder shall attach a copy of each current license or certification listed below to this form.

License Name	License #	Issuing Agency	Expiration Date
Cert. General Cont.	CGC 1514772	State of FL	08-31-2020
Cert. U/G Utility Cont.	CUC 1225090	State of FL	08-31-2020
······································			
	·		
•		•	
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			,
		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
······			
			;

<u>ATTACHMENT "D"</u>

LIST OF PROPOSED SUB-CONTRACTORS / SUPPLIER LIST

All sub-contractors and major materials suppliers are subject to approval of Owner. The following are sub-contractors and manufacturers of materials and/or equipment that are proposed to be utilized by the Contractor in the performance of this work, provide company names and contacts for the following as a minimum and list any additional as necessary:

r		T	
Company Name	Division/Discipline	Primary Contact Name	Contact Number and Email Address
Shine Co.	Electrical	Matt Shine	346-454. 2034 Mathewahme Oshine compo
Self Perform	Concrete/Rebar		
Self Perform	Underground Utility		
	Filter Manufacturer	Joe Sacco	904.524.9516
Agua-Aerobit Alfa-Laval		Pay 1 Watcher	Joeldenvirosales of Florid 813.242.2660 E paults jn Overizon ne
			family suppression of
	_		
	·		
		-	
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		,
			
			
	1	<u> </u>	

BID NO: 19-06

ATTACHMENT "E"

ST, JOHNS COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURE FORM

Project (BID) Number/Description: Bid No 19-06: SR 16 Wastewater Treatment Facility (WWTF) Filter Improvements

The term "conflict of interest" refers to situations in which financial or other considerations may adversely affect, or have the appearance of adversely affecting a consultant's/contractor's professional judgment in completing work for the benefit of St. Johns County ("County"). The bias such conflicts could conceivably impart may inappropriately affect the goals, processes, methods of analysis or outcomes desired by the County.

Consultants/Contractors are expected to safeguard their ability to make objective, fair, and impartial decisions when performing work for the benefit of the County. Consultants/Contractors, therefore must there avoid situations in which financial or other considerations may adversely affect, or have the appearance of adversely affecting the consultant's/contractor's professional judgement when completing work for the benefit of the County.

The mere appearance of a conflict may be as serious and potentially damaging as an actual distortion of goals, processes, methods of analysis or outcomes. Reports of conflicts based upon appearances can undermine public trust in ways that may not be adequately restored even when the mitigating facts of a situation are brought to light. Apparent conflicts, therefore, should be disclosed and evaluated with the same vigor as actual conflicts.

It is expressly understood that failure to disclose conflicts of interest as described herein may result in immediate disqualification from evaluation or immediate termination from work for the County.

D1	-11-41		
Please	cneck the	appropriate statement:	



I hereby attest that the undersigned Respondent has no actual or potential conflict of interest due to any other clients, contracts, or property interests for completing work on the above referenced project.



The undersigned Respondent, by attachment to this form, submits information which may be a potential conflict of interest due to other clients, contracts or property interests for completing work on the above referenced project.

Legal Name of Respondent:	SGS Contracting Services, In	ic.
Authorized Representative(s):	Sel	Seth Simmons - President
, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	Signature	Print Name/Title
	N/A	N/A
• .	Signature	Print Name/Title

Authorized Signature

ATTACHMENT "F"

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE WITH FLORIDA TRENCH SAFETY ACT

Bidder acknowledges that he is solely responsible for complying with the Florida Trench Safety Act (ACT) and Occupational Safety and Health Administrations excavation safety standard 29 CFR 1926.650 (Subpart P as amended) and the St. Johns County Trenching and Excavation Safety Program. If there is a conflict between the ACT and the St. Johns County Trenching and Excavation Safety Program, the more stringent requirement would apply. Bidder further acknowledges that included in the various items of the proposal and in the Total Bid Price are costs for complying with the Florida Trench Safety Act (90-96, Laws of Florida) effective October 1, 1990 and the Occupational Safety and Health Administrations excavation safety standard.

By: Seth Simmons	· -	
SGS Contracting Services, Inc.	10-31-2018	
Bidder	Date	



CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY) 10/29/2018

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s). CONTACT Paul Locascio PRODUCER Waldorff Insurance & Bonding 45 Eglin Parkway NE Ste 202 PHONE (A/C, No. Ext): 850-581-4925 FAX (A/C, No): 850-581-4930 Fort Walton Beach FL 32548 ADDRESS: receptionist@waldorffinsurance.com INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC# INSURER A: The FCCI Insurance Company 10178 SGSC-01 INSURED INSURER B: SGS Contracting Services, Inc. 14207 NW SR 45 INSURER C : High Springs FL 32643 INSURER D : INSURER E : INSURER F: **COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 800771005 REVISION NUMBER:** THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES, LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. ADDLISUBR POLICY EFF POLICY EXP TYPE OF INSURANCE POLICY NUMBER X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY 4/26/2018 4/26/2019 **EACH OCCURRENCE** \$ 1,000,000 DAMAGE TO RENTED PREMISES (Ea occurrence) CLAIMS-MADE X OCCUR \$.100,000 MED EXP (Any one person) \$ 5,000 PERSONAL & ADV INJURY \$1,000,000 GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE \$ 2,000,000 POLICY X PRO-PRODUCTS - COMPIOP AGG \$ 2,000,000 OTHER: COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT (Ea accident) AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY CA100013357-02 4/26/2018 4/26/2019 \$ 1,000,000 X ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) OWNED AUTOS ONLY HIRED AUTOS ONLY SCHEDULED AUTOS NON-OWNED AUTOS ONLY BODILY INJURY (Per accident) S PROPERTY DAMAGE (Per accident) Х ŝ X UMBRELLA LIAB Α Х LIMB100024266-01 4/26/2018 4/28/2019 OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE \$ 5,000,000 EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE \$ 5,000,000 DED X RETENTION \$ 10,000 WORKERS COMPENSATION AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY PER STATUTE ANYPROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? (Mandatory in NH) E.L. EACH ACCIDENT N/A E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYER yes, describe under ESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT Leased/Rented Equipment CM 0008662 4 4/26/2018 4/28/2019 100,000 DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)
*****SAMPLE CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE*****
USED FOR BIDDING PURPOSES ONLY
COVERAGE CAN BE ADJUSTED AS NEEDED FOR PROJECT-SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS
WORKERS' COMPENSATION COVERAGE NOT INCLUDED CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS. SGS Contracting Services, Inc. 23625 W. US Hwy 27 High Springs FL 32643 AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Pave



CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s). PRODUCER SUNZ Insurance Solutions, LLC ID: (Decision HR) Cortney Horn c/o Decision HR 11101 Roosevelt Blvd N HONE VC. No. Ext): 888-828-5511 E-MAIL ADDRESS: Saint Petersburg, FL 33716 Certs@DecisionHR.com INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC# INSURER A: United Wisconsin Insurance Company 29157 INSURED INSURER B Decision HR Holdings Inc. 11101_Rooseveit Bivd. N. INSURER C Saint Petersburg FL 33716 INSURER D <u>INSURER E</u> INSURER F COVERAGES **CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 42205417** REVISION NUMBER: THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES, LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. ADDL SUBR POLICY EFF POLICY EXP TYPE OF INSURANCE INSD WVD POLICY NUMBER COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE DAMAGE TO RENTED PREMISES (Es occurrence) CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR MED EXP (Any one person) PERSONAL & ADV INJURY \$ <u>GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:</u> GENERAL AGGREGATE JECT. POLICY PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG \$ OTHER: COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT **AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY** ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) ŝ OWNED AUTOS ONLY HIRED AUTOS ONLY SCHEDULED AUTOS NON-OWNED AUTOS ONLY BODILY INJURY (Per accident) PROPERTY DAMAGE (Per accident) **UMBRELLA LIAB** OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE **EXCESS LIAB** CLAIMS-MADE **AGGREGATE** DED RETENTIONS WORKERS COMPENSATION WC518-00001-018 6/1/2018 6/1/2019 ✓ STATUTE AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY WC518-00001-017 1/1/2018 6/1/2018 ANYPROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? E.L. EACH ACCIDENT \$ 1.000.000 N NIA (Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE \$ 1,000,000 í yes, describe under DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | \$ 1,000,000 DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required) Coverage provided for all leased employees but not subcontractors of: SGS Contracting Services, Inc Effective date: 1/1/2018 For Bidding Purposes Only - Please call (727) 456 - 5002 to confirm coverage. CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE SGS Contracting Services, Inc 14207 NW SR 45 THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS. High Springs FL 32643 AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE The o histofu Glen J Distefano

@ 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

ATTACHMENT "H"

CONTRACTOR'S QUALIFICATIONS FORM

Bidder acknowledges that he is fully licensed to perform work in the STATE OF FLORIDA.

Any material misrepresentation, as determined by the County, shall result in disqualification.

By:	SGS Contracting Services, Inc.	10-31-2018
	Bidder	Date
	Authorized Signature	

Contractor's Project Experience

The Bidder shall provide the following information regarding experience within the <u>past five (5) years</u> of this solicitation. Bidder must demonstrate the successful completion of <u>three (3) projects</u> of similar complexity, nature, size, and dollar amount of project.

Additional Project Information Attached

	Contractor's Project/Experience Details Project No. 1	
Name of Project:	Riverside Lift Station Rehab & Odor Control Project	
Project Manager Name:	h Simmons	
Superintendent Name:	Shawn Heckman (start) & Clifford Hathcox (finish)	
Project Description:	Installation of new odor control system, ductwork, generator rehab, lift station rehab, site concrete and misc. electrical & I/C improvements.	
	Owner Information	
Name:	St. Johns County Utility Dept.	
Address:	1205 SR 16, St. Augustine, FL	
Contact Person:	es Overton	
Telephone Number:	209-2614	
	Engineer/Architect Information	
Name:	Constantine	
Address: 100 Center Creek Rd. Suite 108, St. Augustine, FL 32084		
Contact Person:	lortenstine	
Telephone Number:	62-2185	
	Contract Dates	
Started:	December 2015	
Original Contractual Com	pletion: October 2016	

		ontractor's Project Experience Details Project No. 1	
		nuary 2017 (due to additions to scope of work)	
Actual Completion: No		November 2016	
	·	Contract Value	
Original Contract Value:		\$444,054	
Final Contract Value:		\$540,083	
Value of Change Orders to Date:		\$96,029	
Value of Outstanding Claims to Date:		e: N/A	
		Bonding Company Information	
Name:	Waldorff In	surance & Bonding	
Address:	Gainesville, FL		
Contact Person:	Paul Locascio		
Telephone Number:	352-374-7779		
		Major Sub-contractor Information	
Name:	Economy El	ectric	
Address:	Daytona Beach, FL		
Contact Person:	Helth Hays		
Telephone Number:	386-252-0573		
Name:	N/A		
Address:			
Contact Person:			
Telephone Number:			
Name:	N/A		
Address:			
Contact Person:			
Telephone Number:	-		

	Contractor's Project Experience Details Project No. 2	
Name of Project:	City of Bartow Centrifuge Installation Project	,, ., .
Project Manager Name:	Seth Simmons	
Superintendent Name:	Shawn Heckman	

	an and the C	ontractor's Project Experience Details	
Project Description:	Project No.2 Installation of new centrifuge, polymer feed equipment, sludge grinder, sludge pumps, lift station pumps, structural improvements, elevated concrete and misc. plant piping. Also included upgrades to the electrical system and SCADA.		
		Owner Information	
Name:	Çity of	f Bartow .	
Address:	450 N	. Wilson Blvd., Bartow, FL	
Contact Person:	Connie	Adcock (retired)	
Telephone Number:	863-53	34-0147	
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Engineer/Architect Information	
Name:	Chast	ain-Skillman	
Address:	4705	4705 Old Highway 37, Lakeland, FL 33807	
Contact Person:	Rajendra Vaidya		
Telephone Number:	863-646-1402		
	<u>-</u>	Contract Dates	
Started:	November 2015		
Original Contractual (Completion:	November 2016	
Final Contractual Con	npletion:	November 2016	
Actual Completion:		October 2016	
011.10 (2.171)		Contract Value	
Original Contract Val		\$802,411	
Final Contract Value:		\$802,411	
Value of Change Orde		N/A	
Value of Outstanding Claims to Date: N/A			
Name:	Waldorff i	Bonding Company Information Insurance & Bonding	
Address:	Gainesville, FL		
Contact Person:	Paul Locascio		
Telephone Number:	352-374-7779		
		Major Sub-contractor Information	
Name:	Brock Industrial Electric		
Address:	Winter Haven, FL		÷
Contact Person:	Andrew Albrecht		

and the state of t	
	Contractor's Project Experience Details Project No. 2
Telephone Number:	863-207-3546
Name:	N/A
Address:	
Contact Person:	
Telephone Number:	
Name:	N/A
Address:	
Contact Person;	
Telephone Number:	

	Contractor's Project Experience Details Project No. 3		
Name of Project:	Flagler Beach WWTP Phase II Improvements		
Project Manager Name:	Seth Simmons		
Superintendent Name:	Josh Crowson		
Project Description:	Misc. improvements throughout the WWTP facility, including chlorine contact chamber expansion, partial clarifier rehab, installation of pumps, piping, misc. metals, and electrical.		
	Owner Information		
Name:	City of Flagler Beach ,		
Address:	102 S. 2nd Street, Flagler Beach, FL 32136		
Contact Person:	Johnny Lynn		
Telephone Number:	386-276-0401		
	Engineer/Architect Information		
Name:	QLH (Mead & Hunt)		
Address:	4401 Eastport Parkway, Port Orange, FL 32127		
Contact Person:	Kevin Lee		
Telephone Number:	386-490-1249		
	Contract Dates		
Started:	September 2017		
Original Contractual Com	pletion: April 2018		
Final Contractual Comple	tion: May 2018		

į

Actual Completion:	Me	y 2018		
		Contract Value		
Original Contract Va		\$797,347		
Final Contract Value	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	\$808,635		
Value of Change Ord	lers to Date:	\$14,288		
Value of Outstanding	<u> </u>	N/A		
		onding Company Information		
Name:	JCA Surety Group			
Address:	Winter Park, FL			
Contact Person:	Jorge Bracamo	onte		
Telephone Number:	407-575-4361			
	 	jor Sub-contractor Information		
Name:	Economy Electric	Economy Electric		
Address:	Daytona Beach,	Daytona Beach, FL		
Contact Person:	Heith Hays			
Telephone Number:	386-252-0573			
Name:	Kirkland Concrete			
Address:	LaCrosse, FL			
Contact Person:	Greg Kirkland			
Telephone Number:	352-258-8037			
Name:	N/A			
Address:	<u> </u>			
Contact Person:	:			
Telephone Number:				
h of time in business:	11 Yea	nis time? X Yes No irs ive litigation? Yes or No: NO If Yes, explain:		
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	•			
our company ever bee	en sued? Yes or N	o: NO If Yes, explain and/or submit court decision or judgm		



St. Johns County Board of County Commissioners

Purchasing Division

October 2, 2018

To:

Prospective Bidders

From:

St. Johns County Purchasing Department

Subject:

Bid No. 19-06, SR 16 Wastewater Treatment Facility (WWTF) Filter Improvements

This Addendum #1 is issued for further respondent's information and is hereby incorporated into the Bid documents. Each respondent will ascertain before submitting a proposal that he/she has received all Addenda. Please return an original copy of this signed Addendum with proposal to the St. Johns County Purchasing Department, Leigh A. Daniels, CPPB; 500 San Sebastian View; St. Augustine, FL 32084.

Change:

The Non-Mandatory Pre-Bid Conference time has changed from 9:00 AM to 1:30 PM on Tuesday, October 9, 2018.

The location remains the same. St. Johns County Utility Department 1205 State Road 16 St. Augustine, FL 32084

THE BID DUE DATE REMAINS October 31, 2018 AT 2:00 P.M.

Acknowledgment

Sincerely,

Leigh A. Daniels, CPPB

Acting Purchasing Manager

SCS CONTRACTING SERVICES, INC. Company Name (Print)

END OF ADDENDUM NO. 1

(RCI, a division of Rotork), Nibco, or equal. Valve actuator shall include a compartment heater and limit switch feedback to the microprocessor in both the open and closed positions.

- 15. Change Section 11366 2.09, D to "Manual valves shall include lever handles".
- 16. Change the note on drawing E-6.0 from "FILTER No. 1 BACKWASH PUMP: THE FILTER BACKWASH PUMP MOTOR SHALL BE CONNECTED TO THE FILTER CONTROL PANEL BY THE FILTER MANUFACTURER." to read "FILTER No. 1 BACKWASH PUMP: THE FILTER BACKWASH PUMP MOTOR SHALL BE CONNECTED TO THE FILTER CONTROL PANEL BY THE CONTRACTOR AND THE INSTALLATION MUST BE VERIFIED AS CORRECT BY THE FILTER MANUFACTURER PRIOR TO STARTUP,".

Specification Addition:

- 1. As referenced in specification section 01010 Summary of Work, paragraph 1.01, D, 12, the Rental Unit Decommissioning instructions are attached. The Owner will be responsible for the long-term shutdown procedures noted in the instructions and for shipping costs.
- 2. Specification section 02666 Pond Liner Repair is attached and shall be added to the contract documents.
- 3. Attached is the Table of Contents for the project specifications that has been revised to reflect changes.

Sincerely,

Leigh A. Daniels, CPPB Acting Purchasing Manager

THE BID DUE DATE REMAINS October 31, 2018 AT 2:00 P.M.

Acknowledgment

10/10/18

Signature and Date

Doct Dinners PRES

Printed Name/Title

Ses Contracting Services, INC.

Company Name (Print)

END OF ADDENDUM NO. 2



St. Johns County Board of County Commissioners

Purchasing Division

October 23, 2018

ADDENDUM #3

To:

Prospective Bidders

From:

St. Johns County Purchasing Department

Subject:

Bid No. 19-06, SR 16 Wastewater Treatment Facility (WWTF) Filter Improvements

This Addendum #3 is issued for further respondent's information and is hereby incorporated into the Bid documents. Each respondent will ascertain before submitting a proposal that he/she has received all Addenda. Please return an original copy of this signed Addendum with proposal to the St. Johns County Purchasing Department, Leigh A. Daniels, CPPB; 500 San Sebastian View; St. Augustine, FL 32084.

Questions:

1. REF 15110 - Section 2.01A references a Piping Schedule at the end of the section. We do not have a piping schedule.

Answer: The reference to a piping schedule should be deleted.

Change:

- 1. Replace Section 01010 1.02, D,4 with the following:
- 4. Provide as part of the filter package the turbidity analyzing system to monitor effluent quality and provide a turbidity signal to the SCADA system. The automatic effluent valve will be supplied by the Contractor to automatically divert effluent to the reject effluent storage pond on high turbidity.
- 2. Add the following to the end of Section 11366 3.03, C after "... as follows;":
 - 1. The OWNER shall take grab samples every shift in addition to standard compliance composite samples and analyze for total suspended solids at no cost to the CONTRACTOR.
 - 2. The Field acceptance test shall commence on a date mutually agreed upon by all parties.

THE BID DUE DATE REMAINS October 31, 2018 AT 2:00 P.M.

Acknowledgment

Sincerely,

Leigh A. Daniels, CPPB Acting Purchasing Manager

Printed Name/Title

S CONTRACTIV

Company Name (Print)

END OF ADDENDUM NO. 3



STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY LICENSING BOARD

THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR HEREIN IS CERTIFIED UNDER THE PROVISIONS OF CHAPTER 489, FLORIDA STATUTES

SIMMONS, SETH GARRETT

SGS CONTRACTING SERVICES INC 14207 NW STATE ROAD:45 HIGH SPRINGS FL 32643

LICENSE NUMBER: CGC1514772

EXPIRATION DATE: AUGUST 31, 2020

Always verify licenses online at MyFloridaLicense.com



Do not alter this document in any form.

This is your license. It is unlawful for anyone other than the licensee to use this document.





STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONAL REGULATION

CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY LICENSING BOARD

THE UNDERGROUND UTILITY & EXCAVATION CO HEREIN IS CERTIFIED UNDER THE PROVISIONS OF CHAPTER 489, FLORIDA STATUTES

SIMMONS SETH GARRETT

SGS CONTRACTING SERVICES, INC. 14207 NW STATE ROAD 45 HIGH SPRINGS FL 32643

LICENSE NUMBER: CUC1225090

EXPIRATION DATE: AUGUST 31, 2020

Always verify licenses online at MyFloridaLicense.com



Do not alter this document in any form.

This is your license. It is unlawful for anyone other than the licensee to use this document.

PROJECT HISTORY - SGS Contracting Services, Inc.

CURRENT PROJECTS

GRU GENERAL SERVICE AGREEMENT FOR WATER & WASTEWATER OPERATIONS

Value:

Indefinite Value

Engineer:

.N/A

General Contr:

SGS Contracting Services, Inc.

Owner:

Gainesville Regional Utilities (GRU) (Rachel Haeseler; Gainesville, FL; 352-393-1618)

Service:

Water & Wastewater

Completion:

March 1, 2014 through February 28, 2019

Term contract service agreement for repair, rehab, and new construction of water and wastewater treatment facilities and systems throughout the Utility. Scope of allowable work is unlimited within the facilities. Includes new process piping, installation of process mechanical equipment, sitework, etc. (Process equipment typically provided by the Owner for Installation by SGS)

FGUA GENERAL SERVICE CONTRACT FOR UTILITY CONTRACTORS

Value:

Indefinite Value

Engineer:

N/A .

General Contr:

SGS Contracting Services, Inc.

Owner:

FGUA

Service:

Water & Wastewater

. Completion:

TBD

Term contract service agreement for repair, rehab, and new construction of water and wastewater treatment facilities and utility systems throughout the Utility

IRISH ACRES WTP (MARION COUNTY)

Value:

\$1,874,970 (original) / \$1,906,136 (current)

Engineer:

Tillman & Associates

General Contr:

SGS Contracting Services, Inc.

Owner:

Marion County Utilities (Alejandro Rad; 352-307-6012)

Service:

Water

Completion:

October 2018 (expected)

Expansion of existing WTP, including prestressed storage tank, high services pumps, electrical and pump buildings, generator, yard piping, instrumentation and electrical.

ST. JOHNS COUNTY A1A BOOSTER PUMP STATION & GST

Value:

\$1,613,500 (original & current)

Engineer:

Mott-McDonald

General Contr:

SGS Contracting Services, Inc.

Owner:

St. Johns County Utilities (Teri Pinson; 904-209-2604)

Service:

Water

Completion:

September 2018 (expected)

Construction of new booster pump station, including clearing/grubbing, cast-in-place GST, pump station building, high service pumps, piping, electrical and i & C.

TOWN OF BRANFORD WWTP EFFLUENT STORAGE TANK

Value:

\$667,000 (original) / \$688,676 (current)

Engineer: General Contr: Florida Rural Water Association

Owner:

SGS Contracting Services, Inc.

Town of Branford (Robbie Lee; 386-854-5133)

Service:

Wastewater

Completion:

October 2018 (expected, extended due to additional work authorizations)

Installation of new glass-fused-to-steel ground storage tank, effluent pump station, misc. pumps and piping, and electrical. Includes structural grouting beneath tank foundation.

UNIVERSITY OF FLORIDA WWTP BIOSOLIDS IMPROVEMENTS

Value:

\$1,006,585 (original & current)

Engineer:

Hazen & Sawyer

General Contr:

The Brentwood Company (Tom Fillmer; 352-339-5453)

Owner:

University of Florida

Service:

Wastewater

Completion:

November 2018 (expected)

Demolition and removal of existing belt press sludge dewatering equipment and replacement with one (1) new centrifuge for biosolids thickening. Includes structural concrete, aluminum structures and heavy process mechanical piping.

LEESBURG TURNPIKE WWTF DEWATERING IMPROVEMENTS

Value:

\$1,487,000 (original & current)

Engineer:

Jones Edmunds & Associates SGS Contracting Services, Inc.

General Contr: Owner:

City of Leesburg (contact TBD)

Service:

Wastewater

Completion:

December 2018 (expected)

Installation of new belt press dewatering facility, including new process equipment, piping, aluminum structures, metal building, structural concrete and electrical.

WILDWOOD CR-501 WTP IMPROVEMENTS

Value:

\$382,000 (original & current)

Engineer:

Kimley-Horn (Trey Clayton; 352-438-3000)

General Contr:

SGS Contracting Services, Inc.

Owner:

City of Wildwood

Service:

Water

Completion:

September 2018 (expected)

Misc. Improvements, including installation of new well pumps/motors, underground piping, concrete structures, electrical and controls improvements.

HALIFAX PLANTATION WWTP REHAB

Value:

\$906,000 (original & current)

Engineer:

Mead-Hunt (Quentin L. Hampton & Assoc.)

General Contr:

SGS Contracting Services, Inc.

Owner:

Volusia County

Service:

Wastewater

Completion:

March 2019 (expected)

Rehabilitation of two (2) existing package wastewater treatment plants to include significant structural repairs, piping replacements, handrail and grating replacement, gear drive replacement, new RAS pump station, electrical and controls.

CITY OF MACCLENNY WWTF SLUDGE DEWATERING BOXES

Value:

\$124,000 (original & current)

Engineer:

Mittauer & Associates (Tim Norman; 904-278-0030)

General Contr:

SGS Contracting Services, Inc.

Owner:

City of Macclenny (FL)

Service:

Wastewater

Completion:

October 2018 (expected)

Installation of two (2) city-provided sludge dewatering boxes, misc. piping and concrete installations, new polymer feed system,

electrical and controls.

CITY OF DUNEDIN AWTP DENITRIFICATION FILTER REHAB

Value:

\$697,400 (original & current)

Engineer:

King Engineering (Loc Truong; 813-880-8881)

General Contr:

SGS Contracting Services, Inc.

Owner:

City of Dunedin (FL)

Service:

Wastewater

Completion:

March 2019 (expected)

Replacement of all pneumatically-operated filter control valves, including the installation of eight (8) linestops in lower-building level

upper piping.

CITY OF WILDWOOD WWTF PLC UPGRADES & ATS ADDITION

Value:

\$938,700 (original & current)

Engineer:

Kimley-Horn (Trey Clayton; 352-438-3000)

General Contr:

SGS Contracting Services, Inc.

Owner:

City of Wildwood

Wastewater

Service: Completion:

December 2018 (expected)

Installation of new plant controls, electrical building and generator ATS.

CITY OF CASSELBERRY NORTH WTP HIGH SERVICE PUMP REPLACEMENT

Value:

\$482,000 (original & current)

Engineer:

Kimley-Horn (Tara Lamoureux; 407-262-7725)

General Contr:

SGS Contracting Services, Inc.

Owner:

City of Casselberry

Service:

Water

Completion:

April 2019 (expected)

Replacement of existing high-service pumps, electrical, and controls.

ZELLWOOD RD WATER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS PART A WTP NO. 1 & NO. 2

Value:

\$2,740,000 (original & current)

Engineer:

Mittauer & Associates (Kellen Lindsey; 904-278-0030)

General Contr:

SGS Contracting Services, Inc. Zellwood Water Users, Inc.

Owner: Service:

Water

Completion:

September 2019 (expected)

Upgrades and expansion to existing water treatment plants for the Zellwood Water Users, including construction of new administration building, storage tanks, generators, wells, electrical, controls.

<u>CITY OF DAYTONA BEACH BRENNAN WTP LIME SOLIDS CONTACT CLARIFIERS</u>

Value:

\$788,000 (original & current)

Engineer:

N/A

General Contr:

SGS Contracting Services, Inc. (working under a direct PO from Ovivo Water LLC)

Owner:

City of Daytona Beach

Service:

Water

Completion:

December 2019 (expected)

Rehabilitation of three (3) lime solids contact clarifiers, consisting of full sandblasting and high performance coatings and as-needed structural repairs.

LAKE BUTLER WWTP & RECREATION IMPROVEMENTS

Value:

\$325,350 (original & current)

Engineer:

ATM (contact TBD)

General Contr:

SGS Contracting Services, Inc.

Owner:

Town of Lake Butler

Service:

Wastewater

Completion:

December 2019 (expected)

Replacement of misc. equipment and the wastewater plant, including pumps, blowers and aeration piping systems. Also includes installation of public recreation equipment.

COW PATH MASTER PUMP STATION REPLACEMENT

Value:

\$1,067,000 (original and current)

Engineer: General Contr:

Black & Veatch (contact TBD) SGS Contracting Services, Inc.

Owner:

Pasco County

Service:

Wastewater

Completion:

TBD (NTP pending)

Construction of new submersible triplex master pump station, including significant site improvements, electrical, and controls.

BUNNELL WWTP EQ TANK & POND IMPROVEMENTS

Value:

\$195,732 (original and current)

Engineer:

Mead & Hunt (Brad Blals; 386-761-6810)

General Contr:

S.E. Cline Construction

Subcontractor:

SGS Contracting Services, Inc.

Owner:

City of Bunnell

Service:

Wastewater .

Completion:

December 2019 (expected)

Installation of submersible mixer in the existing EQ tank, plus the installation of a flow meter and SolarBee Aeration system.

ST. JOHNS RIVER INTAKE & FILTRATION

Value:

\$1,748,000 (original & current)

Engineer: General Contr: Mead & Hunt (Brad Blals; 386-761-6810)

Owner:

SGS Contracting Services, Inc.

City of DeLand

Service:

Wastewater

Completion:

TBD (NTP pending)

Demolition of existing sand filter and installation of new AquaDiamond filter system. Also includes installation of new bar screen, misc. pumps and other improvements at the facility.

CHIEFLAND WWTP BIOSOLIDS DIGESTER

Value:

\$735,000 (original & current)

Engineer:

Mills Engineering (Andrew Carswell; 352-486-2872)

General Contr:

SGS Contracting Services, Inc.

Owner:

City of Chiefland

Service:

Wastewater

Completion:

TBD (NTP pending)

Construction of new CIP digester, plus accessory pumps and jet aeration system.

COMPLETED PROJECTS

(October 2012 through CURRENT, excluding minor projects listed separately)

NEWBERRY WRF EXPANSION (2012 - 2013)*

Value:

\$2,427,000

Engineer:

General Contr:

Jones, Edmunds, & Associates Brandes Design-Build, Inc.

Owner:

City of Newberry (Blaine Suggs; Newberry, FL; 352-213-0070)

Service:

Wastewater

Expansion of existing plant by adding new packaged WWTP, sprayfield, sitework, electrical, I & C

POLK COUNTY NWRWRF EXPANSION PROJECT (2013)*

Value:

\$2,945,000

Engineer:

Reiss Engineering (Kathleen Glerok; Winter Haven, FL; 407-679-5358)

General Contr:

Brandes Design-Build, inc.

Owner:

Polk County Utilities

Service:

Wastewater

Misc. structural, mechanical, SCADA and electrical improvements throughout plant for expansion purposes.

*Primary Subcontractor; contracted to provide/responsible for all contract management, supervision, labor, and other project elements.

KANAPAHA WRF SEQUENTIAL CHLORINATION PROJECT (2014)*

Value:

\$1,153,100

Engineer:

General Contr:

Jones Edmunds & Associates Brandes Design-Build, Inc.

Owner:

GRU (Rachel Haeseler; Gainesville, FL; 352-393-1618)

Service:

Wastewater

Completion:

May 2014

Installation of ammonium sulfate feed system, electrical, metal building, I & C, process piping

*Primary Subcontractor; contracted to provide/responsible for all contract management, supervision, labor, and other project elements.

^{*}Primary Subcontractor; contracted to provide/responsible for all contract management, supervision, labor, and other project elements.

TOWN OF BRANFORD WWTP IMPROVEMENTS (2014-2015)*

Value:

\$880,113

Engineer:

Mittauer & Associates (Tim Norman; 904-278-0030)

General Contr:

Brandes Design Build, Inc.

Owner:

Town of Branford

Service:

Wastewater

Completion:

May 2015

Construct new clarifier and equipment, new chlorine contact basin, pump stations, & electrical. Rehab of existing package wastewater treatment plant.

*Primary Subcontractor; contracted to provide/responsible for all contract management, supervision, labor, and other project elements.

THE VILLAGES - VCSA & LSSA WWTP'S RAS PUMP REPLACEMENTS

Value:

\$191,748

Engineer:

Arnett Environmental

General Contr:

SGS Contracting Services, Inc.

Owner:

The Villages CDD (Amy Strickland; 352-751-6700)

Service:

Wastewater '

Completion:

July 2015

Removal of and replacement of 10 each RAS Pumps, associated piping, and electrical.

OCALA WRF #2 PROCESS & FILTER IMPROVEMENTS*

Value:

\$10,599,900

Engineer: General Contr:

City of Ocala Brandes Design Build, Inc.

Owner:

City of Ocala (Ed Earnest; 352-351-6688)

Service:

Wastewater

Completion:

November 2015

Construct new aeration basin, reconstruct existing aeration basins, large piping (underground & above-ground), new tertiary filter, aeration and filter equipment, aluminum walkways and handrail, electrical & I & C.

*Primary Subcontractor; contracted to provide/responsible for all contract management, supervision, labor, and other project elements.

DAYSPRING HEALTH WTP

Value:

\$344,000 (plus additional contract modifications)

Engineer:

Mittauer & Associates

General Contr:

SGS Contracting Services, Inc.

Owner:

Dayspring Health LLC (Doug Adkins; 904-583-0134)

Service:

Water

Completion:

January 2016

Construction of new water plant for the Dayspring Health Village facility. Includes installation of Owner-furnished equipment, steel GST's, hydro tank, pumps, process piping, electrical, instrumentation, and other misc. components.

GRU LS 6 ODOR CONTROL PROJECT

Value:

\$179,559 (original & final)

Engineer:

Webster Environmental

General Contr:

SGS Contracting Services, Inc.

Owner:

Gainesville Regional Utilities (Rachel Haeseler; Gainesville, FL; 352-393-1618)

Service:

Wastewater

Completion:

January 2016

Install new Odor Control system, ductwork, process piping, and electrical for GRU Lift Station #6.

RIVERSIDE LIFT STATION REHAB & ODOR CONTROL PROJECT

Value:

\$444,054 (original) / \$540,083 (final)

Engineer:

Constantine Engineering

.General Contr:

SGS Contracting Services, Inc.

Owner:

St. Johns County (James Overton; 904-209-2614)

Service:

Wastewater

Completion:

July 2016

Install new odor control system, ductwork, generator rehab, lift station rehab, site concrete and misc. electrical and I & C improvements.

WINTER GARDEN WOODLARK WTP 1.0MG TANK PROJECT

Value:

\$543,546 (original & final)

Engineer:

CDM-Smith

General Contr:

Crom Corp (James Wornick, 352-372-3436)

Owner:

City of Winter Garden

Service:

Water

Completion:

July 2016

Provide all sitework and pipe installations for the new 1.0MG tank being constructed by the Crom Corp. Includes installation of new chemical feed systems along with misc, improvements to the electrical and I & C systems at the facility. Also includes new asphalt and stormwater structure modifications.

CITY OF BARTOW CENTRIFUGE INSTALLATION PROJECT

Value:

\$802,411 (original & final) -

Engineer:

Chastain-Skillman

General Contr:

SGS Contracting Services, inc.

Owner:

City of Bartow (Connie Adcock, 863-534-0147)

Service:

Wastewater

Completion:

August 2016

Install new centrifuge, polymer feed pumps, sludge grinder, sludge pumps, lift station pumps, structural improvements and misc. plant piping. Includes upgrades to the existing electrical and SCADA systems.

ST. PETE NEWRF CLARIFIER #4 REHAB

Value:

\$432,231 (original & final)

Engineer:

N/A

General Contr:

SGS Contracting Services, inc.

Owner:

City of St. Pete (Craig Osmanski, 727-892-5641)

Service:

Wastewater

Completion:

January 2017

Complete rehab of existing clarifier, including all new equipment and misc. piping and electrical improvements.

AUBURNDALE/POLYTECHNIC RW GST & PUMP STATION

Value:

\$535,000 (original & final)

Engineer:

Chastain-Skillman

General Contr:

Crom Corp (James Wornick, 352-372-3436)

Owner:

City of Auburndale

Service:

Reclaimed Water

Completion:

July 2017

Provide all sitework and pipe installations for the new 2.0MG tank being constructed by the Crom Corp. Includes installation of new high service pump station along with misc. Improvements to the electrical and I & C systems. (Project dates extended due to specialty coating requirements)

DADE CITY ORANGE VALLEY WATER FACILITY IMPROVEMENTS

Value:

\$559,000 (original) / \$574,236 (final)

Engineer:

Stephen Burwinkel, Infrastructure Solutions (321-622-4646)

General Contr:

SGS Contracting Services, Inc.

Owner:

City of Dade City (contract issued)

Service:

Water

Completion:

November 2017

Misc. modifications and improvements to existing water supply facility, including new pumps, tank modifications, chemical feed system, structural concrete, electrical and I & C modifications.

NASSAU-AMELIA WWTF HEADWORKS & AERATION PIPING REHABILITATION

Value:

\$616,212 (original) / \$891,049 (final)

Engineer:

Scott Richards, GAI Consultants (904-363-1110)

General Contr:

SGS Contracting Services, Inc.

Owner:

Nassau County (FL) (Becky Hiers-Bray; 904-530-6225)

Service:

Wastewater

Completion: November 2017

Replace existing rotary drum screen, associated support structure, and complete replacement of above-grade aeration piping and valves.

ORANGE COUNTY NWWRF ODOR CONTROL REPLACEMENT

Value:

\$606,500 (original & final)

Engineer:

Black & Veatch

General Contr:

SGS Contracting Services, Inc.

Owner:

Orange County (Terra Refflt; 407-947-9802)

Service:

Wastewater

Completion:

December 2017

Demolition of existing odor control facilities and installation of new bio-trickling odor control system, including piping, pipe supports, ductwork, structural concrete, electrical and instrumentation improvements.

FLAGLER BEACH WWTP PHASE II IMPROVEMENTS

Value:

\$794,347 (original) / \$808,635 (final)

Engineer:

Quentin L Hampton & Associates (Kevin Lee; 386-761-6810)

General Contr:

SGS Contracting Services, Inc.

Owner:

City of Flagler Beach

Service:

Wastewater

Completion:

May 2018

Misc. Improvements throughout WWTP facility, including chlorine contact chamber expansion, partial clarifler rehab, installation of pumps and piping, misc. metals and electrical.

MINOR PROJECTS & SERVICE PROJECTS

HIGH SPRINGS WWTP - SLUDGE BOX

Value:

\$39,496

Engineer:

Mittauer & Associates (Tim Norman; 904-278-0030)

General Contr:

SGS Contracting Services, Inc.

Owner:

City of High Springs

Service:

Wastewater

Completion:

June 2015

Installation of Owner-furnished Sludgemate Sludge Box unit and chemical feed equipment. Includes furnishing and installing process piping, electrical, pumps and instrumentation.

ADENA SPRINGS WWTP (2013)*

Value:

\$220,000

Engineer:

Nijhuls Water Technology Brandes Design-Build, Inc.

General Contr: Owner:

Adena Springs Ranch

Service:

Wastewater

Installation of WWTP equipment, vaults, tanks; provided complete wastewater system for cattle processing facility. All equipment furnished by Owner.

*Primary Subcontractor; contracted to provide/responsible for all contract management, supervision, labor, and other project elements.

SANDHILL WRF GST HANDRAIL REPLACEMENT

Value:

\$34,350

Engineer:

N/A

General Contr:

SGS Contracting Services, Inc.

Owner:

Toho Water Authority (Ed Scott; Klssimmee, FL; 407-644-5078)

Service:

Wastewater

Completion:

March 2014

Demolition of old handrail system and installation of new handralls on existing GST's

BETHUNE POINT WWTP EUTEK GRIT SYSTEM

Value:

\$68,923 (original & final)

Engineer:

N/A

General Contr:

SGS Contracting Services, Inc.

Owner:

City of Daytona Beach (Bill Banks; Daytona Beach, FL; 386-671-5701)

Service:

Wastewater

Completion:

August 2015 through September 2015

Remove 4 teacup grit collection units and install new Eutek Grit System (teacups provided by Owner).

SANDHILL WRF AERATION BASIN HANDRAIL REPLACEMENT

Value:

\$170,500 (original & final)

Engineer:

N/A

General Contr:

SGS Contracting Services, Inc.

Owner:

Toho Water Authority

Service:

Water

Completion:

November 2016

Complete replacement of handrail and related components on existing aeration basin structure.

LAKE JOVITA HYDRO TANK INSTALLATION

Value:

\$93,107 (original & final)

Engineer:

N/A

General Contr:

SGS Contracting Services, Inc.

Owner:

Pasco County (Michael Marquis; 813-235-6189)

Service:

Water

Completion:

March 2016

Remove and replace one (1) 20,000 gallon hydro tank and related accessories

LAND O LAKES WWTP AERATION BASIN REPAIRS AND VALVE REPLACEMENTS

Value:

\$129,907 (original & final)

Engineer:

N/A

General Contr:

SGS Contracting Services, Inc.

Owner:

Pasco County, FL (Chuck Flowers, 813-235-6189)

Service:

Wastewater

Completion:

May 2016

Replacement of valves and piping on existing aeration basin pump stations.

MWTP LIME SLUDGE PUMP STATION REHAB

Value:

\$159,000 (original) /

\$176,449 (final)

Engineer:

CH2M

General Contr:

SGS Contracting Services, Inc.

Owner:

Gainesville Regional Utilities

Service:

Water

Completion:

July 2018

Rehab of existing lime sludge pump station with new pumps, piping and concrete structures. Pumps provided by Owner.

HERNANDO515 VENTURA VILLAGE HYDRO TANK REPLACEMENT

Value:

\$121,000 (original & final)

Engineer:

N/A

General Contr:

SGS Contracting Services, Inc. Hernando515 LTD (contact TBD)

Owner: Service:

Water

Completion:

January 2018

Replacement of existing 15,000 gallon hydropne904-umatic tank (used as water storage tank) and aerator.

CITY OF NEWBERRY WRF PLANT 2 EMERGENCY REHAB

Value:

\$150,000 (original & final)

Engineer:

N/A

General Contr:

SGS Contracting Services, Inc.

Owner:

City of Newberry (Jamle Jones; 352-258-4486)

Service:

Wastewater

Completion:

July 2018 -

Emergency rehab of existing package wastewater treatment plant, to include structural repair, diffuser replacement, and installation of a new gear drive.

ORANGE CITY WTP TRANSFER PUMP REPLACEMENT

Value:

\$48,000 (original & final)

Engineer:

N/A

General Contr:

SGS Contracting Services, Inc.

Owner:

City of Orange City (contact TBD)

Service:

Water

Completion:

November 2017

Replacement of two (2) existing high service pumps along with valves (provided by Owner).

WINTER HAVEN WWTP #3 SLUDGE LOADING CONVEYOR REPLACEMENT

Value:

\$154,000 (original) / \$174,537 (final)

Engineer:

N/A

General Contr:

SGS Contracting Services, Inc.

Owner:

City of Winter Haven (Charles Nichols; 863-514-8623)

Service:

Wastewater

Completion:

August 2018

Demolition and replacement of belt press sludge loading system. Includes installation of conveyors for two (2) existing belt presses, electrical, and instrumentation.



Board of County Commissioners St. Johns County Florida

BID NO: 19-06

SR 16 WASTEWATER TREATMENT FACILITY (WWTF) FILTER IMPROVEMENTS

BID DOCUMENTS PROJECT SPECIFICATIONS

St. Johns County Purchasing Department 500 San Sebastian View St. Augustine FL 32084 904.209.0150

Final: 09/27/18

BID NO: 19-06; SR 16 Wastewater Treatment Facility (WWTF) Filter Improvements

TABLE OF CONTENTS

FRONT END BID DOCUMENTS

Notice to Bidders

Instruction to Bidders

Official County Bid Form with Attachments

Attachment "A" - St Johns County Board of County Commissioners Affidavit

Attachment "B" - Certificate as to Corporate Principal

Attachment "C" - License/Certification List

Attachment "D" - List of Proposed Sub-Contractors/Suppliers

Attachment "E" - Conflict of Interest Disclosure Form

Attachment "F" - Certificate of Compliance with Florida Trench Safety Act

Attachment "G" - Proof of Insurance

Attachment "H" - Contractor's Qualifications Form

CONTRACT FORMS AND CONDITIONS

Section C-520 - Agreement Stipulated Price

Attachment A - Public Construction Bond

Section C-700 – Standard General Conditions

Section 00800 - Supplementary Conditions

PROJECT SPECIFICATIONS/DRAWINGS/TECHNICAL DOCUMENTS

END OF TABLE OF CONTENTS

NOTICE TO BIDDERS

Notice is hereby given that sealed bids will be received <u>until 2:00 p.m.</u> on <u>Wednesday, October 31, 2018</u> by the St. Johns County Purchasing Department, located at 500 San Sebastian View, St. Augustine, Florida 32084 for <u>Bid No: 19-06; SR 16 Wastewater Treatment Facility (WWTF) Filter Improvements</u>. Bids will be opened promptly after the 2:00 p.m. deadline. <u>Note</u>: Bids delivered or received in the Purchasing Department after the 2:00 p.m. deadline shall not be given consideration and shall be returned to the sender unopened.

Scope of Work

The project requires the contractor to furnish all labor, materials, equipment, and incidentals required to construct a new filter system with a cloth media disk filter at the SR 16 Wastewater Treatment Facility (WWTF) in Saint Augustine, FL. The project will be constructed on an active WWTF site and existing operation shall be maintained throughout construction. The scope of work includes, but is not limited to, all required instruments, piping, electrical work, concrete, site work, and appurtenances as shown on the drawings and specified within.

Minimum Qualifications

Prime bidder must be fully licensed to do business in the State of Florida, hold a current Certified Underground Utility Contractor or Certified General Contractor license in the State of Florida at the time the bid is due, and provide proof of licensure with the submitted Bid Proposal. Prime or Sub-contractor performing underground utility work shall be fully licensed to do business in the State of Florida and hold a current Certified Underground Utility Contractor's license. Bidders must have successfully completed, as a Prime or Sub-contractor, at least three (3) projects, in the past five (5) years, of similar type, size and dollar value of the project described herein.

Pre-Bid Conference and Site Visit

A Non-Mandatory Pre-Bid Conference will be held on <u>Tuesday</u>, October 9, 2018 at 9:00 a.m. at the St. Johns County Utility Department, 1205 State Road 16, St. Augustine, FL 32084. All firms interested in submitting a response are invited to attend this meeting. Immediately following the Pre-Bid Conference shall be a Non-Mandatory Site Visit at the existing SR 16 WWTFP located at 3000 Industry Center Road, St. Augustine, FL 32084 so that Bidders may familiarize themselves with the conditions. Although attendance at the pre-bid meeting and site visit is not required, it is strongly encouraged by the County. Please do not park in designated customer service parking spots.

Bid Documents, Project Specifications and Drawings

Documents related to this bid may be obtained from Onvia DemandStar, Inc., at the following web address: www.demandstar.com by requesting St. Johns County Bid Document #19-06. For technical assistance with this Website please contact Onvia Supplier Services at 1-800-711-1712. A link to the Onvia DemandStar website is available through the St. Johns County Purchasing Website by clicking on the following link: www.sjcfl.us/BCC/Purchasing/Open_Bids.aspx. Check the County's site for download availability and any applicable fees.

Point of Contact

Any and all questions related to this project shall be directed, *in writing*, to Leigh Daniels, CPPB, Procurement Supervisor/Acting Purchasing Manager, SJC Purchasing Department, via email to <u>ldaniels@sjcfl.us</u> or fax to (904) 209-0155. In the event the Designated Point of Contact is absent or otherwise unavailable for more than three (3) business days, firms may contact David Pyle, CPPB, Procurement Coordinator at <u>dpyle@sjcfl.us</u>

Questions must be submitted, *in writing*, no later than four o'clock (4:00PM) on Friday, October 19, 2018, so that any necessary addenda may be issued in a timely manner. Any questions received after the deadline will not be answered unless previously approved by the SJC Purchasing Manager or other designated County Representative.

Any bidder, proposer or person substantially and adversely affected by an intended decision or by any term, condition, procedure or specification with respect to any bid, invitation, solicitation of proposals or requests for qualifications, shall file with the Purchasing Department for St. Johns County, a written notice of intent to protest no later than 72 hours (excluding Saturdays, Sundays and legal holidays for employees of St. Johns County) after the posting either electronically or by other means of the notice of intended action, notice of intended award, bid tabulation, publication by

posting electronically or by other means of a procedure, specification, term or condition which the person intends to protest, or the right to protest such matter shall be waived. The protest procedures may be obtained from the Purchasing Department and are included in the County's Purchasing Manual. All of the terms and conditions of the County's Purchasing Manual are incorporated by reference and are fully binding.

Vendors shall not contact, lobby, or otherwise communicate with any SJC employee, including any member of the Board of County Commissioners, other than the above referenced individual from the point of advertisement of the Bid until a contract(s) is executed by all parties, per SJC Purchasing Code 304.6.5 "Procedures Concerning Lobbying". According to SJC policy, any such communication shall disqualify the vendor, contractor, or consultant from responding to the subject invitation to bid, request for quote, request for proposal, invitation to negotiate, or request for qualifications. St. Johns County reserves the right to accept or reject any or all bids/proposals, waive minor formalities, and to award the bid/proposal that best serves the interests of St. Johns County. St. Johns County also reserves the right to award the base bid and any alternate bids in any combination that best suits the needs of the County.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
OF ST. JOHNS COUNTY, FLORIDA
HUNTER S. CONRAD, CLERK
BY:
Denuty Clerk

FRONT END BID DOCUMENTS

INSTRUCTION TO BIDDERS

OWNER: The Board of County Commissioners of St. Johns County, Florida ("County") OR ("Owner")

PROJECT: Bid No: 19-06; SR 16 Wastewater Treatment Facility (WWTF) Filter Improvements

DEFINITIONS

<u>All definitions</u> set forth in the General Conditions of the Contract or in other Contract Documents are applicable to the Bidding Documents.

<u>Addenda</u> are written or graphic instruments issued by the Purchasing Department prior to the time and date for receiving Bids that modify or interpret the Bidding Documents by addition, deletion, clarification, or corrections.

<u>Base Bid</u> is complete and properly signed proposal to do the work, or designated portion thereof, for the sums stipulated therein supported by data called for by the Bidding Documents.

<u>Bid</u> An offer, as a price, whether for payment or acceptance. A quotation, specifically given to a prospective purchaser upon its request, usually in competition with other vendors

<u>Bid (Formal or Sealed)</u> A request for firm prices by Advertised Legal Notice. Prices are submitted in sealed envelopes and in conformance with a prescribed format, all of which are opened in public on an appointed hour and date as advertised.

<u>Bid Bond</u> A good faith monetary commitment which a bidder or surety forfeits to the County of the bidder refuses, or is unable to enter into a contract after submitting a bid, or the bidder cannot furnish the required bonds, usually five percent (5%) of the bid proposal price.

<u>Bidder</u> is a firm or individual who submits a Bid to the Owner for the work described in the proposed Contract Documents.

<u>Bidding Documents</u> include the Advertisement/Notice to Bidders, Front End Bid Documents, Contract Forms and Conditions, Specifications and Plans including any Addenda issued prior to receipt of Bids.

<u>Contract</u> A delivered agreement between two or more parties, legally binding and enforceable, to perform a specific act or acts or exchange goods for consideration. A purchase order becomes a contract when accepted by a vendor. A unilateral contract is one in which only one party promises performance. A bilateral contract is one in which both parties promise performance.

Contractor An individual or firm having a contract to provide goods, service or construction for a specified price

County St. Johns County, a political subdivision of the State of Florida (F.S. 217.73)

Experience Modification Rate (EMR) Number used by insurance companies to gauge both past cost of injuries and future chances of risk.

<u>Responsible Bidder</u> A bidder capable of performing in all respects to fulfill the contract requirements. This includes having the ability to perform, the experience, reliability, capacity, credit, facilities and equipment to meet the contractual obligation.

Responsive Bid, Responsive Proposal, or Responsive Reply A bid, proposal, or reply submitted by a responsive and responsible vendor conforming in all material respects to the solicitation.

<u>Specifications</u> A clear, complete and accurate statement of the physical, functional or technical requirements descriptive of an item and if applicable, the procedure to be followed to determine if the requirements are met.

<u>Sub-contractor</u> A party who contracts with a prime contractor to perform all or any part of the prime contractor's obligations.

<u>Unit Price</u> is an amount stated in the Bid as a price per unit of measurement for materials or services as described in the contract documents which shall include all labor, materials, equipment and any other item/s essential to accomplish the

scope of work of the Unit Price.

BIDDER'S REPRESENTATION

Each Bidder, by marking his Bid, represents that he has read and understands the Bidding and Contract Documents and his Bid is made in accordance herewith: he has visited the Site and has familiarized himself with the local conditions under which the Work is to be performed; and his Bid is based upon the materials, systems and equipment described in the Bidding Documents without exceptions.

BIDDING DOCUMENTS

Bidding documents may be obtained from www.demandstar.com as stated in the Advertisement or Invitation - Notice to Bidders. Complete sets of Bidding Documents shall be used in preparing the Bid Proposal. St. Johns County shall not assume any responsibility for errors or misinterpretations resulting from the use of complete or incomplete sets of Bidding Documents. The Owner, in making copies of the Bidding Documents available on the above terms, does so only for the purpose of obtaining bids on the Work and does not confer a license or grant for any other use.

INTERPRETATION OR CORRECTION OF BIDDING DOCUMENTS

Bidders shall promptly notify the Owner of any ambiguity, inconsistency, or error which they may discover upon examination of the Bidding Documents or of the site and local conditions. Bidders requiring clarification of interpretation of the Bidding Documents shall make a written request to the Owner, to reach him at least <u>fourteen (14) days</u> prior to the date for receipt of Bids.

An interpretation, correction, or change of the bidding Documents will be made by Addendum. Interpretation, corrections, or changes of the Bidding Documents made in any other manner will not be binding, and Bidders shall not rely upon such interpretation, corrections, and change. No change will be made to the Bidding Documents by the Owner or its Representative seven (7) days prior to Bid receiving date, however, the Owner reserves the authority to decrease this time depending on the necessity of such change.

SUBSTITUTIONS

The materials, products and equipment described in the Bidding Documents establish a standard of required function, dimension, appearance and quality to be met by any proposed substitution. No substitution will be considered unless written request for approval has been submitted by the Bidder and has been received by the Owner at least <u>fourteen (14)</u> <u>days</u> prior to the date for receipt of Bids. Each such request shall meet the requirements of the Supplementary Conditions and include the name of the material or equipment for which it is to be substituted and a complete description of the proposed substitute, including drawings, cuts, performance and test data any other information necessary for an evaluation. A statement setting forth any changes in other materials, equipment or work that incorporation of the substitute would require shall be included. The burden of proof of the merit of the proposed substitute is upon the proposer. The project director's approval or disapproval of a proposed substitution shall be final.

If County Staff approves any proposed substitution, such approval will be set forth in an Addendum. Bidders shall <u>not</u> rely upon approval made in any other manner.

PRE-BID CONFERENCE AND SITE VISIT

A Non-Mandatory Pre-Bid Conference will be held on <u>Tuesday</u>, October 9, 2018 at 9:00 a.m. at the St. Johns County Utility Department, 1205 State Road 16, St. Augustine, FL 32084 All firms interested in submitting a response are invited to attend this meeting. Immediately following the Pre-Bid Conference shall be a Non-Mandatory Site Visit at the existing SR 16 WWTF located at 3000 Industry Center Road, St. Augustine, FL 32084 so that Bidders may familiarize themselves with the conditions. Although attendance at the pre-bid meeting and site visit is not required, it is strongly encouraged by the County. Please do not park in designated customer service parking spots.

DESIGNATED POINT OF CONTACT

Any and all questions related to this project shall be directed, **in writing**, to Leigh Daniels, CPPB, Procurement Supervisor/Acting Purchasing Manager, St. Johns County Purchasing Department, via email to <u>ldaniels@sjcfl.us</u> or fax to (904) 209-0155. In the event the Designated Point of Contact is absent or otherwise unavailable for more than three (3) business days, firms may contact David Pyle, CPPB, Procurement Coordinator at <u>dpyle@sjcfl.us</u>.

Bidders shall not contact, lobby, or otherwise communicate with any other County Staff, including members of the Board

of County Commissioners, other than the designated representative shown above. Failure to comply with this requirement shall disqualify a bidder from consideration for award, as provided in St. Johns County Purchasing Code 304.6.5 as provided below:

Vendors shall not contact, lobby, or otherwise communicate with any SJC employee, including any member of the Board of County Commissioners, other than the above referenced individual from the point of advertisement of the Bid until a contract(s) is executed by all parties, per SJC Purchasing Code 304.6.5 "Procedures Concerning Lobbying". According to SJC policy, any such communication shall disqualify the vendor, contractor, or consultant from responding to the subject invitation to bid, request for quote, request for proposal, invitation to negotiate, or request for qualifications. St. Johns County reserves the right to accept or reject any or all bids/proposals, waive minor formalities, and to award the bid/proposal that best serves the interests of St. Johns County. St. Johns County also reserves the right to award the base bid and any alternate bids in any combination that best suits the needs of the County.

OUESTIONS

Questions are due no later than 4:00 p.m. on Friday, October 19, 2018, so that any necessary addenda may be issued in a timely manner. Any questions received after the deadline will not be answered unless previously approved by the SJC Purchasing Manager or other designated County Representative.

ADDENDA

Addenda will be distributed to all who are known by the entity responsible for distribution of the complete set of Bidding Documents. Copies of Addenda will be made available for inspection wherever Bidding Documents are on file for that purpose.

Each Bidder shall ascertain prior to submitting a bid that all issued addenda have been received, and each Bidder shall acknowledge receipt of all issued addenda in the space provided in the Official County Bid Form. A fully acknowledged copy of each issued addendum must be included in the submitted bid proposal. Failure to provide fully acknowledged copies of each addendum may result in a bid proposal being deemed non-responsive.

BID SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS

Bids shall be submitted in <u>TRIPLICATE</u> (one (1) original and two (2) copies) on the required forms provided herein. All blanks on the Bid Form shall be filled in by typewriter or manually in blue or black ink. Bidders are <u>not</u> required to submit a full copy of this Bid Document with their bid proposals. The bidders are required to submit, at a minimum, the Bid Proposal Attachments listed in this Document.

Bid proposals must be placed in an envelope, sealed and placed in a second envelope or container, plainly marked on the outside addressed to St. Johns County Purchasing Department, with the bidder's return address in top left hand corner and recite: "Bid No: 19-06; SR 16 Wastewater Treatment Facility (WWTF) Filter Improvements".

See Example Below:

ABC Company, Inc. 123 Aviles Street St. Augustine, FL 32084

St. Johns County Purchasing Department 500 San Sebastian View

St. Augustine, FL 32084

BID NO.: XX-XX - SEALED BID FOR SAMPLE PROJECT

A sealed Bid mailing label is provided for convenience. Bidders shall affix the provided label to the outside of the sealed envelope/container to submit their Bid.

Bidder shall assume full responsibility for timely delivery at location designated for receipts of Bids. Bids shall be deposited at the designated location prior to the time and date for receipt of Bids indicated in the Advertisement/Notice to Bidders, or any time extension thereof made by Addendum. Bids received after the time and date for receipt of Bids will be returned to the sender unopened.

Oral, telephonic, telegraphic or electronic Bids are invalid and will not receive consideration.

Where so indicated by the makeup of the Bid Form, sums shall be expressed in both words and figures, and in the case of discrepancy between the two, the amount expressed in words shall govern.

Any interlineations, alteration or erasure must be initialed by the signer of the Bid; failure to do so may cause the Bidder's proposal to be considered non-responsive.

Bidder shall make no stipulation on the Bid Form nor qualify his Bid in any manner, to do so will classify the Bid as being non-responsive, and may result in the Bidder being removed from consideration for award.

Each submitted copy of the Bid Proposal shall include the full legal company name, address, telephone number and legal name of an authorized representative for the Bidder and a statement as to whether the Bidder is a sole proprietor, partnership, corporation, or any other legal entity. Each copy of the submitted Bid shall be signed by the person or persons legally authorized to bind the Bidder to a contract. A Bid by a corporation shall further give the state of incorporation and have the corporation seal affixed.

A Bid submitted by an agent shall have a current Power of Attorney attached certifying agent's authority to bind the Bidder.

BID SECURITY

Each submitted Bid shall be accompanied by a Bid Security, submitted on the Bid Bond Form provided herein, or in the form of a certified or cashier's check, in the amount of five percent (5%) of the Total Bid Price (Base Bid + Allowance) amount submitted on the Official County Bid Form, pledging that the Bidder will enter into a contract with the Owner on the terms stated in the Bid and will, if required, furnish bonds as described hereunder covering the faithful performance of the Contract and the payment of all obligations arising thereunder. Should the Bidder refuse to enter into such Contract or fail to furnish such bonds to the Owner, if required, the amount of the Bid Security shall be forfeited, not as penalty, but as liquidated damages.

A Bid Security in the form of a certified or cashier's check must be made payable to the Board of County Commissioners of St. Johns County. Bidders submitting a certified or cashier's check as the bid security are not required to submit Attachment "B" – Certificate as to Corporate Principal, or the Bid Bond forms provided herein.

A Bid Security in the form of a Bid Bond shall be written on the form provided herein, with an acceptable surety, and the Attorney-in-Fact who executes the bond on behalf of the surety shall affix to the bond a certified and current copy of his Power of Attorney. Acceptable surety companies are defined herein under "Surety Bond". The Surety Company shall be licensed to do business in the State of Florida and shall be listed by the U.S. Treasury Department. Any Bidder submitting a Bid Security in the form of a Bid Bond must also submit Attachment "B" — Certificate as to Corporate Principal.

The Owner shall have the right to retain the Bid Security of Bidders until either: (a) the Contract is executed and bonds, if required, have been furnished, or (b) the specified time has elapsed so that Bids may be withdrawn, or (c) all Bids have been rejected.

BID BOND INSTRUCTIONS

If a Bidder chooses to submit a Bid Bond on the form provided herein, he must submit the bond as follows:

- 1. Prepare and submit one (1) original and two (2) copies of the required Bid Bond Forms as shown above.
- 2. Type or print Bidder's and Surety's names in the same language as in the Advertisement, or Invitation to Bid.
- 3. Affix the Corporate Seal, and type or print the name of the Surety on the line provided and affix its corporate seal.
- 4. Attach a copy of Surety agent's Power of Attorney, unless the Power of Attorney has been recorded in St. Johns County. If it has been recorded, give the record book and page. If not recorded, the copy of the Power of Attorney must have an original signature of the Secretary or Assistant Secretary of Surety certifying the copy. The Surety's corporate seal must be affixed.

BID POSTPONEMENT/CANCELLATION

The County may, at its sole and absolute discretion, reject any bids that are not submitted in accordance with the terms in this Bid Solicitation. The County may re-advertise this Bid; postpone or cancel, at any time, this Bid process; or waive any irregularities in this Bid or in the proposals received as a result of this Bid.

MODIFICATION OR WITHDRAWAL OF BID

A Bid may not be modified, withdrawn or canceled by the Bidder during the stipulated time period following the time and date designated for the receipt of Bids, and Bidder so agrees in submitting his Bid.

Prior to time and date designated for receipt of Bids, a Bid submitted early may be modified or withdrawn only by notice to the party receiving Bids at the place and prior to the time designated for receipt of Bids.

Such notice shall be in writing over the signature of the Bidder. If by telephone, written confirmation over the signature of Bidder must be mailed and postmarked on or before the date and time set for receipt of Bids; it shall be so worded as not to reveal the amount of the original Bid.

Withdrawn Bids may be resubmitted up to the time designated for the receipt of Bids provided that they are then fully in conformance with these Instructions to Bidders.

Bid Security shall be in the amount of five percent (5%) of the Bid as modified or resubmitted.

COSTS INCURRED BY BIDDERS

All expenses involved with the preparation and submission of bids to the County, or any work performed in connection therewith, shall be borne by the Bidder(s). No rights of ownership will be conferred until title of the property is transferred to the successful bidder. All fees for copying and reproduction services for items listed herein are nonrefundable.

CONSIDERATION OF BIDS

Opening of Bids: Unless stated otherwise in an Addendum to the Advertisement/Notice to Bidders, the properly identified Bids received on time will be opened publicly as specified in the Advertisement and a tabulation of the bid amounts of the Base Bids and major Alternates, if any, will be made available to Bidders. The Bid Tabulation will be posted on the Purchasing Department bulletin board for seventy two (72) hours.

Any bidder, proposer or person substantially and adversely affected by an intended decision or by any term, condition, procedure or specification with respect to any bid, invitation, solicitation of proposals or requests for qualifications, shall file with the Purchasing Department for St. Johns County, a written notice of intent to protest no later than 72 hours (excluding Saturdays, Sundays and legal holidays for employees of St. Johns County) after the posting either electronically or by other means of the notice of intended action, notice of intended award, bid tabulation, publication by posting electronically or by other means of a procedure, specification, term or condition which the person intends to protest, or the right to protest such matter shall be waived. The protest procedures may be obtained from the Purchasing Department and are included in the County's Purchasing Manual. All of the terms and conditions of the County's Purchasing Manual are incorporated by reference and are fully binding.

Rejection of Bids: The Owner reserves the right to reject any or all Bids and in particular to reject a Bid not accompanied by any required Bid Security or data required by the Bidding Documents or a Bid in any way incomplete or irregular.

Acceptance of Bid (Award): The Owner shall have the right to waive any minor formality or irregularity in any Bid received.

The Owner shall have the right to accept alternates in any order or combination and to determine the low Bidder on the basis of the sum of the Base Bid and/or the Alternates accepted if alternate bids are requested in the Official County Bid Form.

It is the intent of the Owner to award a contract to the lowest responsible Bidder provided the Bid has been submitted in accordance with the requirements of the Bidding Documents, if judged to be reasonable, and does not exceed the funds budgeted for the Project.

If the Contract is awarded, it will be awarded within a minimum of ninety (90) days from the date of the Bid opening, or as designated in the Bid Documents.

MINIMUM QUALIFICATION OF CONTRACTORS

Prime bidder must be fully licensed to do business in the State of Florida, hold a current Certified Underground Utility

Contractor or Certified General Contractor license in the State of Florida at the time the bid is due, and provide proof of licensure with the submitted Bid Proposal. Prime or Sub-contractor performing underground utility work shall be fully licensed to do business in the State of Florida and hold a current Certified Underground Utility Contractor's license. Bidders must have successfully completed, as a Prime or Sub-contractor, at least three (3) projects, in the past five (5) years, of similar type, size and dollar value of the project described herein.

Proof of qualifications shall be provided by completing and submitting Attachment "C" – License/Certification List and Attachment "H" – Contractor's Qualifications Form along with a copy of each license and certificate listed. All licenses, certifications and pre-qualifications must be valid and current on the date bids are submitted.

Bidders to whom award of a contract is under consideration shall submit to the County, upon its request, a properly executed Contractor's Qualification Statement of AIA Document A305, unless such a statement has been previously required and submitted as a prerequisite to the issuance of Bidding Documents.

SUB-CONTRACTORS

Each Bidder shall submit to the County a list of Sub-contractors and major materials suppliers to be used if awarded the contract. A copy of the form, Attachment "D" – List of Proposed Sub-Contractors / Supplier List, is provided in the Bidding Documents.

Upon request by the County, the successful Bidder shall, within seven (7) days thereafter, submit all data required to establish to the satisfaction of the County, the reliability and responsibility of the proposed Sub-contractors to furnish and perform the work described in the Sections of the Specifications pertaining to such proposed Sub-contractor's respective trades.

Prior to the award of the Contract, the County will notify the Bidder in writing if either the County, after due investigation, has reasonable and substantial objection to any person or organization proposed as a Sub-contractor. The Bidder then may, at his option, withdraw his Bid without forfeiture of Bid Security or submit an acceptable substitute at no increase in Bid price. If the Bidder fails to submit an acceptable substitute within seven (7) days of the original notification, the County then may, at its option, disqualify the Bidder, at no cost to the County.

The County reserves the right to disqualify any Contractor, Sub-contractor, Vendor, or material supplier due to previously documented project problems, either with performance or quality.

Sub-contractors and other persons and organizations proposed by the Bidder and accepted by the County, must be used on the work for which they were proposed and accepted and shall not be changed except with the written approval of the County.

PUBLIC CONSTRUCTION BOND

The Contractor shall be required to obtain and submit a recorded Public Construction Bond covering the faithful performance of the Contract and the payment of all obligations arising thereunder in full amount of the Contract, with such acceptable sureties, secured through the Bidder's usual sources as may be agreeable to the parties. The Contractor shall furnish the required bond, after full execution of the awarded Contract. The Bond shall be released upon satisfactory completion of the project.

SURETY BOND

Acceptable Surety Companies: To be responsible to the Owner as Surety on Bonds, Surety shall comply with the following provisions:

- 1. Surety must be licensed to do business in the State of Florida;
- 2. Surety must have been in business and have a record of successful continuous operations for at least three (3) years:
- 3. Surety shall not have exposed itself to any loss on any one risk in an amount exceeding twenty percent (20%) of its surplus to policyholders;
- 4. Surety must have fulfilled all of its obligations on all other bonds given to the Owner;
- 5. Surety must have good underwriting, economic management, adequate reserves for undisclosed liabilities, and net resources for unusual stock and sound investment.

TIME OF DELIVERY AND FORM OF BONDS

The Public Construction Bond form will be forwarded to the successful Bidder with his copy of the fully executed

contract. The Public Construction Bond must be recorded <u>after</u> the contract is signed by all parties. The bidder will have three (3) days from receipt of a fully executed contract to have the Public Construction Bond recorded. The bidder shall have the Public Construction Bond recorded at the St. Johns County Clerk of Courts office, in St. Augustine, Florida. After the book and page number have been assigned to the bond by the recording person, the Bidder is to obtain from the recording person a certified copy of the recorded bond, and deliver the certified copy to the Owner's Contract Administrator. No work can commence until the required bond and Insurance Certificates have been delivered to the Owner. Upon receipt of the certified copy of the recorded bond, the Owner may issue a Notice to Proceed.

Unless otherwise specified in the Bid Documents, the bonds shall be written on the form provided herein. The Bidder shall require the Attorney-in-Fact who executes the required bonds on behalf of the Surety to affix thereto a certified and current copy of his Power of Attorney authorizing his firm to act as agent for the Surety in issuing the bonds.

INDEMNIFICATION

To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the Owner, its officials, and employees, from and against liability, claims, damages, losses and expenses including attorney's fees arising out of or resulting from performance of the work, provided that such liability, claims, damages, loss or expense is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease or death, or to injury to or destruction of tangible property (other than the work itself) including loss of use resulting therefrom, but only to the extent caused in whole or in part, by negligent acts or omissions of the Contractor, a Sub-contractor, or anyone directly or indirectly employed by them or anyone for whose acts they may be liable, regardless of whether or not such liability, claim, damage, loss or expense is caused in part by a party indemnified hereunder.

In claims against any person or entity indemnified under this paragraph by an employee of the Contractor, a Sub-contractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by them or anyone for whose acts they may be liable, the indemnification obligation under this shall not be limited by a limitation on amount or type of damages, compensation or benefits payable by or for the Contractor or a Sub-contractor under workers' compensation acts, disability benefits acts or other employee benefits acts.

TERMINATION

Failure on the part of the Contractor to comply with any portion of the duties and obligations under the Contract Agreement shall be cause for termination. If the Contractor fails to perform any aspect of the responsibilities described herein St. Johns County shall provide written notification of any and all items of non-compliance. The Contractor shall then have five (5) consecutive calendar days to correct any and all items of non-compliance. If the items of non-compliance are not corrected, or acceptable corrective action has not been taken within the five (5) consecutive calendar days, the Contract Agreement may be terminated by St. Johns County for cause, upon giving fourteen (14) consecutive calendar days written notice to the Contractor.

The County may terminate the Contract Agreement at any time, without cause, upon thirty (30) days written notice to the Contractor of intention to do so.

If, at any time, the Contract Agreement with the awarded vendor is terminated by the County, whether for cause or for convenience, the County may, at its sole discretion, negotiate with the second lowest, responsible, responsive bidder for the required services in order to enter into a contract with that vendor to prevent a gap in services for the County, if it serves the best interest of the County to do so.

FORM OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN OWNER AND CONTRACTOR

Form to be used: Unless otherwise provided in the Bidding Documents, the Agreement for Work will be written on C-520 Agreement Stipulated Price.

CONTRACT TIME – LIQUIDATED DAMAGES

The Contractor shall have ten (10) days to return Contract originals from the time the Contractor receives a "Notice of Award". St. Johns County will return a "fully executed" Contract to the Contractor no later than seven (7) days after the return of the executed Contract originals (but no later than seventeen (17) days from the Notice of Award).

The Contractor will furnish a recorded original of the Public Construction Bond within three (3) business days after receipt of the fully executed Contract (the Public Construction Bond must be recorded after the Contract is fully executed by all parties

including the County Clerk). Upon receipt of the recorded Public Construction Bond, the County will issue a Notice to Proceed. If the Contractor fails to meet any of the dates and timeframes set forth in this section, or fails to execute the Contract, or to provide a Public Construction Bond, the County may elect, at its option, to consider the Contractor non-responsive and contract with the next lowest responsible Bidder.

The work to be performed under this Agreement shall be commenced within <u>ten (10)</u> days of the date, in writing, of the Notice to Proceed. Construction of the project shall be substantially complete within two hundred ten (210) consecutive calendar days from the date stipulated on the Notice to Proceed. Final completion shall be attained within thirty (30) consecutive calendar days from the date of substantial completion.

The Contractor will be responsible for the cost of additional filter rental if construction is delayed.

CONDITIONS UNDER WHICH LIQUIDATED DAMAGES ARE IMPOSED:

Should the Contractor or, in case of his default, the Surety fail to complete the work within the time stipulated in the contract, or within such extra time as may have been granted by the Owner, the Contractor or, in case of his default, the Surety shall pay to the Owner, not as a penalty but as liquidated damages, the amount so due as determined by the following schedule:

Original Contract Amount	Daily Charge Per Calendar Day
\$50,000 and under	\$763
Over:	•
\$50,000 but less than \$250,000	\$958
\$250,000 but less than \$500,000	\$1,099
\$500,000 but less than \$2,500,000	\$1,584
\$2,500,000 but less than \$5,000,000	\$2,811
\$5,000,000 but less than \$10,000,000	\$3,645
\$10,000,000 but less than \$15,000,000.	\$4,217
\$15,000,000 but less than \$20,000,000.	\$4,698
\$20,000,000	
(Round to nearest whole dollar)	

INSURANCE -

The Contractor shall not commence work under this Agreement until he/she has obtained all insurance required under this section and such insurance has been approved by the County. All insurance policies shall be issued by companies authorized to do business under the laws of the State of Florida. The Contractor shall furnish proof of Insurance to the County prior to the commencement of operations. The Certificate(s) shall clearly indicate the Contractor has obtained insurance of the type, amount, and classification as required by contract and that no material change or cancellation of the insurance shall be effective without thirty (30) days prior written notice to the County. Certificates shall specifically include the County as Additional Insured for all lines of coverage except Workers? Compensation and Professional Liability. A copy of the endorsement must accompany the certificate. Compliance with the foregoing requirements shall not relieve the Contractor of its liability and obligations under this Agreement.

Certificate Holder Address:

St. Johns County, a political subdivision of the State of Florida

500 San Sebastian View St. Augustine, FL 32084

The Contractor shall maintain during the life of this Agreement, Comprehensive General Liability Insurance with minimum limits of \$1,000,000 per occurrence, \$2,000,000 aggregate, to protect the Contractor from claims for damages for bodily injury, including wrongful death, as well as from claims of property damages which may arise from any operations under this contract, whether such operations be by the Contractor or by anyone directly employed by or contracting with the Contractor.

The Contractor shall maintain during the life of this Agreement, Professional Liability or Errors and Omissions Insurance with minimum limits of \$1,000,000, if applicable.

The Contractor shall maintain during the life of this Contract, Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance with minimum limits of \$2,000,000 combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage liability to protect the

Contractor from claims for damages for bodily injury, including the ownership, use, or maintenance of owned and non-owned automobiles, including rented/hired automobiles whether such operations be by the Contractor or by anyone directly or indirectly employed by a Contractor.

The Contractor shall maintain Umbrella or Excess Liability Insurance covering workers compensation, commercial general liability and business auto liability with minimum limits of liability of \$1,000,000.

The Contractor shall maintain during the life of this Agreement, adequate Workers' Compensation Insurance in at least such amounts as is required by the law for all of its employees per Florida Statute 440.02.

The Contractor shall maintain during the life of this Contract, adequate Builder's Risk Insurance in the amount of the initial contract amount plus the values of subsequent modifications, change orders, and loss of materials supplied or installed by others comprising the value of the entire project at the site on a replacement cost basis.

In the event of unusual circumstances, the County Administrator or his designee may adjust these insurance requirements.

GOVERNING LAWS & REGULATIONS

The Contractor shall be responsible for being familiar and complying with any and all federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, rules and regulations that, in any manner, affect the work required under this contract. The agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Florida and St. Johns County both as to interpretation and performance.

TAXES

Project is subject to Federal Excise and Florida Sales Taxes, which must be included in Bidder's proposal.

FLORIDA TRENCH SAFETY ACT

Bidders shall complete Certificate of Compliance with Florida Trench Safety Act, in accordance with the requirements of Chapter 553, Florida Statutes. If trenching is not required for this project, state so thereon. Contractor shall be responsible for compliance with all trenching shoring safety requirements.

LIST OF MAJOR EQUIPMENT/MATERIAL SUPPLIERS

No substitution will be considered unless written request for approval has been submitted by the Bidder and has been received by the Engineer at least <u>fourteen (14) calendar days</u> prior to the date for receipt of Bids and has been approved by Owner/Engineer via addenda.

The Owner reserves the right to disqualify any Contractor, Sub-contractor, Vendor, or material/equipment supplier due to previously documented problems, either with performance or quality.

OWNER DIRECT PURCHASE

St. Johns County reserves the right to Owner Direct Purchase materials or equipment in accordance with County Purchasing Policy 302.21 or implement other means in order to achieve related sales tax or other cost savings.

END OF SECTION

OFFICIAL COUNTY BID FORM WITH ATTACHMENTS

OFFICIAL COUNTY BID FORM ST. JOHNS COUNTY, FLORIDA

PROJECT:	SR 16 Wastewater Treatmen	nt Facility (WWTF) FILTER IMPROVEMENTS	S		
TO:	THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF ST. JOHNS COUNTY, FLORIDA				
	DATE SUBMITTED:				
		BID PROPOSAL OF	•		
Full Legal Co	mpany Name	<u> </u>			
			• · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
Mailing Addre	ess	Telephone Number	Fax Number		
Johns County,	Florida, the undersigned pro	66, SR 16 Wastewater Treatment Facility (WWT poses to furnish all materials, labor and equipme Contract Documents to submit the following BASE BID	ent, supervision and all othe		
FOR: SR 16		MENT FACILITY (WWTF) FILTER IMPRO specifications.	VEMENTS as per plans and		
	¢.				
	Φ	Base Bid Price (Numerical)	,		
•		,	/100 Dollars		
	Base Bio	d Price (Amount written or typed in words)			
amounts shall	be determined by the amount	Price in numerals and in words. Any discrepancy written in words.	y between the two submitted		
*TESTING S	ERVICE ALLOWANCE:	^			
	Total Te	\$5,000.00 esting Service Allowance Price (Numerical)			
		Five Thousand and Zero (Amount written or typed in words)	/100 Dollars		

^{*}The allowance shown is an estimated unit price allowance and will be adjusted (+/-) upon receipt of an invoice for applicable testing.

TOTAL BID PRICE (Base Bid + Allowance):

	\$	
د	Total Bid Price (Numerical)	
	•	/100 Dollars
	Total Bid Price (Amount written or typed in words)	.

Bidder shall insert the Total Bid Price in numerals and in words. Any discrepancy between the two submitted amounts shall be determined by the amount written in words.

During the preparation of the Bid, the following addenda, if any, were received:

No.:	Date Received
No.:	Date Received
No.: "	Date Received

We, the undersigned, hereby declare that no person or persons, firm or corporation, other than the undersigned are interested, in this proposal, as principals, and that this proposal is made without collusion with any person, firm or corporation, and we have carefully and to our satisfaction examined the Bid Documents and Project Specifications.

We have made a full examination of the location of the proposed work and the sources of supply of materials, and we hereby agree to furnish all necessary labor, equipment and materials, fully understanding that any quantities shown therewith are approximate only, and that we will fully complete all requirements therein as prepared by the Owner, within the same time limit specified in the Bid Documents as indicated above.

If the Undersigned is notified of the acceptance of this Bid Proposal by the Board within ninety (90) calendar days for the time set for the opening of Bids, the Undersigned further agrees, to execute a contract for the above work within ten (10) days after notice that his Bid has been accepted for the above stated compensation in the form of a Contract presented by the Owner.

The Undersigned further agrees that security in the form of a Bid Bond, certified or cashier's check in the amount of not less than five percent (5%) of Total Bid Price, payable to the Owner, accompanies this Bid; that the amount is not to be construed as a penalty, but as liquidated damages which said Owner will sustain by failure of the Undersigned to execute and deliver the Contract and Bond within ten (10) days of the written notification of the Award of the Contract to him; thereupon, the security shall become the property of the Owner, but if this Bid is not accepted within ninety (90) days of the time set for the submission of Bids, or if the Undersigned delivers the executed Contract upon receipt, the Security shall be returned to the Bidder within seven (7) working days.

CORPORATE/COMPANY

Full Legal Company Name:		(Seal)	
Bv:			
By:	resentative	(Name & Title typed or printed)	
By:			
Signature of Authorized Rep	resentative	(Name & Title typed or printed)	
Address:			
Telephone No.: ()		Fax No.: ()	
Email Address for Authorize	d Company Representative	:	
		DUNS #: (If applicable)	
INDIVIDUAL		(If applicable)	
Name:			
(Signature)	(Name	typed or printed) (Title)	
Address:		•	
Telephone No.: ()		Fax No.:	
Email Address:	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
Federal I.D. Tax Number:	•	<u> </u>	
Submittal Requirements:	Official County Bid For Attachment "A" – St Jo	rm ohns County Board of County Commissioners Affidavit	
		ificate as to Corporate Principal	
•	Attachment "C" - Licer	•	
		of Proposed Sub-Contractors / Suppliers	
		lict of Interest Disclosure Form	
		ficate of Compliance with Florida Trench Safety Act	
•	Attachment "G" – Proo		
		tractor's Qualifications Form	
• •	Bid Bond Form		
	Fully Acknowledged A	ddenda Applicable to this bid	

Official County Bid Form, Attachments "A", "B", "C", "D", "E", "F", "G", "H" and Bid Bond must be completed, along with a fully acknowledged copy of each Addendum applicable to this Bid and submitted with each copy of the Bid Proposal. One (1) original and two (2) copies of all required forms must be submitted.

ST. JOHNS COUNTY, BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS AFFIDAVIT

TO:

ST. JOHNS COUNTY, BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS,

ST. JOHNS COUNTY, ST. AUGUSTINE, FLORIDA.

At the time the proposal is submitted, the Bidder shall attach to his Bid a sworn statement.

This sworn statement shall be an affidavit in the following form, executed by an officer of the firm, association, or corporation submitting the proposal, and shall be sworn to before a person who is authorized by law to administer oaths.

of

STATE OF FLORIDA, COUNTY OF ST. JOHNS

Before me, the Undersigned authority,		g duly
sworn, deposes and says he is		of
	Bidder submitting the attached proposal for the services covered by th	e bid
documents for Bid No: 19-06; SR 16	Vastewater Treatment Facility (WWTF) Filter Improvements, in St. Johns Co	ounty,
Florida.		-
The affiant further states that no mor	e than one proposal for the above-referenced project will be submitted from	m the
	er the same or different name, and that such Bidder has no financial interest	
firm of another bidder for the same v	ork. That neither he, his firm, association nor corporation has either direc	tly or
	participated in any collusion, nor otherwise taken any action in restraint o	
	this firm's Bid on the above-described project. Furthermore, neither the firm	
	cipating in public contract lettings in the State of Florida or any other state.	
	Sworn and subscribed to me this day	
(Bidder)	of, 20	
,		
By:	Notary Public:	
<i>,</i>		
	Signature	
, (Title)	Signature	
(Title)	<u> </u>	
(Title)	Signature Printed	

BIDDER ON ALL COUNTY PROJECTS MUST EXECUTE AND ATTACH THIS AFFADAVIT TO EACH BID.

ATTACHMENT "B"

CERTIFICATE AS TO CORPORATE PRINCIPAL

of said Corporation; that I know his sealed, and attested for and in behalf			t said bond was duly signed,
	Secretary	Corporate Seal	
			,
(STATE OF FLORIDA COUNTY OF ST. JOHNS)			
Before me, a Notary Publ to me well known, who being by and that he has been authorized by _ foregoing bond on behalf of the suret	me first duly sworn up	pon oath, says that he is the	
	day of	. 20 A.D	
Subscribed and sworn to me this	,,	, 20, A.D.	
Subscribed and sworn to me this	• .	, 20, A.D.	
	NOTARY PUBLIC State of Florida-at-large	, 20, A.D.	
	NOTARY PUBLIC	, 20, A.D.	

(Attach Power of Attorney to original Bid Bond and Financial Statement of Surety Company)

BID NO: 19-06

ATTACHMENT "C"

LICENSE / CERTIFICATION LIST

In the space below, the Bidder shall list all current licenses and certifications held.

The bidder shall attach a copy of each current license or certification listed below to this form.

License Name	License #	Issuing Agency	Expiration Date
<u> </u>	The same who we are got the challenges a same for	Marine Company and the second and the second and the second	to the state of th
		* *	
,	. ,		
	, , , ,		
	, ,		
	,		
	, 4		
. '	·		
· ·			
			;

BID NO: 19-06

ATTACHMENT "D"

LIST OF PROPOSED SUB-CONTRACTORS / SUPPLIER LIST

All sub-contractors and major materials suppliers are subject to approval of Owner. The following are sub-contractors and manufacturers of materials and/or equipment that are proposed to be utilized by the Contractor in the performance of this work, provide company names and contacts for the following as a minimum and list any additional as necessary:

Company Name	Division/Discipline	Primary Contact Name	Contact Number and Email Address
	Electrical		
· .	Concrete/Rebar		
	Underground Utility		
	Filter Manufacturer		
	-		
		;	
			-
· · ·			
	:		,
	, ,		

ATTACHMENT "E"

ST. JOHNS COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURE FORM

Project (BID) Number/Description: Bid No 19-06: SR 16 Wastewater Treatment Facility (WWTF) Filter Improvements

The term "conflict of interest" refers to situations in which financial or other considerations may adversely affect, or have the appearance of adversely affecting a consultant's/contractor's professional judgment in completing work for the benefit of St. Johns County ("County"). The bias such conflicts could conceivably impart may inappropriately affect the goals, processes, methods of analysis or outcomes desired by the County.

Consultants/Contractors are expected to safeguard their ability to make objective, fair, and impartial decisions when performing work for the benefit of the County. Consultants/Contractors, therefore must there avoid situations in which financial or other considerations may adversely affect, or have the appearance of adversely affecting the consultant's/contractor's professional judgement when completing work for the benefit of the County.

The mere appearance of a conflict may be as serious and potentially damaging as an actual distortion of goals, processes, methods of analysis or outcomes. Reports of conflicts based upon appearances can undermine public trust in ways that may not be adequately restored even when the mitigating facts of a situation are brought to light. Apparent conflicts, therefore, should be disclosed and evaluated with the same vigor as actual conflicts.

It is expressly understood that failure to disclose conflicts of interest as described herein may result in immediate disqualification from evaluation or immediate termination from work for the County.

Please check the appropriate statement:

I hereby attest that the undersigned Respondent has no actual or potential conflict of interest due to any other clients, contracts, or property interests for completing work on the above referenced project.

The undersigned Respondent, by attachment to this form, submits information which may be a potential conflict of interest due to other clients, contracts or property interests for completing work on the above referenced project.

Legal Name of Respondent:

Authorized Representative(s):

Signature

Print Name/Title

Print Name/Title

ATTACHMENT "F"

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE WITH FLORIDA TRENCH SAFETY ACT

Bidder acknowledges that he is solely responsible for complying with the Florida Trench Safety Act (ACT) and Occupational Safety and Health Administrations excavation safety standard 29 CFR 1926.650 (Subpart P as amended) and the St. Johns County Trenching and Excavation Safety Program. If there is a conflict between the ACT and the St. Johns County Trenching and Excavation Safety Program, the more stringent requirement would apply. Bidder further acknowledges that included in the various items of the proposal and in the Total Bid Price are costs for complying with the Florida Trench Safety Act (90-96, Laws of Florida) effective October 1, 1990 and the Occupational Safety and Health Administrations excavation safety standard.

By:			
Bidder		Date	
•			•
	•		
Authorized Signature			,

ATTACHMENT "G"

CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE

INSERT CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE HERE

ATTACHMENT "H"

CONTRACTOR'S QUALIFICATIONS FORM

Bidder acknowledges that he is fully licensed to perform work in the STATE OF FLORIDA.

Any material misrepresentation, as determined by the County, shall result in disqualification.

Ву:		•			
- ·	idder		Date	<u> </u>	
Aı	uthorized Signature				,
	•			•	
actor's Project E		•	,	•	· ·
idder shall provide	e the following information	on regarding exper	ience within the past	five (5) years of	this solici
i must demonstrati it of project.	te the successful complet	hon of three (2) b	rojects of similar con	npiexity, nature,	size, and
	Eomse	tor's Project Expe	Hence/Details		
Name of Project:					
Project Manager N	Name:				
Superintendent Na	ame:				
Project Descriptio	n:			•	
r roject Descriptio	11.	•			
	·	· · · · · ·		· ·	
Name:		Owner Informat	non	<u>-</u>	
Address:					
		 .			
Contact Person:		·			
Telephone Numbe					
–————Name:	Engr	neer/Architect Int	tormation		
Address:					
 -		<u> </u>	<u>.</u>	<u>.</u>	
Contact Person:					
Felephone Numbe	er:		·		
Storted:		Contract Date	es		
Started: 					

	Cont	ractor's Pro Pro	ject Exper ject No. 1	ience Detai	IS		
Final Contractual Comp	letion:				•		
Actual Completion:							i
		Cont	ract Value	9			1
Original Contract Value	<u>. </u>					·	<u>· .</u>
Final Contract Value:							
Value of Change Orders		:			·	•	
Value of Outstanding Cl		,			<u> </u>		
	B	Sonding Con	npany Info	rmation	-		:
Name:	:	r				 	•
Address:					<u> </u>		
Contact Person:		·		·			
Telephone Number:	70.00	0.1	4 T				
Name:		ijor Sub-con	itractor in	tormation			1
Address:							
Contact Person:		 			•		
Telephone Number:		.			- :	2	
Name:						· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	<u>.</u>
Address:					·	· · ·	
Contact Person:							
Telephone Number:					•		•
	,			·			, .
Name:							
Address:		-					1
Contact Person:							
Telephone Number:	· · ·					 	
e.C. of the second seco	Contr	actor's Pro Pro	ject Exper ject No. 2	ience Detai	ls to 4		İ
Name of Project:				,			ŀ

•		-			
	Con	tractor's Proj	ect Experience D	Petails	
		RIOI	ect No. 2		
				•	·
Project Description:	·	•		• .	
	·		<u> </u>		
		Owner !	Information		
Name:					
Address:					· ,
Contact Person:					<u> </u>
Telephone Number:		·			f
· ,		Engineer/Arcl	hitect Informatio	n	
Name:		·			· ·
Address:				.	
Contact Person:					
Telephone Number:					
		Conti	ract Dates		,
Started:			·		
Original Contractual Comp	-				·
Final Contractual Completi	on:		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
Actual Completion:				· 	
		Contr	act Value		
Original Contract Value:	•	-	·		
Final Contract Value:	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	.			
Value of Change Orders to					
Value of Outstanding Clain					· ,
Name:		Bonding Com	pany Informatio	<u>n</u>	<u>.</u>
	 			•	,
Address:				· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	·
Contact Person:				· · ·	·
Telephone Number:		5 to G.1.	T P 4	<u>.</u>	
Name:	lV1	ajor Sub-com	tractor Informat	ion '	
Address:					

ct Experience Details	
. ,	_
	1
	1 †
	(
	i.
	ct Experience Details ct No. 2

1			Contractor'	s Project Project	Experience No. 3	ce Detail	S	in a			
Name o	of Project:					,	΄,			5	
Project	Manager Name:								r		ě
Superir	ntendent Name:		-							ı.	
								,		•	-
Project	Description:									,	
Froject	Description.		.							-	
			 		44.					•	··· - ·
		- 	0	wner Inf	ormation						
Name:		a									
Addres	s:		•							٠.	
Contac	t Person:		~		<u>-</u>					1	
Teleph	one Number:									1	
	****		Engine	er/Archite	ect Inform	ation					-
Name:			•			_				ť	
Addres	s:				•		, 1			; ;	9
Contac	t Person:									; !	
Teleph	one Number:		-		_			-			_
	<u> </u>		 	Contrac	t Dates				-		
Started	÷,				-						•
Origina	al Contractual Co	mpletion:				•					
Final C	Contractual Comp	letion:									
<u></u>	•		٠								

Actual Completion:		·				
	• •	Cont	ract Value			
Original Contract Value:			· · ·		1	
Final Contract Value:						
Value of Change Orders to Date:						
Value of Outstanding Claim		•44			•	
	· B	onding Com	ipany Inform	lation		Al
Name:						
Address:		- 1.				
Contact Person:	-	· .				
Telephone Number:			de .		ur ti	
	Ma	jor Sub-con	tractor Infor	mation		
Name:	- · · -					
Address:		· ·				
Contact Person:						
Telephone Number:	,					
Name:						
Address:						
Contact Person:					· <u>-</u>	
Telephone Number:			٤ .			
Name:					· · ·	•
Address:			- · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	<u> </u>		-
Contact Person:		•	<u>.</u>	 ,		
Telephone Number:	<u> </u>		<u>.</u>	<u> </u>		
			r	<u>.</u>	·	
tional Questions ou have any similar work in p	orogress at th	nis time?	Yes	No		; -
h of time in business:	Yea	ars '		4	,	
or company currently involve	d in any act	ive litigation	? Yes or No:	· ·	_If Yes, expla	in:
our company ever been sue	do Vac or N		If Vac ave	lain and/or sub	mit gourt doci	cioń or iudów

BID BOND

STATE OF FLORIDA COUNTY OF ST. JOHNS

KNOWALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, thatas Principal, and as Surety, are held and firmly bound unto St. Johns County, Florida, in the penal sum of Dollars (\$) lawful money of the United States, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators, and successors, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents.
THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATIONS IS SUCH that whereas the Principal has submitted the accompanying Bid, dated, 20
For
SR16 Wastewater Treatment Facility (WWTF) Filter Improvements St. Johns County, Florida
NOW THEREFORE, (a) If the Principal shall not withdraw said Bid within ninety (90) days after Bid Award date, and shall within ten (10) days after prescribed forms are presented to him for signature, enter into a written Contract with the County in accordance with the Bid as accepted, and give Bond with good and sufficient Surety or Sureties, as may be required, for the faithful performance and proper fulfillment of such Contract, then the above obligations shall be void and of no effect, otherwise to remain in full force and virtue.
(b) In the event of the withdrawal of said Bid within the period specified, or the failure to enter into such Contract and give such Bond within the time specified, if the Principal shall pay the County the difference between the amount specified, in said Bid and the amount for which the County may procure the required Work and supplies, if the latter amount be in excess of the former, then the above obligations shall be void and of no effect, otherwise to remain in full force and virtue.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the above bounded parties have executed this instrument under their several seals, this day of A.D., 20, the name and corporate seal of each corporate party being hereto affixed and these presents duly signed by its undersigned representative, pursuant to authority of its governing body.

BID NO: 19-06

11	πa	m	т		a	DC.	١.
14/	11	Ι.Ν	VI.	н ۱	`	F۵	٠.

'(If Sole Ownership or Partnership two (2) Witnesses required). (If Corporation, Secretary only will attest and affix seal).

	,
WITNESSES:	PRINCIPAL:
· · · · · ·	NAME OF FIRM:
· · · · ·	
·	SIGNATURE OF AUTHORIZED OFFICER (AFFIX SEAL)
	TITLE
	BUSINESS ADDRESS
	CITY STATE
VITNESS:	SURETY:
	CORPORATE SURETY
	ATTORNEY-IN-FACT (AFFIX SEAL)
	BUSINESS ADDRESS
	CITY STATE
٠.	NAME OF LOCAL INSURANCE AGE

SEALED BID MAILING LABEL

BID NO: 19-06 SR16 Wastewater Treatment Facility (WWTF) Filter Improvements

Cut along the outer border and affix this label to your sealed bid envelope to identify it as a "Sealed BID"

SEALED BID • DO NOT OPEN

SEALED BID

NO.:

BID NO: 19-06

BID TITLE:

SR 16 Wastewater Treatment Facility

(WWTF) Filter Improvements

DUE.

By 2:00 P.M. on October 31, 2018

DATE/TIME:

SUBMITTED

BY:

Company Name

Company Address

Company Address

DELIVER TO:

St. Johns County Purchasing Dept.

ATTN: Leigh Daniels 500 San Sebastian View St. Augustine FL 32084

END OF DOCUMENT



St. Johns County Board of County Commissioners

Purchasing Division

October 2, 2018

ADDENDUM #1

To:

Prospective Bidders

From:

St. Johns County Purchasing Department

Subject:

Bid No. 19-06, SR 16 Wastewater Treatment Facility (WWTF) Filter Improvements

This Addendum #1 is issued for further respondent's information and is hereby incorporated into the Bid documents. Each respondent will ascertain before submitting a proposal that he/she has received all Addenda. Please return an original copy of this signed Addendum with proposal to the St. Johns County Purchasing Department, Leigh A. Daniels, CPPB; 500 San Sebastian View; St. Augustine, FL 32084.

Change:

The Non-Mandatory Pre-Bid Conference time has changed from 9:00 AM to 1:30 PM on Tuesday, October 9, 2018.

The location remains the same.

St. Johns County Utility Department
1205 State Road 16

St. Augustine, FL 32084

THE BID DUE DATE REMAINS October 31, 2018 AT 2:00 P.M.

Acknowledgment	Sincerely,
Signature and Date	Leigh A. Daniels, CPPB Acting Purchasing Manager
Printed Name/Title	
Company Name (Print)	
END O	F ADDENDUM NO. 1



St. Johns County Board of County Commissioners

Purchasing Division

October 16, 2018

ADDENDUM #2

To:

Prospective Bidders

From:

St. Johns County Purchasing Department

Subject:

Bid No. 19-06, SR 16 Wastewater Treatment Facility (WWTF) Filter Improvements

This Addendum #2 is issued for further respondent's information and is hereby incorporated into the Bid documents. Each respondent will ascertain before submitting a proposal that he/she has received all Addenda. Please return an original copy of this signed Addendum with proposal to the St. Johns County Purchasing Department, Leigh A. Daniels, CPPB; 500 San Sebastian View; St. Augustine, FL 32084.

Questions:

1. We are submitting for approval the knife gate valves by Pratt in accordance with specification section 15200. This would allow Pratt approval for both butterfly valves and knife gate valves.

Answer: Pratt is tentatively approved. Shop drawings will be required to demonstrate full compliance with the specifications.

2. REF 01465, 3.03, C, 5 – Does manufacturer's representative need to be local during the 7 day test?

Answer: No. The Manufacturer's personnel shall be made available by phone during startup, and shall be on site in conformance with specification section 11366 – Tertiary Filters.

3. REF 11366, 2.011, A – This paragraph references section 13300 for control panels. We do not have that section.

Answer: The reference will be changed to 16900 – Instrumentation and Controls.

4. REF Sheet G-2.0 – What is the approximate depth of the existing 18" line at the proposed tie-in point?

Answer: The top of the pipe should be at elevation 32.8, and grade is at elevation 34.0 at the connection location. The Contractor shall plan on minimum cover (3 to 4 feet) but shall verify the elevation prior to pipe installation. See attached sketch no. 1.

5. REF 010101, 1.02, E – Will there be a cost for local building permit?

Answer: It is anticipated that an electrical permit will be the only permit needed. If a permit is needed, the associated permit fee shall be paid from the testing allowance.

6. REF Sheet C-1.0 – Callout mentions "per specification" at the pond liner repair. We do not have a specification for this.

Answer: A specification will be provided along with the revisions to Drawings C-1.0 and M-3.0.

7. REF 15066 – Confirm where stainless steel piping is used.

Answer: Stainless steel piping will not be used and the specification will be delated.

8. REF 15110 – Section 2.01A references a Piping Schedule at the end of the section. We do not have a piping schedule.

Answer:

9. REF 15110 -Section 2.04.A references Section 3.13.2. We do not have this section.

Answer: The referenced section is in the latest edition of the Manual of Water, Wastewater, and Reuse Design Standards and Specifications prepared by the St. Johns County Utility Department. The standards can be found at this link:

http://www.co.st-johns.fl.us/Utilities/media/DevGroup/WaterStds&SpecsManual.pdf

10. REF 15110 – Section 2.04B references Section 3.13.3. We do not have this section.

Answer: The referenced section is in the latest edition of the Manual of Water, Wastewater, and Reuse Design Standards and Specifications prepared by the St. Johns County Utility Department. The standards can be found at this link:

http://www.co.st-johns.fl.us/Utilities/media/DevGroup/WaterStds&SpecsManual.pdf

11. REF 15110 – Confirm what type of interior lining is required for the ductile iron pipe.

Answer: Protecto 401, or equal as specified in Section 2.04 of the Manual of Water, Wastewater, and Reuse Design Standards and Specifications prepared by the St. Johns County Utility Department.

Clarification:

1. The rental filter decommissioning instructions are attached. If construction is not completed within the required project schedule, then the Contractor will be liable for liquidated damages in addition to the monthly filter rental fee of \$4,000 per month. The County will pay the required shipping costs.

Change:

- 1. Replace the electrical and instrumentation drawings provided with the bid drawings with the attached electrical and instrumentation drawings. The replacement drawings are noted "Re-Issued by Addendum No. 2".
- 2. Replace drawing C-1.0 and drawing M-3.0 with the attached files.
- 3. Replace paragraph 1.02, D, 10 in Specification section 01010 Summary of Work with the following:
 - 10. Provide, construct and integrate the instruments and controls necessary to continuously monitor turbidity.
- 4. Replace paragraph 1.04, A. 1 in Specification section 01010 Summary of Work with the following:

- 1. The Owner will be responsible for the integration of the new system controls with the existing facility SCADA system as described on Drawing E-4.0.
- 5. Delete specification section 15066 Stainless Steel Piping.
- 6. Replace paragraph 1.01A in Specification section 15200 Valves and Accessories with the following:

1.01 WORK INCLUDED

- A. This section covers the Work necessary for furnishing and installing various valves in the piping systems. Gate and Butterfly valves shall be provided in accordance with the latest edition of the Manual of Water, Wastewater, and Reuse Design Standards and Specifications prepared by the St. Johns County Utility Department. These specifications are supplementary to the standards and cover valves not included in the standards.
- 7. Replace paragraph 3.03, C, 5 in Specification section 01465 Equipment Startup and Testing with the following:
 - 5. The OWNER will provide all necessary water and electricity. However, the CONTRACTOR shall provide all necessary personnel of the various construction trades, i.e., electricians, plumbers, and etc. on an 8 hour per day basis at the facilities and on a 24 hour per day basis locally during the startup period. Major equipment suppliers shall be available during the schedule specified in Specification Section 11366 Tertiary Filters and during the testing period by phone. Major equipment suppliers shall include, but not be limited to, the following:
 - a. Filtration System
- 8. Delete performance requirement contained in Section 11366 2.02, A, 6.
- 9. In the first sentence of Section 11366 2.03, A, change 10-gauge steel to 10-gauge carbon steel.
- 10. Delete Section 2.03 C, 4.
- 11. Change any references to 304L stainless steel in Section 11366 2.04, A to carbon steel.
- 12. Replace the second sentence in Section 11366 2.05, A with "The gearbox shall be parallel in-line helical type with a ½ Hp drive motor rated for 460 volt, 3 phase, 60 HZ."
- 13. Replace Section 11366 2.09, A with the following:
 - A. The filter shall include three 2" backwash valves. Each valve shall be 3-piece, grooved end, ASTM A351 Grade CF8M stainless steel body, 316 stainless steel ball and stem, fullport, installed with painted cast iron Victaulic couplings, with a 115 volt, single phase, 60 Hz, open / close service electric actuator. Valve / actuator combination shall be TCI / RCI (RCI, a division of Rotork), Nibco, or equal. Valve actuator shall include a compartment heater and limit switch feedback to the microprocessor in both the open and closed positions.
- 14. Replace Section 11366 2.09, B with the following:
 - B. The filter shall include one 2" solids waste valve. The valve shall be 3-piece, grooved end, ASTM A351 Grade CF8M stainless steel body, 316 stainless steel ball and stem, fullport, installed with painted cast iron Victaulic couplings, with a 115 volt, single phase, 60 Hz, open / close service electric actuator. Valve / actuator combination shall be TCI / RCI

(RCI, a division of Rotork), Nibco, or equal. Valve actuator shall include a compartment heater and limit switch feedback to the microprocessor in both the open and closed positions.

- 15. Change Section 11366 2.09, D to "Manual valves shall include lever handles".
- 16. Change the note on drawing E-6.0 from "FILTER No. 1 BACKWASH PUMP: THE FILTER BACKWASH PUMP MOTOR SHALL BE CONNECTED TO THE FILTER CONTROL PANEL BY THE FILTER MANUFACTURER." to read "FILTER No. 1 BACKWASH PUMP: THE FILTER BACKWASH PUMP MOTOR SHALL BE CONNECTED TO THE FILTER CONTROL PANEL BY THE CONTRACTOR AND THE INSTALLATION MUST BE VERIFIED AS CORRECT BY THE FILTER MANUFACTURER PRIOR TO STARTUP."

Specification Addition:

- 1. As referenced in specification section 01010 Summary of Work, paragraph 1.01, D, 12, the Rental Unit Decommissioning instructions are attached. The Owner will be responsible for the long-term shutdown procedures noted in the instructions and for shipping costs.
- 2. Specification section 02666 Pond Liner Repair is attached and shall be added to the contract documents.
- 3. Attached is the Table of Contents for the project specifications that has been revised to reflect changes.

THE BID DUE DATE REMAINS October 31, 2018 AT 2:00 P.M.

Acknowledgment	Sincerely,
Signature and Date	Leigh A. Daniels, CPPB Acting Purchasing Manager
Printed Name/Title	-
Company Name (Print)	

END OF ADDENDUM NO. 2



St. Johns County Board of County Commissioners

Purchasing Division

October 23, 2018

ADDENDUM #3

To:

Prospective Bidders

From:

St. Johns County Purchasing Department

Subject:

Bid No. 19-06, SR 16 Wastewater Treatment Facility (WWTF) Filter Improvements

This Addendum #3 is issued for further respondent's information and is hereby incorporated into the Bid documents. Each respondent will ascertain before submitting a proposal that he/she has received all Addenda. Please return an original copy of this signed Addendum with proposal to the St. Johns County Purchasing Department, Leigh A. Daniels, CPPB; 500 San Sebastian View; St. Augustine, FL 32084.

Questions:

1. REF 15110 – Section 2.01A references a Piping Schedule at the end of the section. We do not have a piping schedule.

Answer: The reference to a piping schedule should be deleted.

Change:

- 1. Replace Section 01010 1.02,D,4 with the following:
- 4. Provide as part of the filter package the turbidity analyzing system to monitor effluent quality and provide a turbidity signal to the SCADA system. The automatic effluent valve will be supplied by the Contractor to automatically divert effluent to the reject effluent storage pond on high turbidity.
- 2. Add the following to the end of Section 11366 3.03, C after "...as follows:":
 - 1. The OWNER shall take grab samples every shift in addition to standard compliance composite samples and analyze for total suspended solids at no cost to the CONTRACTOR.
 - 2. The Field acceptance test shall commence on a date mutually agreed upon by all parties.

THE BID DUE DATE REMAINS October 31, 2018 AT 2:00 P.M.

Acknowledgment	Sincerely,		
Signature and Date	Leigh A. Daniels, CPPB Acting Purchasing Manager	i	
Printed Name/Title		1 1 1	
Company Name (Print)	END OF ADDENDUM NO. 3	İ	
		1	